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(putnam.com/individual) Investment Choices - Mutual
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0.40
(12b- ) (
)
(12-b)
12-b 1.00
( )
0.50
2011 2012 2013
837,573 162,866 119,366 63,220 13,013 9,233
(12b- ) ( )
( )
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2013
2013 10 31 39,918 35,554
2013 12 31
1 - 10,000 100,000
1 - 10,000 100,000
M. 1 - 10,000 100,000
A. 50,001 - 100,000 100,000
B. 1 - 10,000 100,000
J. 1 - 10,000 100,000
1 - 10,000 100,000
A. 100,000 100,000
1 - 10,000 100,000
R. 1 - 10,000 100,000
E. 10,001 - 50,000 100,000
50,001 - 100,000 100,000
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2013
2013
@ (&)
®) 5,408 279,000
2009 5,783 73,000
M.
2010(3) 5,783 285,000
1994(3)(5) - 8,132 2,868 110,500 402,031
2001 o 5,783 1,764 113,900 285,000
2007 (33- 5,783 285,000
2012(3) 5,684 279,000
®) g 1985 5,783 4,976 161,700 285,000
1997(3; 5,877 1,994 113,400 290,000
1992(4) ! 3,866 108,000 151,500
R. 2006 6,264 310,000
E 1984 6,264 3,001 106,500 310,000
1984 5,783 3,141 130,300 285,000
! 1997(6) 5,783 2,006 107,100 285,000
L.
2008(7)
) 2003 2004 2005
(2) 2013 12 31 116
®3) 2013 10 31
7,055 8,530 36,037 17,759 1,280
93,857 27,615
) 2010 30 2010 2011
15 2012
2013 30
®)
(6) 2008 31 2008 2009
15 2009 14
@)
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2003 2004 2005
2006 12 31
10
( )
(@) (D)
2003
2013 63,666
2012 24,765
2011 112,492
2013 2012
2011
2013 (
)
« )
Citigroup, Inc. 1,622,319
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) 2,049,027
Bank of America Cop. 2,866,196
Morgan Stanley 1,088,143
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (The) 4,583,425
2013 10 31 (

) 10,877,317
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(€D)
(2014 )
« ) )
594,648,265 48.29
357,289,620 29.02
239,529,952 19.45
28,381,390 2.30
12,694,957 1.03
11,957,933 0.97
7,443,734 0.60
5,456,927 0.44
3,821,820 0.31
2,613,289 0.21
2,391,062 0.19
2,371,625 0.19
2,348,744 0.19
2,064,941 0.17
1,518,032 0.12
1,487,413 0.12
1,214,455 0.10
1,042,913 0.08
988,865 0.08
958,059 0.08
806,675 0.07
632,178 0.05
572,688 0.05
375,127 0.03
330,672,779 26.85
170,619,154 13.86
3,224,874 0.26
3,175,000 0.26
852,260 0.07
724,370 0.06
551,972 0.04
427,425 0.03
153,896 0.01
) N (230,979,879) (18.76)
( ) (1&5?%%259'736) 100.00
C )
( )2014
AAA AA A BBB BB B | ccc
()| 3649 275 12.30| 23.79| 3.95| 1.31| 3.18| o0.23| 16.00| 100.00
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@
( 30
(2014
) ()

Federal National Mortgage Association
EN30 TBA 3.00 02/01/2044 2044/2/1 3.00| 80,000,000| 75,845,156 | 77,793,752| 6.32
Government National Mortgage
Association G1130 TBA 4.00 02/01/2044 2044/2/1 4.00| 43,000,000| 45,091,953 | 45,610,233| 3.70
Federal National Mortgage Association
FN30 TBA 3.50 02/01/2044 2044/2/1 4.00| 35,000,000| 36,261,250 36,665,234 | 2.98
Federal National Mortgage Association
EN30 TBA 4.00 02/01/2044 2044/2/1 3.50| 23,000,000| 22,816,719 | 23,336,016 1.90
Federal National Mortgage Association
N30 AB5692 4.00 06/01/2042 2042/6/1 4.00| 20,840,241 | 22,653,993 | 21,696,915| 1.76
Federal National Mortgage Association
N30 TBA 4.50 02/01/2044 2044/2/1 4.50| 16,000,000 17,122,500| 17,165,000 1.39
WAMU Mortgage Pass-Through
Certificates 2005-AR13 A1C4 0.588 2045/10/25| 0.59| 19,454,220 11,970,578 | 16,538,311| 1.34
10/25/2045
GNR 2011-56 23.8077 04/20/2041 2041/4/20 | 23.81| 9,819,189| 13,845,347 15,004,738| 1.22
GNR 2010-9 UI 10 5.00 01/20/2040 2040/1/20 5.00| 67,271,001 | 15,662,027 | 14,728,461 1.20
Federal National Mortgage Association

10 EN30 MAL217 4.00 10/01/2042 2042/10/01| 4.00| 12,406,829 | 13,820,045| 12,916,834| 1.05
Government National Mortgage

11 |Association GI130 TBA 3.5000 2044/2/1 3.50| 12,000,000| 12,121,875| 12,359,063 | 1.00
02/01/2044

12 |GNR 2011-70 WS 9.3860 12/20/2040 2040/12/20| 9.39| 11,858,000 10,820,425| 11,529,912| 0.94
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust 2005-

13 CKI1 B 5.2825 11/12/2037 2037/11/12| 5.28| 10,872,000| 11,006,795| 11,440,628| 0.93
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage

14 |Securities Trust 2007-LD12 A3 5.9222 2051/2/15 5.92| 11,157,473| 11,213,045| 11,309,362| 0.92
02/15/2051
Federal National Mortgage Association

15 FN30 TBA 6.0000 02/01/2044 2044/2/1 6.00| 10,000,000 11,064,844| 11,082,812 0.90
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

16 FH30G U90445 4.0000 06/01/2042 2042/6/1 4.00| 10,596,850 | 11,534,009 | 11,035,764 0.90
Federal National Mortgage Association

17 N30 MAL253 04.0000 11/01/2042 2042/11/1 4.00| 10,390,749| 11,620,388 10,817,878| 0.88
WAMU Mortgage Pass-Through

18 |Certificates 2004-AR13 A1B2 0.6775 2034/11/25| 0.68| 11,569,236| 8,760,804| 10,587,375| 0.86
11/25/2034
WAMU Mortgage Pass-Through

19 |Certificates 2005-AR19 A1C3 0.6580 2045/12/25| 0.66| 11,909,254| 6,087,258 | 10,005,297 | 0.81
12/25/2045

20 |FHR 3835 FO PO 0.0000 04/15/2041 2041/4/15 0.00| 11,616,582 9,742,429 9,599,995| 0.78
DBRR Trust 144A FRB 2013-EZ3 Class A

21 1.6360 12/18/2049 2049/12/18| 1.64| 9,445,496| 9,437,984| 9,467,122|0.77

22 |GNR 2011-72 SE 7.1974 05/16/2041 2041/5/16 7.20| 9,422,000| 9,504,443| 8,743,187]0.71
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.

23 FH30G U90067 4.0000 08/01/2042 2042/8/1 4.00| 8,176,744| 8,353,694 8,515,418] 0.69
Government National Mortgage

24 Association 61130 5.000 07/20/2041 2041/7/20 5.00| 7,213,321| 7,856,884 7,938,222|0.64
WAMU Mortgage Pass-Through

25 |Certificates 2005-AR11 A1B3 0.5580 2045/8/25 0.56| 8,604,774 6,530,204| 7,530,110] 0.61
08/25/2045
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A

26 2004-C1, Class G, 5.077 01/15/2036 2036/1/15 5.08| 7,400,000| 6,438,000| 7,098,306| 0.58

27 |HVMLT 2005-9 2A1B 0.5270 06/20/2035 2035/6/20 0.53| 7,640,697| 6,520,857 7,019,210| 0.57

49/300



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
OOoOooooooooooooooodd

) )

Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage
28 | Trust 2005-C17, Class D, 5.3960 2042/3/15 5.40| 6,740,000 6,434,263| 6,950,266 0.56

03/15/2042

Banc of America Commercial Mortgage
29 | Trust 2005-5, Class B, 5.2204 2045/10/10| 5.22| 6,500,000| 6,686,367| 6,901,386 0.56

10/10/2045
30 |FHS 311 S1 10 5.7900 08/15/2043 2043/8/15 5.79| 29,148,241| 6,035,147| 6,596,956 | 0.54
() a

(2014 )

Putnam Short Term Investment Fund 139,312,637
U.S. Treasury Bill 8/21/14 16,467,317
U.S. Treasury Bill 5/29/14 13,317,615
U.S. Treasury Bill 7/24/14 1,521,585

(2014

(2014
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©)
( )

2014
(2032 10 556,725 57,265 .80 699
(203% 10 420,886 43,292 .66 685
(2032 L0 331,997 34,149 .67 686
(2033 10 253,457 26,071 .68 687
(2033 L0 167,743 17,254 .28 543
(2033 10 194,199 19,975 .50 669
(2018 10 222,916 22,929 74 693
(2011 10 170,347 17,522 71 690
(20%2 10 151,113 15,543 12 732
(2012 10 128,376 13,205 .05 725
2013 142,068 14,613 .19 740
140,912 14,494 .20 741
140,439 14,446 .23 744
137,001 14,101 .09 729
133,412 13,723 .95 715
129,827 13,354 .94 714
128,663 13,234 .04 714
127,988 13,165 .96 716
10 128,376 13,205 .05 725
11 122,741 12,625 .03 723
12 119,635 12,306 .99 719
2014 120,268 12,371 .07 727

) 1994 12 14

1994 12 14 1,005 (103,374 ) 6.50 (669 )
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10 (2003 11 2004 10 31 ) 0.183 ( 19 )
11 (2004 11 2005 10 31 ) 0.197 ( 20 )
12 (2005 11 2006 10 31 ) 0.273 ( 28 )
13 (2006 11 2007 10 31 ) 0.306 ( 31 )
14 (2007 11 2008 10 31 ) 0.448 ( 46 )
15 (2008 11 2009 10 31 ) 0.456 (47 )
16 (2009 11 2010 10 31 ) 0.472 (49 )
17 (2010 11 2011 10 31 ) 0.335 (34 )
18 (2011 11 2012 10 31 ) 0.199 ( 20 )
19 (2012 11 2013 10 31 ) 0.220 ( 23 )
2012 2014

2012 0.019 1.954 2012/ /19 6.67 686

0.015 1.543 2012/ /18 6.76 695

0.015 1.543 2012/ /18 6.82 702

0.015 1.543 2012/ /18 6.87 707

0.015 1.543 2012/ /18 6.96 716

0.014 1.440 2012/ /20 6.95 715

0.015 1.543 2012/ /18 7.03 723

10 0.015 1.543 2012/10/18 7.08 728

11 0.015 1.543 2012/11/16 7.13 733

12 0.016 1.646 2012/12/18 7.09 729

2013 0.017 1.749 2013/ /17 7.14 734

0.017 1.749 2013/ /15 7.16 736

0.017 1.749 2013/ /18 7.21 742

0.017 1.749 2013/ /18 7.24 745

0.019 1.954 2013/ /20 7.15 735

0.020 2.057 2013/ /18 7.06 726

0.020 2.057 2013/ /18 6.96 716

0.020 2.057 2013/ /19 6.88 708

0.020 2.057 2013/ /18 6.96 716

10 0.020 2.057 2013/10/18 7.05 725

11 0.019 1.954 2013/11/18 7.07 127

12 0.054 5.554 2013/12/18 7.03 723

2014 0.025 2.572 2014/ /17 7.06 726

0.024 2.469 2014/ /18 7.11 731

52/300



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

( )
)
10 5.40
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*

10
(11/1/2003
10/31/2004)

2,077,209

1,426,500

53,602,766

50,958,900

81,897,434

78,791,100

11
(11/1/2004
10/31/2005)

1,095,526

502,900

19,762,113

18,593,900

63,230,847

60,700,100

12
(11/1/2005
10/31/2006)

636,652

277,600

14,063,029

13,048,500

49,804,470

47,929,200

13
(11/1/2006
10/31/2007)

459,288

93,000

12,340,684

11,708,400

37,923,074

36,313,800

14
(11/1/2007
10/31/2008)

686,280

391,400

6,837,946

6,252,000

31,771,408

30,453,200

15
(11/1/2008
10/31/2009)

2,328,323

1,549,200

4,240,822

3,808,200

29,858,909

28,194,200

16
(11/1/2009
10/31/2010)

9,555,118

8,610,100

6,321,085

5,994,200

33,092,942

30,810,100

17
(11/1/2010
10/31/2011)

4,348,925

3,686,200

12,052,732

11,273,900

25,389,135

23,222,400

18
(11/1/2011
10/31/2012)

1,189,022

669,600

5,356,881

4,740,900

21,221,276

19,151,100

19
(117172012
10/31/2013)

728,296

466,600

3,731,396

3,101,200

18,218,176

16,516,500
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(1) 2013 10 31

2013 10 31

« )
( 1,329,676,160 ) 1,389,663,616 142,940,800
( 27,481,533  )( ) 27,481,533 2,826,750
346,722 35,664
10,963,148 1,127,669
12,055,197 1,239,998
4,367,218 449,212
« ) 41,069,343 4,224,393
« ) 486,702 50,062
« ) 10,260 1,055
0TC « ) 4,913,160 505,368
0TC « ) 40,387 4,154
1,491,397,286 153,405,125
3,659,172 376,382
« ) 213,404,372 21,950,774
2,282,785 234,807
C ) 445,225 45,796
C ) 413,577 42,541
« ) 25,087 2,580
« ) 307,629 31,643
« ) 404,373 41,594
C D 4,523 465
« ) 365,835 37,630
0TC « ) 6,774,089 696,783
0TC « ) 1,380,846 142,034
) , ( 2,535,653 ) 2,716,974 279,468
28,943,438 28,897,345 2,972,381
« ) 2,210,000 227,321
255,489 26,280
263,547,321 27,108,477
1,227,849,965 126,296,647
( )( ) 1,333,967,435 137,211,890
« ) 33,683,609 3,464,696
« ) (185,949, 889) (19,126,806)
46,148,810 4,746,867
— 1,227,849,965 126,296,647
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(
2013 10 31

(783,734,948 =+ 108,866,360 )
(7.20 96.00  100)
(34,513,884 = 4,840,138 )
(133,269,192 = 18,643,892 )
(128,376,148  + 18,218,176 )
(7.05 96.75  100)
(8,040,442 =+ 1,123,720 )
(10,720 =+ 1,471 )
(6,187,813 =+ 848,632 )
(133,716,818 =+ 18,344,320 )

* 10 10

*%

+
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10 31
) 66,333,047 6,823,017
66,333,047 6,823,017
5,434,826 559,026
2,074,643 213,308
85,151 8,759
128,002 13,166
4,747,650 488,343
39,918 4,106
566,839 58,305
13,077,029 1,345,103
(1,608) (165)
13,075,421 1,344,938
53,257,626 5,478,079
16,086,349 1,654,642
11,664 1,200
31,376,158 3,227,352
(14,429,478) (1,484,216)
7,469,208 768,283
TBA (66,475,663) (6,837,687)
(25,961,762) (2,670,427)
27,295,864 2,807,653
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(
6,088,116

33,746,784

2013 10 31 2012 10 31
53,257,626 5,478,079 40,163,254 4,131,192
40,513,901 4,167,260 (28,647,090) (2,946,640)

(66,475, 663) (6,837,687) 114,096,560 11,735,972
27,295,864 2,807,653 125,612,724 12,920,525
(27,142,179) (2,791,845) (26,043,813) (2,678,867)
(976,648) (100,458) (954,906) (98,222)
(3,872,863) (398,363) (3,948,093) (406,101)
(4,276,503) (439,881) (4,646,629) (477,952)
(213,023) (21,912) (143,597) (14,770)
(373) (38) (100) (10)
(131,370) (13,513) (100) (10)
(5,975,551) (614,645) (5,026,699) (517,046)

(193,294,019)  (19,882,223) (8,602,096) (884,812)

(208,586,665)  (21,455,224) 76,246,691 7,842,735

1,436,436,630 147,751,872 1,360,189,939 139,909,137

1,227,849,965 126,296,647  1,436,436,630 147,751,872
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)
2013 10 31 7.27 0.29 (0.12) 0.17 (0.24) (0.24) —
2012 10 31 6.84 0.21 0.43 0.64 (0.21) (0.21) —
2011 10 31 6.86 0.28 0.05 0.33 (0.35) (0.35) —
2010 10 31 6.61 0.43 0.31 0.74 (0.49) (0.49) —f
2009 10 31 5.35 0.29 1.44 1.73 (0.47) (0.47) —f
2013 10 31 7.20 0.23 0.12) 0.11 (0.18) (0.18) —
2012 10 31 6.78 0.16 0.42 0.58 (0.16) (0.16) —
2011 10 31 6.80 0.22 0.06 0.28 (0.30) (0.30) —
2010 10 31 6.56 0.39 0.28 0.67 (0.43) (0.43) —f
2009 10 31 5.32 0.24 1.43 1.67 (0.43) (0.43) —f
2013 10 31 7.22 0.24 (0.13) 0.11 (0.18) (0.18) —
2012 10 31 6.80 0.16 0.42 0.58 (0.16) (0.16) —
2011 10 31 6.82 0.22 0.06 0.28 (0.30) (0.30) —
2010 10 31 6.58 0.35 0.33 0.68 (0.44) (0.44) —f
2009 10 31 5.33 0.26 1.42 1.68 (0.43) (0.43) —f
2013 10 31 7.12 0.27 (0.12) 0.15 (0.22) (0.22) —
2012 10 31 6.71 0.19 0.42 0.61 (0.20) (0.20) —
2011 10 31 6.74 0.26 0.05 0.31 (0.34) (0.34) —
2010 10 31 6.50 0.42 0.29 0.71 0.47) (0.47) —f
2009 10 31 5.28 0.27 1.41 1.68 (0.46) (0.46) —f
2013 10 31 7.23 0.27 (0.12) 0.15 (0.22) (0.22) —
2012 10 31 6.81 0.19 0.43 0.62 (0.20) (0.20) —
2011 10 31 6.83 0.25 0.07 0.32 (0.34) (0.34) —
2010 10 31 6.59 0.40 0.31 0.71 0.47) (0.47) —f
2009 10 31 5.34 0.27 1.44 1.71 (0.46) (0.46) —f
2013 10 31 7.35 0.32 (0.12) 0.20 (0.26) (0.26) —
2012 10 31 7.11 0.08 0.23 0.31 (0.07) (0.07) —
2013 10 31 7.36 0.31 (0.12) 0.19 (0.26) (0.26) —
2012 10 31 7.11 0.08 0.24 0.32 (0.07) (0.07) —
2013 10 31 7.36 0.31 (0.13) 0.18 (0.25) (0.25) —
2012 10 31 6.91 0.23 0.45 0.68 (0.23) (0.23) —
2011 10 31 6.93 0.29 0.06 0.35 0.37) (0.37) —
2010 10 31 6.67 0.46 0.30 0.76 (0.50) (0.50) —f
2009 10 31 5.40 0.32 1.43 1.75 (0.48) (0.48) —f
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) ) () ) )
2013 10 31 — 7.20 2.31 | 783,735 0.87 4.03 267
2012 10 31 — 7.27 9.59 | 878,866 0.86 3.02 204
2011 10 31 —e,f 6.84 4.95 | 843,019 0.86 4.02 339
2010 10 31 —f.9 6.86 11.45 | 855,659 0.88h,i 6.38h 112
2009 10 31 — 6.61 34.44 | 667,144 1.68h.J 5.12h 331
2013 10 31 — 7.13 1.58 34,514 1.62 3.28 267
2012 10 31 — 7.20 8.75 41,215 1.61 2.27 204
2011 10 31 —e,f 6.78 4.22 39,859 1.61 3.29 339
2010 10 31 —f.9 6.80 10.54 43,205 1.630,1 5.82h 112
2009 10 31 — 6.56 33.21 45,772 2.430,] 4.31h 331
2013 10 31 — 7.15 1.58 | 133,269 1.62 3.28 267
2012 10 31 — 7.22 8.72 | 166,407 1.61 2.27 204
2011 10 31 —e,f 6.80 4.21 | 169,692 1.61 3.27 339
2010 10 31 —f.9 6.82 10.57 | 167,237 1.630,1 5.08h 112
2009 10 31 — 6.58 33.40 43,310 2.43h.] 4.45h 331
2013 10 31 — 7.05 2.15 | 128,376 1.12 3.79 267
2012 10 31 — 7.12 9.27 | 151,113 1.11 2.77 204
2011 10 31 —e,f 6.71 4.66 | 170,347 1.11 3.82 339
2010 10 31 —f.9 6.74 11.28 | 222,916 1.13h,1 6.23h 112
2009 10 31 — 6.50 33.82 | 194,199 1.93h.] 4.83h 331
2013 10 31 — 7.16 2.11 8,040 1.12 3.79 267
2012 10 31 — 7.23 9.26 5,265 1.11 2.77 204
2011 10 31 —e,f 6.81 4.74 4,723 1.11 3.74 339
2010 10 31 —f.9 6.83 11.10 4,068 1.13h,1 5.91h 112
2009 10 31 — 6.59 34.02 2,353 1.93h.] 4.85h 331
2013 10 31 — 7.29 2.75 11 0.58 4.33 267
2012 10 31 — 7.35 4.39* 10 0.19% 1.12% 204
2013 10 31 — 7.29 2.62 6,188 0.51 4.25 267
2012 10 31 — 7.36 4.54* 10 0.17* 1.14% 204
2013 10 31 — 7.29 2.52 | 133,717 0.62 4.30 267
2012 10 31 — 7.36 10.00 | 193,550 0.61 3.26 204
2011 10 31 —e,f 6.91 5.12 | 132,550 0.61 4.25 339
2010 10 31 —f.9 6.93 11.73 | 145,681 0.63h,i 6.74h 112
2009 10 31 — 6.67 34.59 | 227,134 1.430.] 5.87h 331
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T O O T o

«

2012 2012 10 31
«c )
TBA
SEC
2011 21 0.01
2011
0.01
0.01
SEC
2010 3 30 0.01
2010 10 31 0.03
2009 10 31 0.19
10 31 0.18
2009 10 31
0.72
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2013 10 31

2012 11 2013 10 31

1940
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3,954,580 4,401,120
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2013 10 31
173,457,392
6,653,400 10,608,039 17,261,439 *
92,884,454 92,884,454 2016 10 31
63,311,499 63,311,499 2017 10 31
*
2010 2010 12 22
16,926,377 16,926,377

72,781,704

(25,416,927)

47,364,777
31,830,128

(173,457,392)

1,369,780,372
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11,664

0.12
0.05 0.32
1,286,356 13
59,347 1,734
236,039 268,637
211,993 2,074,643
10,524
1,608
838
1995
2004
2005 12 31
50 2006 12 31

2003
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1940 12
0.35 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
0.25 1.00 1.00 0.50 0.50
2,096,545 691,168
386,926 34,376
1,538,635 4,747,650
87,703 9,233
21,786
5,188
1.00 0.40
2,545
3,321,533,633 3,154,258,294
432,981
79,432,000 1,529,066
3,649,963,556 11,870,705 57 22,157
(276,173,800) (596,963)
57) (22,157)

(3,211,856,356)

(10,267,155)

241,365,400

2,535,653
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2013 10 31 2012 10 31

20,725,283 150,177,288 27,350,698 189,503,530
3,334,755 24,048,309 3,272,191 22,639,769

24,060,038 174,225,597 30,622,889 212,143,299

(36,133,561)

(260,478,835)

(32,950, 350)

(228,777,619)

(12,073,523)

(86,253,238)

(2,327,461)

(16,634,320)

2013 10 31 2012 10 31
828,163 5,959,446 1,388,528 9,538,158
114,704 819,305 108,522 744,380
942,867 6,778,751 1,497,050 10,282,538

(1,826,179) (13,066, 485) (1,651,519) (11,377,763)

(883,312) (6,287,734) (154,469) (1,095,225)

2013 10 31 2012 10 31

2,888,515 20,818,710 5,123,472 35,269,152
389,912 2,792,633 376,116 2,585,433
3,278,427 23,611,343 5,499,588 37,854,585

(7,688,225)

(54,891,598)

(7,411,220)

(51,136,287)

(4,409,798)

(31,280,255)

(1,911,632)

(13,281,702)

2013 10 31 2012 10 31
673,386 4,797,863 1,131,897 7,695,763
54,910 387,694 57,125 387,404
728,296 5,185,557 1,189,022 8,083,167

(3,731,396)

(26,426,129)

(5,356,881)

(36,496,132)

(3,003,100)

(21,240,572)

(4,167,859)

(28,412,965)

2013 10 31 2012 10 31
748,244 5,381,147 372,015 2,551,886
26,004 186,217 18,450 127,087
774,248 5,567,364 390,465 2,678,973
(379,041) (2,715,551) (355,775) (2,444,067)
395,207 2,851,813 34,690 234,906
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2012

2013 10 31 012 10 31
1,406 10,000
51 373 14 100
51 373 1,420 10,100
51 373 1,420 10,100

2012

2013 10 31 012 10 31
939,717 6,974,232 1,406 10,000
18,090 131,370 14 100
957,807 7,105,602 1,420 10,100

(110,595) (805,572)

847,212 6,300,030 1,420 10,100

2013 10 31 2012 10 31
13,446,440 98,603,847 20,514,428 144,552,458
637,375 4,652,623 533,133 3,744,348
14,083,815 103,256,470 21,047,561 148,296,806
(22,053,330) (160, 640,906) (13,902,881) (97,729,796)
(7,969,515) (57,384,436) 7,144,680 50,567,010
1,471 100.00 10,720
1,472 0.17 10,731
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141,049,783 | 221,019,516 362,069,299 83,368
515,828,997 488,347,464 34,265 | 27,481,533
141,049,783 | 736,848,513 850,416,763 117,633 | 27,481,533
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9,700,000

754,400,000

10

569,000,000

2,000

1,820,700,000

458,500,000

1,076,500,000

9,800,000
*
*
ASC815
1,148,798
11,819,635 23,755,023
11,819,635 24,903,821
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ASC815
446,942 446,942
(7,720,912) (14,429,478) 30,929,216 8,778,826
(7,720,912) (14,429,478) 31,376,158 9,225,768
« )
ASC815
232,048 232,048
3,082,548 84,490 (13,269,917) (10,102,879)
3,082,548 84,490 (13,037,869) (9,870,831)
2013 2013 01 2011
11
2013
2013 01 2011 11
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2013 10 31
(48.2%)
(25.1%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.
IFB Ser.3182, Class SP, 27.904s, 2032 150,953 232,916
IFB Ser.3408, Class EK, 25.093s, 2037 1,731,145 2,574,531
IFB Ser.2976, Class LC, 23.782s, 2035 205,593 307,924
IFB Ser.2979, Class AS, 23.635s, 2034 88,677 115,010
IFB Ser.3072, Class SB, 23.012s, 2035 683,208 988,904
IFB Ser.3249, Class PS, 21.701s, 2036 564,915 785,253
IFB Ser.3065, Class DC, 19.338s, 2035 901,680 1,305,929
IFB Ser.2990, Class LB, 16.501s, 2034 1,020,868 1,365,891
IFB Ser.4105, Class HS, 10, 6.426s, 2042 5,173,432 1,248,039
IFB Ser.3861, Class PS, 10, 6.426s, 2037 4,536,070 680,773
IFB Ser.3907, Class KS, 10, 6.376s, 2040 4,778,004 803,187
IFB Ser.3708, Class SA, 10, 6.276s, 2040 12,231,788 2,063,503
IFB Ser.4112, Class SC, 10, 5.976s, 2042 14,511,098 2,651,323
IFB Ser.4105, Class LS, 10, 5.976s, 2041 5,473,110 1,064,301
IFB Ser.4245, Class AS, 10, 5.826s, 2043 13,806,235 3,123,246
IFB Ser.3852, Class NT, 5.826s, 2041 3,506,432 3,508,711
IFB Ser.3752, Class PS, 10, 5.826s, 2040 6,795,538 1,037,067
IFB Ser.310, Class S4, 10, 5.776s, 2043 3,820,979 950,469
IFB Ser.311, Class S1, 10, 5.776s, 2043 31,421,947 7,033,803
IFB Ser.314, Class AS, 10, 5.716s, 2043 9,014,369 2,000,390
Ser.3632, Class ClI, 10, 5s, 2038 178,311 13,386
Ser.3626, Class DI, 10, 5s, 2037 61,482 1,398
Ser.4132, Class IP, 10, 4 1/2s, 2042 16,943,801 2,989,570
Ser.4122, Class TI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2042 6,078,408 1,199,270
Ser.4018, Class DI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2041 7,062,119 1,074,996
Ser.3747, Class HI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2037 1,765,615 170,648
Ser.3707, Class PI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2025 4,651,306 381,175
Ser.4116, Class MI, 10, 4s, 2042 13,160,907 2,624,092
Ser.4122, Class Al, 10, 3 1/2s, 2042 11,373,709 1,774,299
Ser.4141, Class PI, 10, 3s, 2042 11,658,085 1,634,580
Ser.4158, Class TI, 10, 3s, 2042 29,840,861 4,136,839
Ser.4165, Class TI, 10, 3s, 2042 35,584,478 4,960,476
Ser.4176, Class DI, 10, 3s, 2042 32,076,062 4,455,686
Ser.4171, Class NI, 10, 3s, 2042 18,700,401 2,576,915
Ser.4183, Class MI, 10, 3s, 2042 10,681,064 1,482,532
Ser.T-56, Class A, 10, 0.524s, 2043 11,774,389 201,912
Ser.T-56, Class 1, 10, zero %, 2043 14,053,150 105,399
Ser.T-56, Class 2, 10, zero %, 2043 5,062,290 15,820
Ser.T-56, Class 3, 10, zero %, 2043 4,241,175 55,665
Ser.3835, Class FO, PO, zero %, 2041 11,982,147 10,027,140
Ser.3369, Class B0, PO, zero %, 2037 38,447 34,639
Ser.3391, PO, zero %, 2037 319,432 271,045
Ser.3300, PO, zero %, 2037 515,595 468,975
Ser.3206, Class EO, PO, zero %, 2036 24,816 22,099
Ser.3175, Class MO, PO, zero %, 2036 86,371 76,101
Ser.3210, PO, zero %, 2036 88,326 80,875
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(48.2%)
( )
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.
FRB Ser.3117, Class AF, zero %, 2036 20,530 18,424
FRB Ser.3326, Class WF, zero %, 2035 22,307 20,395
FRB Ser.3036, Class AS, zero %, 2035 7,984 7,951
Federal National Mortgage Association
IFB Ser.06-62, Class PS, 38.879s, 2036 1,095,822 2,163,581
IFB Ser.06-8, Class HP, 23.943s, 2036 795,931 1,240,522
IFB Ser.05-45, Class DA, 23.796s, 2035 1,551,972 2,355,481
IFB Ser.05-122, Class SE, 22.504s, 2035 1,655,750 2,430,950
IFB Ser.05-75, Class GS, 19.739s, 2035 510,077 687,606
IFB Ser.05-106, Class JC, 19.596s, 2035 872,492 1,310,501
IFB Ser.05-83, Class QP, 16.951s, 2034 180,627 237,758
IFB Ser.11-4, Class CS, 12.56s, 2040 1,925,682 2,288,198
IFB Ser.12-96, Class PS, 10, 6.53s, 2041 8,947,980 1,728,481
IFB Ser.12-75, Class SK, 10, 6.48s, 2041 13,518,545 2,573,525
IFB Ser.12-75, Class KS, 10, 6.38s, 2042 8,227,729 1,523,940
IFB Ser.12-3, Class CS, 10, 6.38s, 2040 8,843,598 1,471,133
IFB Ser.11-27, Class AS, 10, 6.31s, 2041 8,384,427 1,389,048
IFB Ser.10-35, Class SG, 10, 6.23s, 2040 20,462,987 3,662,261
IFB Ser.12-132, Class SB, 10, 6.03s, 2042 11,235,219 1,703,147
IFB Ser.13-19, Class DS, 10, 6.03s, 2041 9,284,191 1,787,932
Ser.06-10, Class GC, 6s, 2034 6,831,424 7,036,367
IFB Ser.13-59, Class SC, 10, 5.98s, 2043 13,080,840 2,898,224
IFB Ser.13-13, Class SA, 10, 5.98s, 2043 14,348,594 3,509,809
IFB Ser.13-101, Class AS, 10, 5.78s, 2043 22,492,244 5,252,164
IFB Ser.11-53, Class SY, 10, 5.78s, 2041 12,282,436 1,408,795
IFB Ser.13-103, Class SK, 10, 5 3/4s, 2043 5,152,699 1,214,219
Ser.13-101, Class SE, 10, 5.73s, 2043 12,136,893 3,079,737
IFB Ser.13-102, Class SH, 10, 5.73s, 2043 12,244,307 2,754,969
Ser.12-129, Class Tl, 10, 4 1/2s, 2040 9,635,445 1,811,464
Ser.418, Class C24, 10, 4s, 2043 8,950,000 1,932,691
Ser.12-124, Class Ul, 10, 4s, 2042 26,277,220 4,945,373
Ser.12-40, Class MI, 10, 4s, 2041 13,507,841 2,402,033
Ser.418, Class C15, 10, 3 1/2s, 2043 18,269,000 3,939,662
Ser.13-55, Class IK, 10, 3s, 2043 9,246,000 1,349,084
Ser.13-35, Class IP, 10, 3s, 2042 10,626,850 1,298,053
Ser.13-55, Class PI, 10, 3s, 2042 17,915,061 2,338,095
Ser.13-30, Class IP, 10, 3s, 2041 9,427,840 1,026,692
Ser.13-23, Class LI, 3s, 2041 10,842,160 1,197,733
Ser.03-W10, Class 1, 10, 1.147s, 2043 8,679,705 282,768
Ser.01-50, Class B1, 10, 0.405s, 2041 836,915 8,369
Ser.2002-W6, Class 1A10, 0.173s, 2042 1,070,260 2,341
Ser.2005-W4, Class 1A10, 0.095s, 2035 236,140 664
Ser.03-34, Class P1, PO, zero %, 2043 228,299 184,922
Ser.07-64, Class LO, PO, zero %, 2037 124,430 110,479
Ser.07-14, Class KO, PO, zero %, 2037 366,294 320,562
Ser.06-125, Class 0X, PO, zero %, 2037 51,053 46,503
Ser.06-84, Class 0T, PO, zero %, 2036 39,393 35,413
Ser.06-46, Class 0C, PO, zero %, 2036 35,398 31,233
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( )

Government National Mortgage Association

IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB

Ser.

IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB

Ser.

IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB
IFB

Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.
Ser.

Ser.11-56, Class SA, 23.751s, 2041
Ser.10-158, Class SD, 14.483s, 2040
Ser.11-70, Class WS, 9.355s, 2040
Ser.11-72, Class SE, 7.174s, 2041
Ser.11-61, Class CS, 10, 6.508s, 2035
Ser.12-26, Class SP, 10, 6.478s, 2042
Ser.10-109, Class SB, 6.428s, 2040
10-9, Class XD, 10, 6.425s, 2040
Ser.11-3, Class SG, 10, 6.378s, 2041
Ser.10-56, Class SC, 10, 6.328s, 2040
Ser.10-35, Class CS, 10, 6.298s, 2040
Ser.11-56, Class MI, 10, 6.278s, 2041
Ser.10-20, Class SE, 10, 6.078s, 2040
Ser.13-113, Class SL, 10, 6.058s, 2042
Ser.13-87, Class AS, 10, 6.028s, 2043
Ser.13-87, Class SA, 10, 6.028s, 2043
Ser.13-124, Class SC, 10, 6.028s, 2041
Ser.13-129, Class SN, 10, 5.978s, 2043
Ser.13-99, Class SL, 10, 5.978s, 2043
Ser.10-20, Class SC, 10, 5.978s, 2040
Ser.13-129, Class SA, 10, 5.928s, 2043
Ser.11-94, Class SA, 10, 5.928s, 2041
Ser.11-146, Class AS, 10, 5.925s, 2041
13-149, Class MS, 10, 5.922s, 2039
Ser.10-158, Class SA, 10, 5.878s, 2040
Ser.10-151, Class SA, 10, 5.878s, 2040
Ser.10-120, Class SA, 10, 5.878s, 2040
Ser.11-128, Class TS, 10, 5 7/8s, 2041
Ser.11-13, Class SB, 10, 5.778s, 2041
Ser.11-70, Class SM, 10, 5.715s, 2041
Ser.10-31, Class SA, 10, 5.578s, 2040
Ser.10-37, Class SG, 10, 5.528s, 2040
Ser.10-42, Class SK, 10, 5.498s, 2040
13-3, Class IT, 10, 5s, 2043

11-116, Class 1B, 10, 5s, 2040

13-16, Class 1B, 10, 5s, 2040

10-35, Class Ul, 10, 5s, 2040

10-9, Class Ul, 10, 5s, 2040

09-121, Class Ul, 10, 5s, 2039

12-129, Class 10, 10, 4 1/2s, 2042
10-35, Class QI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2040
10-9, Class QI, 10, 4 1/2s, 2040
11-116, Class IA, 10, 4 1/2s, 2039
12-56, Class 1B, 10, 4s, 2042

13-37, Class JI, 10, 3 1/2s, 2043
13-27, Class PI, 10, 3 1/2s, 2042
12-71, Class Al, 10, 3 1/2s, 2042
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10,309,384
2,780,250
11,858,000
9,422,000
15,967,354
9,236,566
10,750,502
35,183,282
3,699,068
3,912,346
15,815,538
5,590,772
12,509,446
5,312,164
5,313,809
9,669,246
6,145,751
7,484,250
9,710,099
7,751,316
3,958,667
14,515,015
7,744,712
11,755,000
4,691,096
4,658,431
9,730,610
25,380,281
7,748,542
5,789,000
10,149,991
12,983,882
7,426,802
8,997,395
10,762,073
18,699,223
10,564,792
70,310,063
20,623,978
8,650,870
9,411,689
31,347,301
8,500,812
17,717,874
9,813,324
11,833,690
22,519,650

15,983,462
3,410,866
11,774,164
9,400,612
2,303,291
2,272,472
2,225,137
6,915,626
725,461
728,831
3,022,824
1,253,731
2,230,434
975,695
902,604
1,654,001
1,047,052
1,223,750
1,802,680
1,377,099
662,483
2,618,509
1,576,775
1,899,167
842,193
836,887
1,747,812
5,418,690
1,374,032
1,425,715
1,717,900
2,109,751
1,138,529
1,876,486
926,321
1,928,400
2,194,828
14,419,541
4,212,448
2,104,757
1,958,698
6,511,963
1,309,805
3,691,345
1,542,066
1,930,903
2,939,039
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(48.2%)
( )
Government National Mortgage Association
Ser.13-18, Class GI, 10, 3 1/2s, 2041 10,530,134 1,684,821
Ser.12-48, Class KI, 10, 3 1/2s, 2039 8,943,827 1,492,814
Ser.13-53, Class PI, 10, 3s, 2041 15,616,106 2,087,093
Ser.13-23, Class IK, 10, 3s, 2037 3,988,575 691,579
IFB Ser.11-70, Class YI, 10, 0.15s, 2040 15,722,313 83,800
Ser.10-151, Class KO, PO, zero %, 2037 796,140 689,823
Ser.06-36, Class 0D, PO, zero %, 2036 45,913 42,412
Structured Asset Securities Corp. 144A
Ser.98-RF3, Class A, 10, 6.1s, 2028 443,546 73,185
IFB Ser.07-4, Class 1A3, 10, 5.997s, 2045 32,273,154 5,647,802
308,334,118
(15.8%)
Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser.05-5, Class B, 5.223s, 2045 6,500,000 6,768,450
FRB Ser.05-1, Class A4, 5.168s, 2042 1,075,127 1,107,994
Ser.04-4, Class D, 5.073s, 2042 994,000 1,020,093
Ser.07-1, Class XW, 10, 0.323s, 2049 8,699,398 68,490
Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.04-4, Class XC, 10, 0.823s, 2042 16,162,580 64,586
Ser.04-5, Class XC, 10, 0.697s, 2041 31,886,828 170,021
Ser.02-PB2, Class XC, 10, 0.403s, 2035 6,627,411 66
Ser.07-5, Class XW, 10, 0.367s, 2051 19,721,270 192,598
Ser.05-1, Class XW, 10, 0.038s, 2042 221,636,795 50,533
Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc. Ser.04-PR3I,
Class X1, 10, 0.895s, 2041 4,452,664 34,824
Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc. 144A
FRB Ser.06-PW11, Class B, 5.443s, 2039 1,881,000 1,877,050
Ser.06-PW14, Class X1, 10, 0.167s, 2038 16,028,404 275,689
CFCRE Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB Ser.11-C2,
Class D, 5.559s, 2047 1,750,000 1,791,650
Citigroup Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser.12-GC8, Class D, 4.878s, 2045 7,098,000 6,540,807
Ser.06-C5, Class XC, 10, 0.144s, 2049 112,018,142 1,646,667
Citigroup/Deutsche Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.07-CD4, Class XW, 10, 0.378s, 2049 46,219,725 499,173
Ser.07-CD4, Class XC, 10, 0.169s, 2049 146,564,270 1,377,704
Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser.07-C9, Class AJ, 5.65s, 2049 3,377,000 3,549,565
Pass-Through Certificates Ser.12-CR3, Class XA, 10,
2.204s, 2045 25,114,345 3,234,728
Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser.07-C9, Class AJFL, 0.864s, 2049 1,943,000 1,709,840
Pass-Through Certificates Ser.06-C8, Class XS, 10,
0.162s, 2046 50,260,534 659,548
Credit Suisse First Boston Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser.05-C5, Class C, 5.1s, 2038 1,487,000 1,524,937
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Certificates FRB Ser.07-C4,
Class A2, 5.761s, 2039 3,069,464 3,074,931
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Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Certificates 144A Ser.07-C2,
Class AX, 10, 0.071s, 2049 84,643,848 278,224
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp. Ser.03-CPN1,
Class E, 4.891s, 2035 1,528,000 1,528,000
CS First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp. 144A
Ser.98-Cl1, Class F, 6s, 2040 1,846,736 2,031,409
Ser.03-C3, Class AX, 10, 1.322s, 2038 4,086,335 41
Ser.02-CP3, Class AX, 10, 1.23s, 2035 1,523,954 10,636
DBRR Trust 144A FRB Ser.13-EZ3, Class A, 1.636s, 2049 9,610,402 9,625,418
Deutsche Bank-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A FRB
Ser.11-LC2A, Class D, 5.444s, 2044 500,000 500,617
DLJ Commercial Mortgage Corp. 144A FRB Ser.98-CG1,
Class B4, 7.172s, 2031 192,289 192,574
First Union National Bank-Bank of America Commercial
Mortgage Trust 144A Ser.01-C1, Class 3, 10, 1.692s, 2033 974,910 4,760
GE Business Loan Trust 144A Ser.04-2, Class D, 2.924s, 2032 209,192 104,069
GE Capital Commercial Mortgage Corp. 144A
Ser.05-C3, Class XC, 10, 0.16s, 2045 260,189,922 725,935
Ser.07-C1, Class XC, 10, 0.112s, 2049 124,956,542 642,776
GE Commercial Mortgage Corporation Trust FRB Ser.05-C1,
Class B, 4.846s, 2048 3,997,000 4,093,895
GMAC Commercial Mortgage Securities, Inc.
Ser.97-C1, Class X, 10, 1.291s, 2029 2,316,011 61,557
Ser.05-C1, Class X1, 10, 0.602s, 2043 30,327,605 221,301
Greenwich Capital Commercial Funding Corp. FRB Ser.05-GG3,
Class B, 4.894s, 2042 1,894,000 1,944,570
GS Mortgage Securities Corp. Il 144A Ser.06-GG6, Class XC, 10,
0.082s, 2038 91,921,304 106,721
GS Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser.04-GG2, Class D, 5.645s, 2038 1,628,000 1,653,946
Ser.06-GG8, Class AJ, 5.622s, 2039 866,000 847,042
Ser.06-GG6, Class A2, 5.506s, 2038 1,454,564 1,472,746
GS Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
Ser.98-C1, Class F, 6s, 2030 125,225 125,225
FRB Ser.GC10, Class D, 4.415s, 2046 3,433,000 3,023,100
JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
FRB Ser.07-CB20, Class AJ, 6.072s, 2051 3,663,000 3,742,121
FRB Ser.07-LD12, Class A3, 5.925s, 2051 19,773,000 20,272,130
FRB Ser.06-LDP7, Class B, 5.863s, 2045 3,516,000 3,042,594
Ser.07-LD12, Class A2, 5.827s, 2051 98,240 98,240
FRB Ser.07-LD11, Class A2, 5.798s, 2049 2,303,860 2,308,468
FRB Ser.04-CB9, Class B, 5.647s, 2041 2,374,000 2,436,911
FRB Ser.06-CB14, Class A3B, 5.486s, 2044 811,924 814,261
Ser.02-C3, Class D, 5.314s, 2035 188,174 188,409
FRB Ser.04-CBX, Class B, 5.021s, 2037 1,143,000 1,134,532
FRB Ser.13-C10, Class D, 4.161s, 2047 1,709,000 1,456,924
Ser.06-LDP8, Class X, 10, 0.546s, 2045 50,202,452 706,700
Ser.07-LDPX, Class X, 10, 0.302s, 2049 66,980,878 577,710
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JPMorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust 144A
FRB Ser.10-C1, Class D, 6.312s, 2043 3,439,000 3,627,805
FRB Ser.07-CB20, Class C, 6.172s, 2051 1,556,000 1,453,506
FRB Ser.01-C1, Class H, 5.626s, 2035 1,338,565 1,341,243
FRB Ser.11-C3, Class E, 5.541s, 2046 1,416,000 1,464,994
FRB Ser.12-C8, Class D, 4.668s, 2045 5,984,000 5,800,447
FRB Ser.12-LC9, Class E, 4.427s, 2047 932,000 819,583
FRB Ser.12_1C9, Class D, 4.427s, 2047 3,277,000 3,088,316
Ser.05-CB12, Class X1, 10, 0.34s, 2037 25,808,440 149,560
Ser.06-LDP6, Class X1, 10, 0.078s, 2043 48,087,106 139,741
LB Commercial Conduit Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.99-C1, Class F, 6.41s, 2031 248,114 249,974
Ser.99-C1, Class G, 6.41s, 2031 851,777 886,814
Ser.98-C4, Class G, 5.6s, 2035 93,740 96,009
Ser.98-C4, Class H, 5.6s, 2035 808,000 857,127
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser.06-C6, Class AJ, 5.452s, 2039 3,913,000 4,186,268
Ser.06-C7, Class A2, 5.3s, 2038 2,170,479 2,260,857
Ser.07-C2, Class XW, 10, 0.538s, 2040 5,910,496 105,538
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser.04-C1, Class G, 5.077s, 2036 7,400,000 7,002,294
Ser.06-C7, Class XW, 10, 0.651s, 2038 37,064,025 665,522
Ser.05-C5, Class XCL, 10, 0.462s, 2040 83,829,807 768,552
Ser.05-C2, Class XCL, 10, 0.348s, 2040 137,505,314 477,968
Ser.06-C7, Class XCL, 10, 0.256s, 2038 61,933,991 1,087,685
Ser.05-C7, Class XCL, 10, 0.207s, 2040 116,880,592 458,406
Ser.07-C2, Class XCL, 10, 0.131s, 2040 130,919,906 2,089,613
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Investors, Inc. Ser.96-C2, Class JS, 10,
2.377s, 2028 39,018 4
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust
FRB Ser.08-C1, Class AJ, 6.263s, 2051 1,828,000 1,906,970
FRB Ser.07-C1, Class A3, 5.852s, 2050 1,012,000 1,036,622
FRB Ser.05-CKI1, Class B, 5.28s, 2037 10,872,000 11,169,893
Merrill Lynch Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.04-KEY2, Class XC, 10, 0.93s, 2039 12,752,006 71,067
Ser.05-MCP1, Class XC, 10, 0.59s, 2043 36,006,277 276,492
Merrill Lynch/Countrywide Commercial Mortgage Trust FRB
Ser.06-4, Class A2FL, 0.294s, 2049 480,986 480,385
Merrill Lynch/Countrywide Financial Corp. Commercial
Mortgage Trust Ser.06-4, Class AJ, 5.239s, 2049 1,286,000 1,221,700
Mezz Cap Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.04-C1, Class X, 10, 8.619s, 2037 764,431 35,393
Ser.06-C4, Class X, 10, 6.109s, 2045 4,937,942 481,449
Ser.05-C3, Class X, 10, 5.953s, 2044 1,762,681 166,045
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust
FRB Ser.06-T23, Class A2, 5.741s, 2041 62,690 62,690
Ser.07-1Q14, Class A2, 5.61s, 2049 877,497 884,663
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(48.2%)
( )
Morgan Stanley Capital | Trust
FRB Ser.07-HQ12, Class A2, 5.579s, 2049 2,003,220 2,009,229
FRB Ser.07-HQ12, Class A2FX, 5.579s, 2049 6,133,031 6,256,919
Morgan Stanley ReREMIC Trust 144A FRB Ser.10-C30A,
Class A3B, 5.246s, 2043 424,262 432,590
Morgan Stanley/Bank of America/Merrill Lynch Trust 144A
Ser.13-C10, Class D, 4.083s, 2046 1,803,000 1,438,632
TIAA Real Estate CDO, Ltd. Ser.03-1A, Class E, 8s, 2038 1,577,941 394,485
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser.12-C3, Class D, 4.958s, 2049 2,810,000 2,552,171
Ser.12-C4, Class XA, 10, 1.884s, 2045 23,873,626 2,784,190
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser.06-C24, Class AJ, 5.658s, 2045 2,171,000 2,093,495
Ser.05-C17, Class D, 5.396s, 2042 6,740,000 6,638,226
Ser.06-C29, 10, 0.393s, 2048 177,523,974 2,089,457
Ser.07-C34, 10, 0.337s, 2046 16,304,776 197,288
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
Ser.05-C18, Class XC, 10, 0.326s, 2042 22,783,196 90,905
Ser.06-C26, Class XC, 10, 0.051s, 2045 10,954,877 20,157
WF-RBS Commercial Mortgage Trust 144A
FRB Ser.11-C4, Class E, 5.248s, 2044 3,999,768 3,892,377
FRB Ser.12-C10, Class D, 4.46s, 2045 2,618,000 2,342,901
FRB Ser.13-C11, Class D, 4.184s, 2045 1,605,000 1,338,169
194,655,892
(7.3%)
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc. Ser.2005-WF2, Class AF4,
4.964s, 2035 1,141,114 1,138,261
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc. 144a Ser.10-8, Class 1A2,
5 1/2s, 2036 1,300,000 1,274,000
Countrywide Asset Backed Certificates FRB Ser.05-AB1,
Class A3, 0.77s, 2035 10,723,146 10,052,949
First Plus Home Loan Trust Ser.97-3, Class Bl, 7.79s, 2023
(In default) | 134,710 13
Harborview Mortgage Loan Trust FRB Ser.05-9, Class 2A1B,
0.543s, 2035 7,878,121 7,216,359
Mortgageit Trust FRB Ser.05-1, Class 1M2, 0.76s, 2035 3,861,035 3,262,876
WAMU Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates
FRB Ser.05-AR11, Class A1C3, 0.68s, 2045 4,778,701 3,942,428
FRB Ser.2004-AR13, Class AlB2, 0.678s, 2034 12,169,628 10,952,665
FRB Ser.05-AR19, Class A1C3, 0.67s, 2045 12,214,453 10,260,141
FRB Ser.05-AR11, Class Al1B2, 0.62s, 2045 4,994,982 4,295,684
FRB Ser.05-AR13, Class AlC4, 0.6s, 2045 20,164,757 17,140,044
FRB Ser.05-AR17, Class A1B2, 0.58s, 2045 6,751,251 5,806,076
FRB Ser.05-AR11, Class A1B3, 0.57s, 2045 8,897,377 7,740,718
FRB Ser.05-AR8, Class 2AC3, 0.56s, 2045 5,236,264 4,558,167
FRB Ser.2005-AR17, Class A1B3, 0.52s, 2045 2,008,712 1,777,710
89,418,091
( 544,315,512 ) 592,408,101
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(34.3%)
(5.9%)
Government National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates
5s, TBA, November 1, 2043 10,000,000 10,884,375
4 1/2s, TBA, November 1, 2043 45,000,000 48,747,654
3 1/2s, TBA, November 1, 2043 12,000,000 12,464,063
72,096,092
(28.4%)
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Pass-Through Certificates
4s, with due dates from June 1, 2042 to June 1, 2043 35,157,211 36,805,205
Federal National Mortgage Association Pass-Through Certificates
7s, January 1, 2017 2,551 2,642
6s, TBA, November 1, 2043 10,000,000 10,960,938
4s, with due dates from June 1, 2042 to November 1, 2042 124,437,157 130,386,808
4s, TBA, December 1, 2043 6,000,000 6,303,985
4s, TBA, November 1, 2043 16,000,000 16,857,501
3 1/2s, with due dates from November 1, 2042 to May 1, 2043 51,744,977 52,743,494
3 1/2s, TBA, December 1, 2043 22,000,000 22,515,625
3 1/2s, TBA, November 1, 2043 22,000,000 22,575,782
3s, TBA, November 1, 2043 51,000,000 50,338,591
349,490,571
( 429,101,386 ) 421,586,663
0
2s, 2020 9 30 429,000 431,074
( 428,734 ) 431,074
(27.2%)
(1.7%)
Ashland, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
4 3/4s, 2022 571,000 548,160
Celanese US Holdings, LLC sr. notes 5 7/8s, 2021 (Germany) 835,000 893,450
CF Industries, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
7 1/8s, 2020 112,000 133,427
Cytec Industries, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3 1/2s, 2023 355,000 335,758
Eastman Chemical Co. sr. unsec. notes 3.6s, 2022 1,245,000 1,216,204
Eastman Chemical Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.3s, 2018 300,000 344,810
FMC Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.2s, 2019 625,000 690,542
Georgia-Pacific, LLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7 3/4s, 2029 470,000 600,662
International Paper Co. sr. unsec. notes 8.7s, 2038 510,000 718,331
International Paper Co. sr. unsec. notes 7.95s, 2018 1,400,000 1,734,372
LYB International Finance BV sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4s,
2023 (Netherlands) 610,000 612,737
LyondelIBasell Industries NV sr. unsec. notes 6s, 2021 1,935,000 2,251,380
Mosaic Co. (The) sr. unsec. notes 3 3/4s, 2021 640,000 631,552
Packaging Corp. of America sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 1/2s, 2023 215,000 219,802
Packaging Corp. of America sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.9s, 2022 945,000 935,881
PPG Industries, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. debs.7.4s, 2019 1,130,000 1,361,859

102/300



Q7.2%)

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Rock-Tenn Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.9s, 2022 899,000 948,366

Rock-Tenn Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4_45s, 2019 393,000 420,331

Temple-Inland, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 5/8s, 2018 1,080,000 1,261,418

Union Carbide Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 7 3/4s, 2096 135,000 150,123

Westvaco Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7.95s, 2031 1,470,000 1,746,109

Weyerhaeuser Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7 3/8s, 2032 1,385,000 1,722,164

Xstrata Finance Canada, Ltd. 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.

notes 6s, 2041 (Canada) 590,000 568,612

Xstrata Finance Canada, Ltd. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. bonds 5.8s, 2016 (Canada) 610,000 671,789
20,717,839

(0.8%)

B/E Aerospace, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 1/4s, 2022 1,085,000 1,113,481

Crown Americas, LLC/Crown Americas Capital Corp. IV 144A

company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 4 1/2s, 2023 450,000 418,500

Delphi Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5s, 2023 2,099,000 2,214,445

Legrand France SA sr. unsec. unsub. debs 8 1/2s, 2025 (France) 1,393,000 1,824,343

Parker Hannifin Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes Ser.MTN,

6 1/4s, 2038 435,000 530,642

Republic Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 5.7s, 2041 595,000 648,772

Republic Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 3.8s, 2018 720,000 771,872

Republic Services, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 5 1/2s, 2019 660,000 752,203

Staples, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 2 3/4s, 2018 905,000 916,710

United Technologies Corp. sr. unsec. notes 5.7s, 2040 100,000 116,961

United Technologies Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.1s, 2022 560,000 553,201
9,861,130

(2.8%)

America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6 1/8s, 2040 (Mexico) 880,000 941,190

America Movil SAB de CV company guaranty unsec. unsub.

notes 2 3/8s, 2016 (Mexico) 670,000 682,900

American Tower Corp. sr. unsec. notes 7s, 2017 1,210,000 1,404,845

CC Holdings GS V, LLC/Crown Castle GS 111 Corp. company

guaranty sr. notes 3.849s, 2023 1,415,000 1,343,336

CenturyLink, Inc. sr. unsec. debs. notes Ser.G, 6 7/8s, 2028 2,025,000 1,873,125

Comcast Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

6 1/2s, 2035 700,000 851,347

Corning, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 3/4s, 2040 265,000 299,392

Crown Castle Towers, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. notes

4.883s, 2020 1,915,000 2,059,778

Frontier Communications Corp. sr. unsec. notes 8 1/2s, 2020 800,000 914,000

NBCUniversal Media, LLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.4s, 2040 845,000 1,022,412

Orange SA sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 3/8s, 2019 (France) 880,000 993,619

Orange SA sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 1/8s, 2021 (France) 886,000 913,680

Qwest Corp. sr. unsec. notes 6 3/4s, 2021 1,394,000 1,523,055
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Rogers Communications, Inc. company guaranty notes 6.8s,

2018 (Canada) 610,000 733,115

Rogers Communications, Inc. company guaranty Sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4 1/2s, 2043 (Canada) 425,000 376,578

SBA Tower Trust 144A company guaranty sr. notes 5.101s, 2017 2,425,000 2,642,313

SBA Tower Trust 144A notes 2.933s, 2017 280,000 288,834

SES 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5.3s,

2043 (France) 920,000 878,306

TCI Communications, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

debs.7 7/8s, 2026 2,435,000 3,240,927

Telecom Italia Capital SA company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6.175s, 2014 (ltaly) 621,000 637,978

Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty Sr. unsec. notes

5.462s, 2021 (Spain) 1,845,000 1,954,803

Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4.57s, 2023 (Spain) 770,000 767,455

Telefonica Emisiones SAU company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 3.192s, 2018 (Spain) 850,000 862,459

Time Warner Cable, Inc. company guaranty sr. notes 7.3s, 2038 1,165,000 1,174,663

Time Warner Cable, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

6 3/4s, 2018 355,000 399,398

Time Warner Cable, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6 3/4s, 2039 350,000 333,377

Time Warner Cable, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 5 1/2s, 2041 85,000 69,584

Time Warner Cable, Inc. sr. unsec.FRN notes 8 3/4s, 2019 800,000 953,392

Time Warner Entertainment Co., LP company guaranty sr.

unsec. bonds 8 3/8s, 2033 449,000 491,651

Time Warner Entertainment Co., LP sr. unsec. debs.8 3/8s, 2023 1,119,000 1,313,849

Verizon Communications, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.4s, 2033 985,000 1,112,291

Verizon New Jersey, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

bonds 8s, 2022 640,000 772,829

Verizon Pennsylvania, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds

8.35s, 2030 795,000 972,065
34,798,546

(2.4%)

Autonation, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

6 3/4s, 2018 645,000 741,750

CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. debs.7 7/8s, 2030 2,400,000 2,985,926

Choice Hotels International, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 5.7s, 2020 1,195,000 1,244,294

Expedia, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

5.95s, 2020 950,000 1,008,359

Ford Motor Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7.4s, 2046 350,000 432,740

Ford Motor Credit Co., LLC sr. unsec. notes 4.207s, 2016 2,760,000 2,945,778

Ford Motor Credit Co., LLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 7/8s, 2021 1,675,000 1,919,002

Ford Motor Credit Co., LLC sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 3/4s, 2021 400,000 455,627

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes

3 1/4s, 2018 661,000 658,521

General Motors Financial Co., Inc. 144A sr. unsec. notes

2 3/4s, 2016 944,000 951,080
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GLP Capital LP/GLP Financing 11, Inc. 144A company guaranty

sr. unsec. notes 4 3/8s, 2018 130,000 132,600

Grupo Televisa SAB sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 5/8s,

2025 (Mexico) 510,000 596,001

Historic TW, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

9.15s, 2023 675,000 910,456

Host Hotels & Resorts LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6s, 2021 266,000 294,444

Host Hotels & Resorts LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 1/4s, 2022 124,000 131,182

Hyatt Hotels Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3 3/8s, 2023 660,000 623,840

L Brands, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6 5/8s, 2021 840,000 924,000

L Brands, Inc. sr. notes 5 5/8s, 2022 820,000 845,625

Macy*s Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 6.9s, 2029 345,000 394,004

Macy*s Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

6.65s, 2024 405,000 482,294

Macy"s Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

5 1/8s, 2042 240,000 231,616

Macy"s Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

3 7/8s, 2022 360,000 359,025

Marriott International, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3s, 2019 780,000 794,128

News America Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. debs.

7 3/4s, 2024 870,000 1,051,352

News America Holdings, Inc. debs.7 3/4s, 2045 790,000 995,707

News America, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6.2s, 2034 675,000 754,693

NVR, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.95s, 2022 740,000 720,344

0"Reilly Automotive, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 3.85s, 2023 640,000 628,708

Owens Corning company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 9s, 2019 114,000 140,790

Time Warner, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds 7.7s, 2032 1,850,000 2,365,070

TJIX Cos., Inc. sr. unsec. notes 2 1/2s, 2023 1,020,000 953,484

Walt Disney Co. (The) sr. unsec. notes 2 3/4s, 2021 1,305,000 1,290,228

Walt Disney Co. (The) sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 3/8s, 2041 520,000 504,403
29,467,161

(2.3%)

Altria Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. bonds 4s, 2024 694,000 693,050

Altria Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 9.7s, 2018 308,000 413,599

Altria Group, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

9 1/4s, 2019 586,000 782,145

Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide, Inc. company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 8.2s, 2039 1,313,000 1,975,243

Bacardi, Ltd. 144A unsec. notes 4 1/2s, 2021 (Bermuda) 1,430,000 1,527,386

Campbell Soup Co. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 8 7/8s, 2021 715,000 942,818

Corrections Corp. of America company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4 1/8s, 2020 285,000 278,588

CVS Pass-Through Trust 144A company guaranty sr. notes

7.507s, 2032 2,140,272 2,595,305

Darden Restaurants, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6.8s, 2037 2,270,000 2,361,517

Delhaize Group company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 4 1/8s,

2019 (Belgium) 360,000 374,813
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Diageo Investment Corp. company guaranty Sr. unsec.

debs.8s, 2022 675,000 898,376

Erac USA Finance, LLC 144A sr. unsec. notes 4 1/2s, 2021 2,235,000 2,355,851

Kerry Group Financial Services 144A company guaranty sr.

unsec. notes 3.2s, 2023 (lreland) 1,300,000 1,214,742

Kraft Foods Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 1/2s, 2040 3,905,000 4,667,715

Kraft Foods Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5s, 2042 420,000 422,135

Kroger Co. (The) company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6.4s, 2017 605,000 699,437

Kroger Co. (The) sr. notes 6.15s, 2020 200,000 232,376

McDonald"s Corp. sr. unsec.Ser_MTN, 6.3s, 2038 680,000 850,865

McDonald®*s Corp. sr. unsec. bonds 6.3s, 2037 530,000 664,752

McDonald®s Corp. sr. unsec. notes 5.7s, 2039 775,000 907,082

Molson Coors Brewing Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 5s, 2042 610,000 606,671

SABMiller Holdings, Inc. 144A company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 4.95s, 2042 630,000 643,861

WPP Finance UK company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 8s, 2014

(United Kingdom) 1,370,000 1,452,118
27,560,445

(2.3%)

Access Midstream Partners LP/ACMP Finance Corp. company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5 7/8s, 2021 602,000 645,645

Anadarko Finance Co. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes Ser.B, 7 1/2s, 2031 2,880,000 3,667,199

BG Energy Capital PLC 144A company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4s, 2021 (United Kingdom) 200,000 208,385

BP Capital Markets PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.742s, 2021 (United Kingdom) 1,860,000 2,053,726

BP Capital Markets PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4 1/2s, 2020 (United Kingdom) 620,000 679,900

Continental Resources, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4 1/2s, 2023 450,000 453,375

DCP Midstream, LLC 144A sr. unsec. notes 5.35s, 2020 775,000 826,785

Kerr-McGee Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

7 7/8s, 2031 885,000 1,135,574

Lukoil International Finance BV 144A company guaranty sr.

unsec. notes 4.563s, 2023 (Russia) 1,040,000 996,012

Marathon Petroleum Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 1/2s, 2041 525,000 595,216

Motiva Enterprises, LLC 144A sr. unsec. notes 6.85s, 2040 895,000 1,112,924

Noble Holding International, Ltd. company guaranty sr. unsec.

notes 6.05s, 2041 1,095,000 1,129,712

Petrobras Global Finance BV company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4 3/8s, 2023 (Brazil) 820,000 757,178

Petrohawk Energy Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

7 1/4s, 2018 2,910,000 3,154,440

Plains Exploration & Production Co. company guaranty sr.

unsec. notes 6 3/4s, 2022 1,680,000 1,847,412

Pride International, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 7 7/8s, 2040 2,160,000 2,952,027

Ras Laffan Liquefied Natural Gas Co., Ltd. 144A company

guaranty sr. notes 5 1/2s, 2014 (Qatar) 1,015,000 1,055,600
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Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

5.65s, 2020 240,000 262,849

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6.2s, 2018 135,000 155,327

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC sr. notes 8s, 2019 650,000 791,529

Statoil ASA company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5.1s,

2040 (Norway) 1,900,000 2,028,163

Weatherford Bermuda company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

9 5/8s, 2019 (Bermuda) 584,000 745,141

Weatherford International, LLC company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 6.8s, 2037 205,000 219,696

Weatherford International, LLC company guaranty Sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 6.35s, 2017 240,000 272,499

Weatherford International, Ltd. company guaranty notes 6 1/2s,

2036 (Bermuda) 82,000 84,803
27,831,117

(10.0%)

ABN Amro Bank NV 144A sr. unsec. notes 4 1/4s,

2017 (Netherlands) 4,460,000 4,799,807

Aflac, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.9s, 2039 1,725,000 2,180,209

Aflac, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6.45s, 2040 675,000 817,807

American International Group, Inc. jr. sub. FRB bonds

8.175s, 2068 1,414,000 1,742,755

Aon PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 1/4s, 2042 3,255,000 2,852,705

Associates Corp. of North America sr. unsec. notes 6.95s, 2018 1,764,000 2,107,999

Assurant, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6 3/4s, 2034 1,485,000 1,631,798

AXA SA 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN notes 6.463s, perpetual

maturity (France) 1,630,000 1,656,488

Banco del Estado de Chile 144A sr. unsec. notes 2s, 2017 (Chile) 1,000,000 981,642

Banco do Brasil SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 5 7/8s, 2022 (Brazil) 1,965,000 1,982,923

Bank of America Corp. sub. notes 7 3/4s, 2015 1,465,000 1,622,319

Bank of America, NA sub. notes Ser.BKNT, 5.3s, 2017 905,000 1,004,990

Barclays Bank PLC 144A sub. notes 10.179s, 2021

(United Kingdom) 2,881,000 3,814,242

Barclays Bank PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 6.05s, 2017

(United Kingdom) 381,000 428,566

BBVA International Preferred SAU bank guaranty jr. unsec. sub.

FRN notes 5.919s, perpetual maturity (Spain) 1,135,000 1,066,900

Bear Stearns Cos., Inc. (The) sr. notes 6.4s, 2017 1,020,000 1,190,717

Bear Stearns Cos., Inc. (The) sr. unsec. notes 7 1/4s, 2018 1,685,000 2,031,994

Berkshire Hathaway Finance Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub. notes 4.3s, 2043 2,065,000 1,922,517

BPCE SA 144A unsec. sub. notes 5.7s, 2023 (France) 265,000 271,776

Capital One Bank USA NA unsec. sub. notes 3 3/8s, 2023 1,260,000 1,200,982

Citigroup, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 8 1/2s, 2019 100,000 129,388

Citigroup, Inc. sr. unsec. sub. FRN notes 0.528s, 2016 1,961,000 1,919,639

CNA Financial Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 3/4s, 2021 580,000 662,919

Commerzbank AG 144A unsec. sub. notes 8 1/8s,

2023 (Germany) 545,000 581,788
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Commonwealth Bank of Australia 144A sr. unsec. notes 5s,

2019 (Australia) 510,000 576,378
DDR Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7 7/8s, 2020 1,715,000 2,129,838
Duke Realty LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

6 3/4s, 2020 800,000 934,989
Duke Realty LP sr. unsec. notes 6 1/2s, 2018 390,000 451,551
EPR Properties unsec. notes 5 1/4s, 2023 1,150,000 1,148,712
Fifth Third Bancorp jr. unsec. sub. FRB bonds 5.1s, 2049 626,000 563,400
Genworth Financial, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 7 5/8s, 2021 1,075,000 1,318,042
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sr. notes 7 1/2s, 2019 940,000 1,151,549
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. notes 6.15s, 2018 595,000 689,601
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (The) sub. notes 6 3/4s, 2037 950,000 1,025,046
Hartford Financial Services Group, Inc. (The) sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 6 5/8s, 2040 3,548,000 4,408,315
HBOS PLC 144A sr. unsec. sub. notes 6 3/4s, 2018

(United Kingdom) 1,175,000 1,321,476
HBOS PLC 144A unsec. sub. bonds 6s, 2033 (United Kingdom) 2,520,000 2,457,504
Health Care REIT, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3 3/4s, 2023 825,000 787,033
Highwood Realty LP sr. unsec. bonds 5.85s, 2017 835,000 926,293
HSBC Bank USA, N.A. unsec. sub. notes 7s, 2039 2,000,000 2,519,948
HSBC USA Capital Trust 1 144A jr. bank guaranty unsec. notes

7.808s, 2026 955,000 970,519
Icahn Enterprises LP/lIcahn Enterprises Finance Corp. company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 7 3/4s, 2016 670,000 690,100
ING Bank N.V.144A unsec. sub. notes 5.8s, 2023 (Netherlands) 1,705,000 1,781,424
International Lease Finance Corp. sr. unsec. notes 6 1/4s, 2019 895,000 977,788
International Lease Finance Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. notes

4 7/8s, 2015 1,149,000 1,192,088
JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA sub. notes Ser.BKNT, 6s, 2017 404,000 465,712
JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA sub. notes Ser.BKNT, 6s, 2017 1,311,000 1,498,418
Leucadia National Corp. sr. unsec. bonds 5 1/2s, 2023 425,000 429,096
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc. 144A company guaranty jr. unsec.

sub. bonds 7.8s, 2037 130,000 141,700
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc. 144A notes 6 1/2s, 2035 1,715,000 1,902,050
Lloyds Bank PLC company guaranty sr. unsec. sub. notes

Ser.MTN, 6 1/2s, 2020 (United Kingdom) 4,335,000 4,897,822
Macquarie Bank, Ltd. 144A unsec. sub. notes 6 5/8s,

2021 (Australia) 2,880,000 3,200,832
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Co. 144A notes

8 7/8s, 2039 2,305,000 3,380,278
Metropolitan Life Global Funding I 144A notes 3s, 2023 715,000 689,118
Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 144A unsec. sub. notes 7.8s, 2025 3,000,000 3,863,163
Mid-America Apartments LP sr. unsec. notes 4.3s, 2023 150,000 150,319
Morgan Stanley sr. unsec. notes Ser.MTN, 5 3/4s, 2016 970,000 1,088,143
MPT Operating Partnership LP/MPT Finance Corp. company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6 7/8s, 2021 1,090,000 1,171,750
Nationwide Financial Services, Inc. notes 5 5/8s, 2015 500,000 524,925
Nationwide Mutual Insurance Co. 144A notes 9 3/8s, 2039 85,000 119,263
Nordea Bank AB 144A sub. notes 4 7/8s, 2021 (Sweden) 5,160,000 5,435,916
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OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc. 144A bonds 7s, 2033 1,010,000 1,002,842

Pacific LifeCorp 144A sr. notes 6s, 2020 1,575,000 1,767,053

Primerica, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 3/4s, 2022 357,000 378,005

Prudential Financial, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 6 5/8s, 2040 1,135,000 1,411,337

Prudential Holdings, LLC sr. FRN notes Ser.AGM, 1.127s, 2017 160,000 158,701

Rabobank Nederland 144A jr. unsec. sub. FRN notes 11s,

perpetual maturity (Netherlands) 1,255,000 1,650,325

Rayonier, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes

3 3/4s, 2022 570,000 554,602

Realty Income Corp. sr. unsec. notes 4.65s, 2023 455,000 470,335

Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (The) sr. sub. FRN notes 9 1/2s,

2022 (United Kingdom) 2,640,000 3,076,102

Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (The) unsec. sub. notes 6.1s, 2023

(United Kingdom) 1,465,000 1,507,323

Santander Issuances S.A. Unipersonal 144A bank guaranty

unsec. sub. notes 5.911s, 2016 (Spain) 2,600,000 2,709,643

Santander UK PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 5s, 2023

(United Kingdom) 565,000 563,198

SL Green Realty Corp./SL Green Operating Partnership/

Reckson Operating Partnership sr. unsec. notes 5s, 2018 1,185,000 1,272,088

Standard Chartered PLC 144A unsec. sub. notes 3.95s, 2023

(United Kingdom) 2,835,000 2,719,998

Tanger Properties, LP sr. unsec. notes 6 1/8s, 2020 645,000 756,287

Teachers Insurance & Annuity Association of America 144A

notes 6.85s, 2039 889,000 1,120,224

Travelers Property Casuality Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds

7 3/4s, 2026 975,000 1,290,578

Wachovia Bank NA sr. unsec. sub. notes 6.6s, 2038 250,000 312,044

WEA Finance, LLC 144A company guaranty sr. notes

7 1/8s, 2018 1,070,000 1,282,358

WEA Finance, LLC/WT Finance Aust.Pty. Ltd. 144A company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6 3/4s, 2019 810,000 971,620

Wells Fargo Bank, NA unsec. sub. FRN notes 0.473s, 2016 1,180,000 1,170,627

Willis Group Holdings PLC company guaranty Ssr. unsec. unsub.

notes 5 3/4s, 2021 750,000 822,749
122,551,008

(0.6%)

Actavis PLC sr. unsec. notes 4 5/8s, 2042 345,000 319,061

Actavis PLC sr. unsec. notes 3 1/4s, 2022 275,000 260,593

Aetna, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 3/4s, 2037 1,660,000 2,073,416

Fresenius Medical Care US Finance Il, Inc. 144A company

guaranty sr. unsec. notes 5 5/8s, 2019 356,000 380,920

Fresenius Medical Care US Finance, Inc. 144A company

guaranty sr. notes 5 3/4s, 2021 839,000 887,243

Mylan, Inc./PA 144A sr. unsec. notes 2.6s, 2018 375,000 377,075

Quest Diagnostics, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

6.95s, 2037 1,045,000 1,168,590

Quest Diagnostics, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

4 3/4s, 2020 244,000 261,037

UnitedHealth Group, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 5/8s, 2041 975,000 949,396

WellPoint, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 5/8s, 2042 665,000 620,970

7,298,301

109/300



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Q7.2%)
(0.4%)

Apple, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 3.85s, 2043 1,835,000 1,554,738

Brocade Communications Systems, Inc. company guaranty sr.

notes 6 7/8s, 2020 580,000 624,950

Fidelity National Information Services, Inc. company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 5s, 2022 1,075,000 1,105,885

SoftBank Corp. 144A sr. unsec. notes 4 1/2s, 2020 (Japan) 820,000 811,800

Xerox Corp. sr. unsec. notes 6.35s, 2018 1,205,000 1,389,540
5,486,913

(0.5%)

Burlington Northern Santa Fe, LLC sr. unsec. notes 5 3/4s, 2018 365,000 422,196

Burlington Northern Santa Fe, LLC sr. unsec. notes 5.4s, 2041 1,520,000 1,613,628

Continental Airlines, Inc. pass-through certificates

Ser.97-4A, 6.9s, 2019 778,665 833,172

Continental Airlines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser.98-1A,

6.648s, 2017 310,996 330,045

Kansas City Southern de Mexico SA de CV sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 2.35s, 2020 (Mexico) 154,000 147,383

Kansas City Southern Railway Co. (The) 144A sr. unsec.

notes 4.3s, 2043 286,000 255,634

Norfolk Southern Corp. sr. unsec. notes 6s, 2111 1,115,000 1,212,257

Southwest Airlines Co. pass-through certificates Ser.07-1,

6.15s, 2022 194,726 223,935

Union Pacific Corp. 144A pass-through certificates 5.214s, 2014 390,000 402,896

United AirLines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser.07-A,

6.636s, 2022 434,021 455,722
5,896,868

(3.4%)

Appalachian Power Co. sr. notes Ser.L, 5.8s, 2035 580,000 619,927

Arizona Public Services Co. sr. unsec. notes 4 1/2s, 2042 390,000 381,641

Beaver Valley Funding Corp. sr. bonds 9s, 2017 142,000 143,399

Boardwalk Pipelines LP company guaranty sr. unsec. notes

5 7/8s, 2016 980,000 1,095,430

CMS Energy Corp. sr. unsec. notes 8 3/4s, 2019 2,280,000 2,939,884

Commonwealth Edison Co. 1st mtge. sec. bonds 5 7/8s, 2033 480,000 556,450

Consolidated Edison Co. of New York sr. unsec. unsub.

notes 4.2s, 2042 710,000 668,846

Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC sr. mtge. notes 4 1/4s, 2041 725,000 697,761

EDP Finance BV 144A sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6s,

2018 (Netherlands) 1,940,000 2,051,550

El Paso Natural Gas Co. sr. unsec. unsub. bonds 8 3/8s, 2032 830,000 1,075,062

El Paso Pipeline Partners Operating Co., LP company guaranty

Sr. unsec. notes 6 1/2s, 2020 750,000 873,718

Electricite de France SA 144A sr. unsec. notes 6.95s,

2039 (France) 970,000 1,212,305

Electricite de France SA 144A unsec. sub. FRN notes 5 1/4s,

perpetual maturity (France) 2,895,000 2,833,481

Enel Finance International SA 144A company guaranty Sr. unsec.

notes 5 1/8s, 2019 (Netherlands) 695,000 745,654

Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 1/2s, 2042 2,265,000 2,488,331

Energy Transfer Partners LP sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5.2s, 2022 780,000 838,676
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Enterprise Products Operating, LLC company guaranty sr.

unsec. unsub. notes 4.85s, 2042 1,220,000 1,165,952
Iberdrola International BV company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub.
notes 6 3/4s, 2036 (Spain) 510,000 562,674
ITC Holdings Corp. 144A notes 5 7/8s, 2016 890,000 991,674
ITC Holdings Corp. 144A sr. unsec. notes 6.05s, 2018 330,000 375,501
Kansas Gas and Electric Co. bonds 5.647s, 2021 509,901 543,192
Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP sr. unsec. notes 6.85s, 2020 1,425,000 1,710,232
Kinder Morgan, Inc./DE 144A sr. notes 5s, 2021 89,000 89,000
Korea Gas Corp. 144A sr. unsec. unsub. notes 6 1/4s, 2042
(South Korea) 1,285,000 1,509,756
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Co. bonds 6 1/8s, 2036 1,000,000 1,133,538
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Co. sr. unsec. bonds 6 1/2s, 2037 410,000 484,474
MidAmerican Funding, LLC sr. bonds 6.927s, 2029 360,000 446,104
Narragansett Electric Co. (The) 144A sr. unsec. notes
4.17s, 2042 1,345,000 1,209,662
Oncor Electric Delivery Co., LLC bank guaranty unsec. sub.
notes 4.55s, 2041 1,455,000 1,361,681
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. sr. unsec. notes 6.35s, 2038 295,000 344,787
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. sr. unsub. notes 5.8s, 2037 785,000 868,963
PacifiCorp Sinking Fund 1st mtge.6 1/4s, 2037 460,000 565,135
Potomac Edison Co. 144A sr. bonds 5.8s, 2016 885,000 978,913
PPL WEM Holdings PLC 144A sr. unsec. notes 5 3/8s, 2021
(United Kingdom) 3,220,000 3,516,414
Teco Finance, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. unsub. notes
6.572s, 2017 340,000 395,184
Texas-New Mexico Power Co. 144A 1st mtge. bonds Ser.A,
9 1/2s, 2019 2,840,000 3,649,385
West Penn Power Co. 144A 1st mtge.5.95s, 2017 830,000 952,986
42,077,322
( 314,616,779 ) 333,546,650
(0.4%)
CA State G.0.Bonds (Build America Bonds), 7 1/2s, 4/1/34 770,000 1,010,848
IL State G.0.Bonds
4.421s, 1/1/15 410,000 423,805
4.071s, 1/1/14 1,220,000 1,226,454
North TX, Thruway Auth.Rev. Bonds (Build America Bonds),
6.718s, 1/1/49 675,000 828,299
OH State U. Rev. Bonds (Build America Bonds), 4.91s, 6/1/40 845,000 876,975
( 3,925,173 ) 4,366,381
0.2%)
Credit Suisse International
2.88/3 LIBOR-BBA/2023 11 2013 11 /2.88 146,570,000 2,532,730
(3.08)/3 LIBOR-BBA/2023 11 2013 11 /3.08 146,570,000 1,466
( 2,535,661 ) 2,534,196
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(D)
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr. 3s TBA
commitment (Call) 2013 12 /98.52 19,000,000 143,450
Federal National Mortgage Association 30 yr. 3s TBA
commitment (Call) 2013 12 /98.59 19,000,000 135,470
( 299,102 ) 278,920
(0.1%)*
Korea Development Bank sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4s, 2016
(South Korea) 800,000 852,587
( 797,867 ) 852,587
(GIRD)
Caesars Entertainment Operating Co., Inc. bank term loan FRN
Ser.B6, 5.488s, 2018 160,015 149,992
SunGard Data Systems, Inc. bank term loan FRN 1.953s, 2014 1,451 1,451
( 153,874 ) 151,443
(5.0%) /
0.07% 27,481,533 27,481,533
SSgA Prime Money Market Fund 0.02% 2,210,000 2,210,000
0.08% 0.13%
A8 $16,473,000 16,462,606
2014 8 21
0.11% 2014 7 24 *8 1,522,000 1,521,216
0.08% 0.09%
A8 13,319,000 13,313,779
2014 5 29
( 60,983,605 ) 60,989,134
1,357,157,693 ) 1,417,145,149
BKNT
FRB
FRN
G.0. Bonds
IFB
10
MTN
PO
TBA
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2012 11 2013 10 31
ASC820 ASC 820 0TC
1,227,849,965
‘
A
§
1933
/
6
ASC820
5
243,036,529
1447 1933 1447
TBA
2013 10 31
5 173 21,051,938 2013 12 (133,743)
10 35 4,457,578 2013 12 (20,051)
(153,794)
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2013 10 31 2,535,653 )
Credit Suisse International
2.98/3 LIBOR-BBA/2023 11 2013 11 /2.98 103,582,700 7,251
(2.98)/3 LIBOR-BBA/2023 11 2013 11 /2.98 103,582,700 2,709,723
2,716,974
2013 10 31
Credit Suisse International
2013 12
2.70625)/3 LIBOR-BBA/2023 12 17,100,000 9,234
( ) /2.70625
2013 12
(2.7165)/3 LIBOR-BBA/2023 12 17,100,000 1,026
/2.7165
10,260
2013 10 31 ( 28,943,438 )
Federal National Mortgage Association, 4s,
November 1, 2043 6,000,000 11/13/13 6,321,563
Federal National Mortgage Association, 3 1/2s,
November 1, 2043 22,000,000 11/13/13 22,575,782
28,897,345
2013 10 31
2,797,000 (176) 9/25/23 3 month USD- 2.92% 71,739
L1BOR-BBA
472,134,100 111,245 12/18/15 3 month USD- 0.75% (2,598,804)
LI1BOR-BBA
215,877,200 (413,758) 12/18/18 3 month USD- 2.05% (6,013,612)
LI1BOR-BBA
94,927,700 (1,088,845) 12/18/43 3 month USD- 3.85% 3,303,461
LI1BOR-BBA
158,458,300 (472,015) 12/18/23 3 month USD- 3.15% (6,461,739)
LI1BOR-BBA
(1,863,549) (11,698,955)
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Bank of America N.A.

1,754,689 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (24,574)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,358,279 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (63,461)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
Barclays Bank PLC
7,284,650 1/12/36 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 72,320
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,289,058 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (46,063)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,985,162 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (52,621)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,374,160 1/12/40 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 20,605
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,879,129 1/12/42 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (38,525)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,546,151 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (119,097)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
10,589,069 1/12/40 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 23,515
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
9,365,554 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 23,721
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,815,469 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (39,430)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,722,410 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (80,141)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,890,179 1/12/40 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 78,790
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
26,417,704 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (369,975)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,667,151 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (23,348)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Barclays Bank PLC

35,398,402 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (311,221)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
23,292,593 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 58,995
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,090,232 1/12/40 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 9,005
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,820,677 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (53,508)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,736,984 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (24,326)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,025,751 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 5,131
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
9,106,165 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (172,079)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,046,652 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (28,485)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
30,307,683 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (266,464)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
30,830,919 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 78,088
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
9,069,751 1/12/40 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 74,918
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
580,144 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (2,824)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,182,075 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (27,977)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,442,841 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 3,654
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
942,096 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 1,944
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Ginnie
Mae 11 pools
16,712,447 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 42,329
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Barclays Bank PLC

12,792,024 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (112,467)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
6,070,593 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (85,018)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,151,067 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (30,125)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,422,618 1/12/40 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 3,159
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
6,004,745 1/12/40 4.50% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 23,023
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
26,713,073 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 67,658
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,463,236 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 11,304
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
786,920 1/12/40 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 1,747
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,552,001 1/12/40 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 5,667
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,850,077 1/12/40 5.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 4,108
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
937,143 1/12/39 (6-00%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (2,136)
USD-LIBOR 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
991,595 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (8,718)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
26,595,844 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (233,830)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
32,535,780 1/12/39 (6.00%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (74,173)
USD-LIBOR 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
18,996,980 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 167,021
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
23,239,843 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 52,981
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Barclays Bank PLC

6,387,303 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 89,453
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,017,308 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (5,590)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,008,594 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (2,795)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,008,594 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (2,795)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,358,279 1712741 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (63,461)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,030,695 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (5,609)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
10,469,894 1712739 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (14,568)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,030,454 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (5,608)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,379,119 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (12,125)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,172,833 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 8,036
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Ginnie
Mae Il pools
8,447,618 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (74,271)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,691,264 1712741 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (50,857)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,139,895 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (25,023)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,902,001 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 110,666
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
8,048,245 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (11,199)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,745,878 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (41,726)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Barclays Bank PLC

4,430,318 1712741 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 82,548
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,875,535 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 54,339
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,264,670 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 31,716
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
6,627,228 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (58,266)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
6,973,511 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (61,311)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
Citibank, N.A.
9,861,863 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 24,978
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,263,605 1/12/41 5.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 33,594
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,348,994 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 138,874
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,581,325 1/12/41 (3.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 17,127
USD-LIBOR 3.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
6,231,899 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 87,277
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,028,682 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 132,821
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
Credit Suisse International
23,978,118 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synthetic MBX Index 118,117
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Ginnie
Mae 11 pools
4,698,393 1712739 (5.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 138,914
USD-LIBOR 5.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,188,049 1/12/43 3.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (33,586)
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
11,366,625 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 159,187
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Credit Suisse International

4,627,673 1/12/43 3.00% (1 month  Synthetic MBX Index 79,200
USD-LIBOR) 3.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,592,987 1712741 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (49,000)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,358,279 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (63,461)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,691,264 1712741 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (50,857)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
16,725,606 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 234,239
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
9,342,304 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 176,541
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
10,692,714 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 202,060
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,213,525 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 41,829
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,411,126 1712741 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 83,357
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,875,990 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 54,347
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,844,596 1712741 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 53,754
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,384,860 (40,387) 1/12/40 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 71,640
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
Goldman Sachs International
4,360,657 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (61,070)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,103,067 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (10,239)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,370,654 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (35,883)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Goldman Sachs International

5,685,892 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (27,681)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,974,899 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (18,464)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
19,019,200 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (177,819)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,735,308 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (38,307)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,141,843 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (34,769)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
450,967 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (6,316)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,444,462 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (48,239)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,386,034 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (63,986)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,144,236 1/12/42 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (95,595)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,144,236 1/12/42 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (95,595)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
760,791 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (10,655)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,065,497 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (28,927)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,398,726 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (47,599)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,820,856 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 109,530
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,864,953 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (148,624)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,366,779 1/12/40 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 27,682
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools

121/300



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2013 10 31 0TC

Goldman Sachs International

1,534,369 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (21,489)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,856,578 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (54,011)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
10,550,084 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (92,756)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,963,375 1/12/38 (6-50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (34,846)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,284,650 1/12/36 5.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (72,320)
USD-LIBOR) 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
11,459,573 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (160,489)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
11,667,757 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (220,485)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,398,773 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (64,226)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,160,121 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (16,247)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,124,757 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (19,865)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,598,214 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (33,641)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,627,003 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (78,805)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
440,669 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (2,145)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,760,945 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (71,070)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,436,622 1/12/40 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (272,140)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,782,318 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (35,363)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Goldman Sachs International

2,259,367 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (21,124)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,564,635 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (70,725)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,642,198 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (7,995)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,703,319 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (107,884)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,613,546 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (22,597)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,431,184 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (48,053)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
14,452,499 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (127,066)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
976,205 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (4,753)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,541,030 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (105,611)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,998,701 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (9,731)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
535,897 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index 4,712)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,428,898 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic MBX Index (12,563)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,939,905 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (9,444)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,879,811 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (18,889)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,628,142 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (12,795)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,188,152 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (16,640)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Goldman Sachs International

1,212,230 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (5,902)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
8,077,648 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (39,325)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,884,921 1712742 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (78,744)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,674,706 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 79,473
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,266,391 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 185,793
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,664,737 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 37,319
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,664,737 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 37,319
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,729,096 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 70,469
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,807,846 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 193,376
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,581,325 1712741 3.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (17,127)
USD-LIBOR) 3.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
14,364,966 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 69,935
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,655,689 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (127,673)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,107,880 1712741 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (57,530)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,016,649 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (75,902)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
7,622,264 1712742 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (101,991)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,358,279 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (63,461)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools
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Goldman Sachs International

6,612,540 1712741 4.00% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (92,607)
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
5,382,074 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month  Synthetic TRS Index (101,705)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
11,204,122 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 211,724
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
1,978,295 1712741 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 37,384
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,174,472 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 44,458
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3,173,980 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 44,451
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
8,309,023 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 157,015
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
278,909 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 5,271
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
5,276,971 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (99,719)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,493,582 1/12/39 (6-.00%) 1 month Synthetic TRS Index 126,155
USD-LIBOR 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
(40,387) (2,092,977)
2013 10 31 0TC
-
* —

Bank of America N.A.

CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 13,534 198,000 5/11/63 300 bp 2,185
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 26,395 438,000 5/11/63 300 bp 1,291
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 54,079 876,000 5/11/63 300 bp 3,870
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 51,528 904,000 5/11/63 300 bp (286)
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Barclays Bank PLC
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 88,467 798,000 5/11/63 300 bp 42,728
Credit Suisse International
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 3,320 113,000 5/11/63 300 bp (3,157)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 7,252 379,000 5/11/63 300 bp (14,471)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 3,491 450,000 5/11/63 300 bp (22,302)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 55,247 452,000 5/11/63 300 bp 29,339
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 44,521 459,000 5/11/63 300 bp 18,212
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 58,504 735,000 5/11/63 300 bp 16,376
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 59,046 740,000 5/11/63 300 bp 16,632
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 57,683 745,000 5/11/63 300 bp 14,982
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 49,008 745,000 5/11/63 300 bp 6,308
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 23,034 757,000 5/11/63 300 bp (20,355)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 13,355 758,000 5/11/63 300 bp (30,091)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 12,276 799,000 5/11/63 300 bp (33,520)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 64,541 886,000 5/11/63 300 bp 13,758
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 10,449 900,000 5/11/63 300 bp (41,136)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 102,818 910,000 5/11/63 300 bp 50,660
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 98,633 1,287,000 5/11/63 300 bp 24,867
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 60,857 1,483,000 5/11/63 300 bp (24,143)
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 1,885 17,000 5/11/63 300 bp 910
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 19,798 254,000 5/11/63 300 bp 5,239
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 33,674 387,000 5/11/63 300 bp 11,493
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 33,419 387,000 5/11/63 300 bp 11,237
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 39,926 412,000 5/11/63 300 bp 16,312
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 128,508 1,206,000 5/11/63 300 bp 59,384
CMBX NA BBB Index BBB-/P 165,598 1,568,000 5/11/63 300 bp 75,726

1,380,846 232,048

2013 10 31
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1 2 3
333,546,650
852,587
592,408,101
4,366,381
278,920
2,534,196
151,443
421,586,663
431,074
29,691,533 31,297,601
29,691,533 1,387,453,616

(153,794)

(2,716,974)

10,260

TBA (28,897, 345)
(9,835,406)

(2,052,590)

(1,148,798)

(153,794) (44,640,853)
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Statement of assets and labilities 10,3113

ASSETS
Investmient in secunties, at value (Note 1):

Unaffiliated msuers {identified cost $1.329,676,160) $1.309 6635610

Affiliated issuers {identified cost $27.4581,533) (Motes 1and 5) 27,481 533
Cash Sdi 722
Interest and other receivables 10,963,148
Recevable for shares of the fund seld 12,055,157
Recavable for investrments sald 4367 218
Receivable for sales of delayed delivery secusities {Mote 1} 41,069,343
Recevable for variation marain (Mote 1) 486,702
Urrealized appreciation an farward premium swap option contracts (MNote 1) 10,260
Unrealized appreciation an OTC swap contracts {(hNote 1) 4,915,160
Premium paid an OTC swap cantracts (Nete 1) 40,387
Total assets 1,491,397 285
LIABILITIES
Payable for investments puschased 3659172
Payabile for purchases of delayed delivery securities (Nate 1) 213,404,372
Payabile for shares of the fund repurchased 2,782 THS
Payable for varation margin (Note 1) 445,225
Payabla for corrpensatson of Manager {Mote 23 A13577
Payable for custodian fees (Mate 23 25087
Payabile for investor servicing fees (Mote 2) 307629
Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 2) 404,373
Payable for administrative services (Mote 2) 4523
Payabile for distribution fees (Mobe 2) 365835
Urrealized depreciation an OTC swap contracts {Note 1) 6.774.089
Premiwm recaved on OTC swap contracts (Note 1) 1.580.846
Wrilten opteons cutstanding, at value (premiums 52,535,653 (Motes 1 and 3) 2716974
TBA safe commitirants, at value {procaads recenable $28,943 438) (Note 1) 28,897,545
Callateral on certain defivative contracts, at value (Mote 13 2.210.000
Other accried expenses 255,489
Total liabilities 263,547,521
Met assets £1,227 849,965
REPRESENTED BY
Paid-in capital {Unlimited shares authonzad) (Motes 1 and 4) 21,333,067 435
Undistributad net investment income (Note 1) 33,685,609
Aceurmulated net realized loss on irvestments (Mote 1) {185,940 809}
et urrealized apprecuation of meestments 46,148,810
Total — Representing net assets applicable to capital shanes outstanding $1,227,849,965

{Continued on next page)
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Statement of assets and liabilities (Continued)

COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET VALUE AND OFFERING PRICE
Met asset valwe and redemption price per class A share

(5783,734,948 divided by 108,866 380 shares) 7.0
Cffering price per class A share (1009600 of §7.20)° 87.50
Met asset value and offering price per class B share (132 517 884 divided by 4, 840,138 shares)* £7.13
Met asset value and offering price per class C share (3153 769,192 divided by 18,643,892 shares)** $7.15
Met asset value and redemplion price perclass M share

($128.376.148 divided by 18,218 176 shares) £7.05
Offering price per class M share (100,/06.75 of 57 .05) $7.29
Met asset value, offering price and redemiption price per class R share

(8,040,442 divided by 1,123,720 shares) $7.16
Met assat value, offering price and redemption price per class RS share

($20, 720 divided by 1,471 shares) $7.29
Met asset value, offering price and redemiption price per class RE shame

(36,187 B13 divided by 848,632 shares) $7.29
Met asset value, offering price and redemiption price per class Y share

($133,716,818 divided by 18,344 320 shares) $7.29

*On single retas) sales of kess than $100,000. On sales of $100,000 or more the offering price ks reduced
*Redemptson price per share is equal tonet assst value less ary applicable cortingent deferred sales charge
10m gangle retail sales of less than 350,000, On sales of 250,000 or maore the offering price is reduced.

Thie accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of operations Vear ended 10/21/13

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest (Including interest income of 51 17,633 from imvestrnents in affiliated ssuers) {Mote 5)
Taotal investment income

EXPENSES

Compersation of Manager (Note 2)
Irestor servicing laes [(MNote 23
Custodian fees (Moke 2)

Trustee compensaton and expenses (Nate 2}
Distribution fees {MNote 2)
Administrative services (Note 2)
Othar

Total expenses

Expense reduction (Mote 23

Net expenses.

Met investment incomie

Met realized gain on investments (Motes 1 and 3)
Net increase from payments by a'fdiates (Note 23
Met realized gain on swap contracts (MNote 1)

Met realized loss on futures contracts (Note 1)

Met realized gaincn writhen options (Notes Land 3)

Met unrealized depreciation of investments, futures contracts, swap cortracts, written optsons,
and TEA sale commitments during the vear

Met loss aninvestmeants

Met Increase Innet assets resulting from operations

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these iinancial staterments.
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06,333,047
66,333,047

5434826
2,074,645
85,151
128.002
4,747 650
3aols
B66,830
13,077,029
(1.608)
13,075,421

53,257 626
16,086,549

11,664
51,376,158

(14,429.478)
7,460,208

(66.475,663)
(25,961.762)

$27,295,864
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Statement of changes in net assets

INCREASE (DECREASE]) IN MET ASSETS Year ended 10/3113  Yoar ended 10/31/12

Operations:

Mt irvestment incoma 553,257 626 40,163,254
Met realized gain (koss) on investments 40513901 (28,647 090)
Met unrea‘ized appreciation (depreciation) of investments (66,475 6635) 114,095,560
Metincrease in net assets resulting from operations 27,295,864 125,612,724
Distributions to shareholders (Nate 1)
From ordinary income
Net imestrmant ncomsa
Class & (27,142, 179) (26043813}
Clazs B {976.648) (954,906)
Class C (3,672.863) (3.048,003)
Class M {4,776,503) (4646 629)
Class R (213.023) {143,597}
Class RS (573) (100}
Class R6 {131.570) (100)
Clase Y (5.975,551) (5,026,609}
Decrease from capital shane transactions (Note £) (193,294,013} (8,602,096
Total increase (decrease} in net assels (208,586,665) 76,246,691
MET ASSETS
Beqinning of year 1.435,436,630 1,5360,189,.959
End of year (ncluding undistributed net mvestrment income
of 333,746,784 and $6,088 116, respectively) $1,227 840 965 $1,436,436,650

Thie accompanying notes are anintegral part of these financial statements.
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Financial highlights (Continued)

* Mot annualized.
! For the perind July 3, 2002 (commencement of operations) to October 31, 2002,

# Par share net mvestment income has been determined on the basis of the weighted average number of shares
cutstanding during the period

® Tatal return assumes dividend reirmvestment and does not reflect the effect of sales charges.
t Inchudes amounts paid through expense offset arrangaments {Note 23
1 Pastialio turnover excludes TBA purchase and sale transactions.

* Reflects a non-recurring reémbursement related ta restitution amounts in connection with a distribution plan
approvad by the Securities and Exchange Commissson (the SEC) which amounted to jess than $0.01 per share
cutstandmg on July 21, 201 Alsc reflects a mon-recurting reimburserment related (o short-term frading related
lawsuits, whichamounbed boless than $0.01 per share outstanding on May I 2010

FAmount represenls less than $0,01 per share,

1 Reflects a non-recurring reimbursement pursuant (o a settlement between the 3EC and Prudential Securities, Inc,,
whichameaunted to less than $0.01 per share outstanding as of March 30, 2010,

» Reflects an imvaluntary contractual expense limitation in effect during the period. As aresult of such limitation and/or
waivers, the expenses of each class reflect areguction of the following amounts:

Parcentage of
_October 31, 2010 0.05%
~ October 31, 2009 pie

i Excludes the impact of a current period reduction to interest expense related to the resolution of certain terminated
derivatives contracts, which amounted to Q8% of average net assets for the penod ended October 31, 2010,

I ncludes interest acorued in connaction with certain terminated derivatives contracts, which amounted to 0.72% of
average nel assels for the peniod ended October 31,2009,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Motes to financial statements 10/31/12

Within tha following Notes to financial statements. references 1o “State Street” represant State Street Bank
and Trust Compary, references to “the SEC™ represent the Securities and Exchange Commission, references bo
“Putnam Management” represent Putnam |rvestrment Management, LLC, the fund's manager, an ingirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Putnam |mvestments, LLC and referances to “OTC", if any, represent ovar-the-colnter. Linless
otherwase nated, the “reporting perind” represents the period from Novernber |, 2002 through October 31,2013,
Putnam Income Fund (the fund) is a Massachusatts business trust, which is registered wnder the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, as a diversified open-end management investment company. The fund seeks
high current income consistent with what Putnam Management believes to be prudent risk. The fund invests
mainty In bonds that are securitized debt Instruments (such as mortgage-backed Investments) and other obli-
gatlans of companies and govermmants worldwide denaminated in LS. dollars, are sither Investment-grade o
beiow imvestment-grade in-quality (somatimas referred to as “junk bonds™) and have intermediate- to long-term
maturities (three wears or lenger}, Putnam Management may consider, amiong other factars, credit, interest rate
and prepayment risks. as well as general market conditions, when deciding whether to buy or sell investments.

The fund offers class A, class B, dlass C, class M, class R, ciass RS, class RG and class Y shares. Class A and class M
sharas are gold with a rmaximum front-end sales charge of 4.00% ant 3.25%, respectively, and generally do not
pay @ contingent dleferrad sales charge, Class B shares, which convert to class & shares after approximately mght
wears, do not pay a front -end sales charge and are subject to a contingent deferred sales charge || those shares are
redeemed within six years of purchase. Class C shares have a one-yigar 1L00% conbingent deferred sales charge and
dhonot-convert 16 class A shares. Class R shares, which are not avallable to all investors, ane sold at net asset value,
The edpenses for class & class B, Class ©, ciass M and class R shares may differ basad an the distribution fee of 2ach
class, whichisidentified in Mote 2 Class RS; class R6 and class Y shares, which are sold ak net asset value. are ganor-
ally subject to the sarme expenses as class A, class B, class €, class M and class R shares, but do not bear a distribu-
thon fee and in the case of dass RS and class RE shares, bear a lower investor servicing fee, which is identified in
Mate 2. Class RS, class BE and class ¥ shares ara not avadlabbe bo all Ivestors.

I the piormat course of business, the fund enters Into contracts that may include agreements o indemnify another
party under grven circumstances. The fund's maximurm expostens under these Mrangaments is unknown as this
wiould trvalve futue claims that may be, but have not yet been, made against the fund. However, the fund's:
management team expects the risk of materia' loss to beremote.

Wote 1: Significant accounting policies

The following is a susmmany of significant accounting policies consistently followed by the fund in the preparation
of its fmancial statements, The preparation of financial statements & in conformity with accounting prinelphes
generally accepted in the Unibed States of Amerca and requires management tomake estimates and assumplions
that ffect the reported amounts of assets and Uablities in the financlal statermeants and the reported amounts of
Ingreases and decreases in net assets from operations, Actual results coud differ from those estimates. Subse-
auant events after the Staterment of assets and labilities sate through the date that the financist statements wers
Issued have been evaluated in the preparation of the inancial statements,

[revestnent income, realized and unreatized gaims and losses and expenses of (he fund are bome pro-rata based on
the relative net azsets of each class to the Wofal net assels of the fend, except that sach clias Dears expenses Lnkgue
tothat class (including the distribution fees applicable to such classes), Each class votes as aclass only with respect
toits own distribution plan or othar matters on which o class vote is requaned by law or determined by the Trustees,
(¥ thee fund were liguidated, shares of sach class would receive their pro-rata share of the net assets of the fund, In
addition the Trustees declare separate dividends on each class of shares.

Security valuation Market quotations are not considared to be readily avallable for cerlain debt obvigations and ather
investmants: such investments are valued on the basis of valuations furnishied by an independent prcing service
approved by the Trustaes or deabers selectad by Putnam Managomant. Such services or dealars determine valustions
for nermal institutiornal-size trading units of sich securities using methods basad onmarket transactions for compa-
rable securities and various redationships, generally recognized by institutional traders, between securities Cwhich
consider such factors as security prces, yislde, matunties and rabimdgs . These wecuribies will generally be categonzed
as Level & Secunties guoted in forsian currencies, if any, are transtated into LLS. doltars at the current exchange rate.

Irestments in open-end investment companies (excluding exchange fraded funds), iT ary, which can be
classified as Level 1 or Lovel 2 securlties, are valued baged on their net assel value. The net assal value of such
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[rwestment companies equals the total value of thair assats less their Rabilities and diviced by the number af their
outstanding shares.

To the extent 3 pricing service or daaler i< unabléa to vale 8 secunty or provides a valustion that Putnam Manage-
ment does not believe accurately reflects the security’s Fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by Putnam
Management in accordance with policies and procedures appreved by the Trustees. Certam irvestments, including
certain restricted and (Bauid securities and darivatives, are also valued at fair value fallowing proceduras approved
by the Trustess, These valuations consider such factors as significant market or specific secunty events such as
Interest rate or credit quality changes. varlous relaticnshins with other securlties, disceunt rates, LS. Treasury,
LS. swap and credit yiedds, index lavels, convexity exposures and recovery rates, These securibies sre classified as
Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the priority af the signiticant Inputs.

Such valuations and procedures are reviewsd pericdically by the Trustees. Certain securifies may be valued on the
Iasis of & price provided by asingle source. The fair value of securities is generally detarmined as the amaount that
the fund could reasonably expect ba realize frorm an orderly disposition of such securities ever a reasonable pericd
of tine. By its nature, a fair value prece s a good faith estimate of the value of asecority iva current sake and does.
net reflect an aclual market price, whichmay be different by a matenal amaunt.

Security transactions and related investment income Security transactions are recorded on the trade date
{the date the ceder to buy or sell s execuled). Galns or losses on securities sold are determined on the iden-
rified cost basis Intersst income, net of any applicable withholding taves, is recorded on (he accrual basis. Al
pramiums,discounts are amortized/Gocreted on a yieid-to-maturity basis.

The fund earned certain feas in connection with its senior loan purchasing activities. These fees are treated as
market discount and are amortized into income in the Statement of operations.

Securities purchased of sold on & defayed deltvery basis may e setthed & month or mare after the trade date;
Interest incom ks accrued based on the terms of the securities. Losses may arse due to changes in the market
value of the underkying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under the contract:

Stripped securities The fund may Investin stripped securitiies which represent a participation Insecurities that may
be structuredin classes with rightls to receive different portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only securities
recelve all of the Interest and princlpal-caly securities receive all of the principal. If the inkerest-onty SEcurities expe—
rlence greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the fund may fail to recoup fully its initial imestmant n
these secunties, Conversely, principal-only securities increase in value If prepayments are greater than anticipated
and declme if prepayments ane slower than anticipated, The market value of these secunties is highly sensilive to
changes i1 Interest rates.

Options contracts The fund uses options contractsto hedge duration and convexily, ta isolate prepayrment risk ancd
& manage downside risks.

The pobential risk to thie fund is that the change In value of options contracts may not correspond to e change in
valte of the hedged instruments. In addition, losses may arise from changes in the value af the underiying instruy-
rments if there s an illiguid secondany market for the contracts, i interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly orif
the counterparty tothe contract is unable to perform. Realized galns and lesses on purchased options ane Included
im realized gains and losses on investment securities. If a written call option is-exercised, the premium origimally
recelvad Is recorded as an addition to sales proceeds. If a written put option |5 exercised, the premiam originaliy
receivad s recorded as a reduction o the cost of inyestments.

Exchange traded aptinns are valued at the last <ale priceor, I no sales are reparted, the dast bid price for purchased
oplions and the last ask price for written options. OTC raded colions are valued using prices supplied by deaters.
Forward premiurm Swan option contracts. include premiums that do not settle until the expiration date of the
contract The delayed settlement of the premiums are factored into the daily valuation of the option contracis,
Written option contracts oulstanding at period end, if any, are listed after the fund's portfolic.

Futures contracts The fund uses futures contracts to hedge intérest rate risk and Lo gain exposure to interast rates.
The potential nsk to the fund is that the change in value of futures contracts may not correspend 1o the change
In walue of the hedged instruments. In addition, losses may arise from changes in the value of the underlyng
Instruments, if there is an illiguid secondary market for the contracts, If interest or exchange rates mova unax-
pectadly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to parfoem. With futures, there is minimal counterparty
credif nsk ta the fund since futures are exchange traded and the exchange's cearinghouss, as counterparty to all
ewchange traded futures, guaranteos the futures against dofaull. Risks may excoed amounts secognized on the
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Statement of assets and liabilitizs. When the contract is closed, the furd records a realized pain or loss equal to
the difference between the value of the contract at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed.
Futures contracts are valued at the guoted daily settiernent prices established by the exchange on which they
trade. The fund and the broker agree to exchange an amount of cash equal to the daily fiuctuation in the value of
the futures contract. Such receipts or payments are known as “variation margin.”

Futures contracts oulstanding at period and, if any, are listed after the fund's portiolio.

Interest rate swap contracts The fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, which
are arrangements between two parties to exchange cash flows based on a notional peincipal ameount, to hedge
interest rate risk and to gain expasureon interest rates.

An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an upfront premium. For OTC
interest rate contracts, an upfront paymant racedved by the fund 15 recorded as a liability on the fund’s books. An
upfront payment made by the fund is recorded as an asset on the fund's books, OTC and centrally cleared interest
rate swap contracks are marked to market dally based upon guotations from an independent pricing service of
market makers, Any change |5 recorded as an unrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps. Dally fluctuations
Inthevalue of centrally cleared Interest rate swaps are recorded in variation manginon the Statement of assets and
liabilities and recorded as unreatized gain of Iods. Payments, including uofront premiums, received ar made are
recorded as reakzed gains or losses.at the closing of the contract. Cortain OTC and centrally cleared interest rato
swag contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related tathese swap contracts are accrued based
on the terms of the contract.

Thee fund could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfaverable changes in the fluctuation of Inberest rates or
if the counterparty defauits, in the case of OTC interest rate conlracts, or the central clearing agency or a clearing
member defaults, in the case of centrally cleaned mterest rate swap contracts, on its respective obligation to
perfarm under the contract. The fund's maxirmum risk of loss from cownterparty risk or central clearing risk |s the
fair valueof the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC interest rate swap contracts by having a master netting
arrangerment between the fund and the counter party and for centrally clearsd interest rate swap contracts through
the daily exchange of varation margin. There is minimal counterparly nsk wi th respact bo centrally clearad interast
rate swap contracts due to the deannghouse guarantae fund and other resources that are avaitabie in the event of
aclearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Staternent of assets and labllities,

OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts cutstanding, incleding their respective national amounts at
period end, If any, ace lsted after the fund’s portfalio,

Total return swap contracts The fund entered into OTC total retum swap contracts, which are arrangements to
exchange a market linked return for a pericdic payrment, both based on a notional principal amount, to hedge
seclor exposure, 1o manage exposure 1o specilic sectors of industnes and o gain expasure 1o specific sectars
o industries.

To the extent that the total return of the security, index or ather financial measure underlying the transaction
exceeds or falls short of the offsetting interest rate chligation, the fund will receive a payment from or make a
payment to the counterparty, OTC total retum swap contracts are marked to market daily based upon quotaticns
fram an independent pricing service or market makers and the change, if any, is recorded as an unrealized gain or
lzss. Payments received or made are recorded as realized gains or iosses. Certain OTC total retumn swap contracts
may include extended affective dates, Payments refated to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms
of the contract. The fund could be exposed to credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation
of interest rates of in the price of the underlying security or index, the possibility that there s no liguid market
for these agreements or that the counterparty miay defaull on its obligation to perform, The fund’s masimum
risk af inss from counterparty risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated by having a master
netting arrangement belween the fund and the counterparty, Risk of loss may excesd amounts recognized on the
Statement of assets and liabilities.

OTC total return swap contracts autstanding, including their respective noticnal amounts at period end, If any, are
listed after the fund's partfolic.

Credit default contracts The fund entered into OTC and/or centrally cleared credit default contracts to gain
exposure on individual names and/or baskets of securties.

i OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts, the protection buyer typically makes an upfront payment
and a perodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange far the right to recelve a
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cantirgent payment upon the sccurrence of a credit event on the reference obifigation or all other equally ranked
oblgations of the reference entity. Credit evenits are contract specific but may Include bansruptcy, falura to pay,
restructuring and abligation acceleration. For OTC credit default contracts, an upfront payment received by the
fund is recorded as & Hability on the fund's books. An upfront payment made by the fund is recorded as an asset
onthe fund's books. Penodic payments received or paid by the fund far OTC and cenfrally clearad credit detalt
contracts are recorded as realized gains or losses at the close of the contract. Centratly cieared credit default
contracts provide the same rights to the protection buyer and seller except the payments batwean part|es are
setfled throwgh a central clearing agent throudh var atlon margin payments The OTC and centrally clearad credit
default contracts are marked tomarket daily based Lpon guatations froman independent pricing senvice of market
makears. Any change iivaliue of OTC credil delaull contracts is recorded &5 an unresized gain of loss, Dally fluctua-
thons Inthe vialue of centrally cleared credit default contracts are recorded in variation margin on the Statement of
assets and lisbilities and recorded as Unrealized gain or loss, Upon the ocourrence of a credit evenl, the difference
between the par value and market value of the teference obligation. net of any proportional amount of the Gofront
payment, is recorded as arealized gainor loss.

I additian to Bearing he rsk that tne credit event will occw. The fund could be exposed to marke! sk due 1o
unfavorabhe changes in interest rates or in the price of the underlying security of index or the possibility that the
fund may be unable toclose out ts pesition at the same time or at the same price as if it had purchased the under-
Iying referance obligations. In certan circumstances, the fund may enter into offsetting OTC and centrally cleared
credit detaull contracts which would mitigate it risk of loss. Risks of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the
Statement of assets and liabitites. The fund's mamximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, either as the protection
sollor oF as the protaction buyer, i the falr value of thae contract. This risk may bo mitigated for OTC crodit default
contracts by having & master netting arrangement between the fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared
credit defaull contracts through the daily exchange of variation margin, Couwnterparty risk is further mitigated
with rezpect 1o centrally cleard credit defaull swap contracts due ta the clearinghouse guarantae fund and othar
resources that are avallable in the event of a clearing membaer default. Where the fund i a seler of protaction, the:
masximum potential amount of future payrments the fund may be required to make s equal to the notlonal amount.

OTC and centrally cleaned credit detault contracts outstanding, ncluding thelr respective noticnal amounts at
perlod end, iFany, are lsted after the tund's portfolio.

Master agreemants The fund s a party 1o ISDA (International Swaps and Derivalives Assodation, Inc,) Master
Agreements (Master Agreements) with certain counterparties that govemn OTC derivative and foreign exchance
contracts entoered into from time to time. The Master Agreements may contain provisions reganding, among other
trings, the parties’ general abigations, representations, agreemants, collateral requirements, avents of defaull and
garly termination, With respect to certain counterparties, in accordance wath the torms of the Master Agreements,
coltateral posted to the fund is held n & segragated account by the fund's custodian and with respect ta those
armeounts which can be sold o repledged, are presented In the furd's portfollo. Collateral posted Lo e furid which
cannob be zold or repledged tataled 589 EES at the close of the reporting perod.

Collateral pledged by the fund is segregated by the fund's Custadian and identified Inthe tund's portfalio. Coliaterst
can bo in the form of cash or debt secunities ssued by the LS. Govarnment of rolated agencies or other secunties
a5 agreed to by the fund and the applicable counterparty: Callateral requirements are determined based on the
furd's net position with each counterparty.

Termination events applicabde to the fund may ooowr upon a decling in the fund's net assets below a specified
threshold over a certain period of time. Termination events applicable to counterparties may occur upon a decline
in e cosnterparty’s kong-term and short-term credit ratings befow a specified level. In each case. upomn gocur-
rence, the other party may elect to terminate sarty and cause settierment af 2l dervative and foreign exchange
contracts outstanding, including the paymert of any |losses and costs resulking from such early termination, as
reasanatly determinad by the termmabing parly. Any decisien by one or mare af Lhe fund's counterpartios Lo alect
earty termination could impact the Tund's Tuture derivative activity,

At the close-of thereporting penied, the fund had anet lability postion of 3,954,580 on open derivative contracts
subject Lo the Master Agraements. Collateral posted by (he fund for these sgreemenis Lotaled $4,407120,

TBA purchase commitments The fund may eénter infa TEA (to be announced) commitments to purchase secu-
rithes for a fixed unit price at a future date beyond customary settiement time. Although the unit price has
besn established, the principal value has not been finalized. However, it 15 anticpated that the amount of the
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commitments will not significantly differ fram the principal amount, The fund holds, and maintains until settizment
date, cash or high-grade debt obfigations in anamount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the fund may enter
into alfsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns, Income on the securities will not be earned
until settlement date. TBA purchase commitments may be considered securities themselves, and imvolve a risk of
Ioss if the value of the securnity to be purchased dechnes prios to the seftlerment date, which risk Isin addition tothe
risk of decline inthe value of the fund's other assets. Unsettled TBA purchase commitments are valued at fair value
of the underlyving securlties, accord ng to the procedures described under "Security valuation' above. The contract
ismarked to markel daily and the change in markel vaiue is recorded by the fund as an unrealied gain o loss,

Although the fund will generally enter into TBA purchase commitments with the intention of acguiring securi-
ties for its portfalio or for delivery pursuant to options cantracts it has entered into, the fund may dispose of a
commitmant prior to settlement if Putnam Managemaent deems it appropriate to do so.

TBA sale commitments The fund may enter inta TBA sale commitments 1o hedge its partfollo positions or to sell
martgage-backed securities it owns under delayed delivery arrangements. Proceeds of TBA sale commitments
are not recelved until the contractual settlement date. During the time a TBA sale commitment s outstanding,
equivalent deliverable securities, or an offsetting TBA purchase commitment delverable on or before the sale
commitment date, are held as "covar" for the transaction.

Urnsettied TBA sale commitrments are valued at the fair value of the underlyving securities, generally according to
the pracedures described under “Securitly valuation” above, The contract is markead 1o mar!mt daily and the change
inmarkat value is recoeded by the fund as anwnrealized gain or loss. If the TBA sale commitment is closed through
the acquisition of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the fund realizes a gain or lass. If the fund delivers
securities under the commitment, the fund realizes a gain or a loss from the sale of the securities based upon the
urit price established a% the date the commitment was enterad into. TBA sale commitments outstanding at period
end, it ary, are listed after the fund's porttolio,

Imterfund lending The fund, along with other Putnam funds, may participate in an Interfund lending program
pursuant to an exemptive order issuad by the SEC. This program allows the fund 1o borrow from or lend Lo other
Putnam funds that permit such transactions. Interfund lending transactions are subject to each fund's investment
policies and barmowing and lending limits, Interest samed or paid on the interfurd lending transaction will be based
on the average of certain current marked rates, During the reporting period, the fund did not utilize the program.
Line of credit The fund participates, along with other Putnam funds, in a $313 millon unsecured committed ling of
credit and a $185 million urcecured uncommattad line of credit, both provided by State Street. Barrowlings may be
made for temporary or emergency purposes, including the funding of sharehodder redemption requests and trade
settlements. interestis charged 1o the fund based on the fund’s barrowing at a rate equal to the Fedéral Funds rate
plus 1.25% for the committed line of credit and the Federal Funds rate plus 1.30% for the uncommitted line of credit,
A closing fee egual to 0.02% of the committed Bne of credit and 350,000 for the uncommitted line of credit has
been paid by the participating funds, In additicn, a commitment fee of Q1% per annum on any unutilized portion
of the committed lire of credit is allocated to the participatirg funds based on their relative net assets and paid
quarterty, During the reparting pericd. the fund had no bormowings against these arrangements.

Federal taxes It is the policy of the fund to distribute 21l ofits taxable income within the prescribed time period and
otherwise comply with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), applicable
o reguiated investment companies. It & also the intention of the fund Lo distribute an amount sufficient Lo avoid
imposition of any excise tax under Soction 4982 of the Coda.

The furd is subject to the provisions of Accounting Standards Cedification 740 lncome Taxes (ASC 7400, ASC 740
sefts torth a minimum theeshold for financial staterment recognition of the benetit of atax position taken orexpected
tobe taken n & tax return The fund did not have aliakslity te record for any unrecognized tax benefits inthe accom-
panying financial statements. No provision has been made for federal taxes on income, capital gains or unrealized
apprecation onsecurities held nor for excise Lax onincome and capital gains, Eachof the fund's federal Lax returms
for the prior three fiscal years remains subject toexamination by the Internal Revenue Service,
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At October 31, 2003, the fund had a capital loss carryover of $173,457,392 available ta the axtent allowed by the
Code to offset future net capital gain, if ary, The amounts of the carryovers and the expiration dates are:

$6.655,400 | 10,608,039 $17.261.439 |
92,884,454 | N/A | 92,884,454 | October 31, 2016
63,311,499 M 63,311,499 October 31, 2017

* Linder the Regulated invesiment Company Modernization Act of 2010, the fund will be permitted to carry forward
capital losses incurred in taxabie years beginning after December 22, 2010 for an unlimited period. Howaever, any
lesses incurred will be reguired Lo be ulilized pror Lo the losses incarred in pre-enacliment Lax vears. As a resull of
this ordering rule, pre-enactment capital boss carmyforwands may b2 more likely to expire unused Additionally, post-
enactment capital losses that are carried forward will retain their character as estber short-term or lang-term cagetal
lesses rather than being considered all short-bermias under previous law,

Distributions to sharehalders Distributions to sharehalders from net investment income are recorded by the fund
on the ex-dividend date, Distributions from capital gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and paid
at least annually, The amount and character of Income and gains to be distriouted are determined in accordance
with incame tax regulations, which may differ from generally accepted accounting principies. These differances
include temparary andfor permanent differences from income on swap contracts and from interest-only securi-
ties, Reclassifications are made Lo the fund’s capital accounts to reflect income and gains available for distribution
{or available capital loss carryovers) under imcome tax regulations. At the close of the reporting period, the fund
reclassified $16,926,377 to increase undistributed net investment income and $16,926,377 taincrease accumulated
net realized hoss.

The tax basis companents of distributabie earnings and the federal tax cost as of the close of the reporting period
were as follows:

Unrealized appreciation £72.781,704
Unrealized depraciation (25.416,927)
Met unrealized appreciation 47364777
Undistributed crdinary incorme 31,830,128
Capital loss carryforward (173.457.392)
Cost for fedaral ncorm tax purposes $1,360,780.372

Mote 2: Management fee, administrative services and other transactions

The fund pays Putnam Management a management fee (based on the fund's average net assets and computed and
paid monthiy) at annual rates that may vary based on the average of the aggregate net assets of most open-end
fumds, as defined in the fund's management contract, sponsored by Putnam Management. Such annual rates may

vary as follows:
0.550% | of the first $5 billion, 0.350% | of the next 550 billian,
0.500% of the next £5 billion, 0.330% of the rext 550 billion.
0. 450% | of the next £10 billion, 0.320% | of the next 5100 billion and
0.400% of the next $10 billian, 0.315% of amy excess thereafter,

Fediowing the death on October B, 2013 of The Honourable Paul &, Desmarals, who contralled directly and indirectly a
majority af the voling shares of Power Corparation of Canada, the ultimate parent company of Putnam Management,
the Trustees of the fund approved an interim management contract with Putnam Management. Consistent with Rule
15a-4 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, the interim management contract will remain in effect until the
earlier toocour of () approvad by the fund's shareholders of a new management contract and (1) March 7, 2004, Except
with respect o termination, the substantive termes of the intarim management contract, including terms relating to
fees payable to Putnam Management, are identical to the terms of the fund'’s previous management contract with
Putnam Management. The Trustees of the fund also approved the continusance, effective Cctober 8, 2013, of the
sub-management cantract between Putnam Managament and Putnam imvestmenits Limited (PIL) described below,
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for a tarm na longer than March 7, 2004, The Trustees of the fund have called a shareholder mesting far February 27,
2004, at which sharehoiders of the fund will consider approval of a proposed new managerment contract between the
tund ard Putnam Management. The substantive terms of the propesed new management conlract, including terms
relating to fees, are identical 1o the terms of the fund's previous management contract.

Putnam Management has conlractually agreed, through June 30, 2014, to walve fees or relmburse the fund's
expenses to the extent necessany to limil the cumulative expenses of the fund, exclusive of brokerage, interest,
taxes, investment-related expenses, extraordinary expenses, acquired fund fees and expenses and paymaents
under the fund's investor servicing contract, investment management contract and distribution plans, on a fiscal
year-to-gdate basis to an annual rate of 0.20% of the fund’s average net assets over such fiscal yvear-to-date period.
This expense limitation remains in place under the interim management contract described above. During the
reporting perod, the fund's expenses were not reduced as a resulf of this imit.

PIL, an affi#late of Putnam Managemant, is authorized by the Trustees 1o manage a separate partion of the assets
of the fund as determined by Putnam Management from time to bme. Effective Juiy 1. 2013 Putnam Management
pays a quarterly sub-management fee to PIL for its services at an annual rate of 0.25% of the average net assets
of the partion of the furd managed by PIL. Prior to July 1, 2013, the annual rate that Putnam Management paid for
these services was 0.40% of the average net assets of the portion of the fund managed by PIL.

Putnam Management veluntarily reimbursed the fund $11.664 for a rading error which occurred during the
reperting period, The affect of the loss incurred and the reimbursement By Putnam Managament of such amounts
had noimpact on total return.

The fund reimburses Putnam Maragement an aliocated amount for the compensation and related expenses of
certain officers of the fund and their staff who provide administrative services to the fund, The aggregate amount
of all such reimbursementsis determined annually by the Trustees.

Custodial functions for the fund's assets are provided by State Street. Custody fees are based on the fund’s asset
level, the number of its security holdings and transaction velumes.

Putmam Investor Services, Inc,, an affiliate of Putnam Management, provides investor servicing agent functions
to the fund. Putnam Imvestar Services, Inc. received fees for imvestor servicing (except for Class RS and RE shares)
based on the fund's retail asset level, the number of shareholder accounts in the fund and the level of defined
contribution plan assets in the fund. Class RS shares pay a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class RS
shares at an-annual ate of Q2% Class RE shares pay a monthly fee based an the average net assets of class BE
shares al an annual rate of 0.05%. Imvestor servicing fees will mot exceed an annual rate of 0.32% of the fund's
average nel assets. During the reporting pericd. the expenses lor each class of shares relabed to investor servicing

fees were ac follows:
Class A | 41,786,356 Class RS . 13
Class B . 53,347 Class G . 1.734
Class C 236,030 Class Y 268.637
Class M 211,993 Total £2,074,643
ClassR 10,524

The fund has entered Into expense offset arrangements with Putnam Investor Services, Inc. and State Street
whereby Putnam Investor Services, Incs and State Street's fees ane reduced by credits allowed on cash balances,
Far the reporting period, the fund's expenses wore reduced by $1.608 under tho expense offset arrangements,
Each ndependent Trustee of the fund recaives an annual Trustee fee, of which 3838, az a quarterly retainer, has
been allocated tothe fund, and an additional fee for each Trustees meeting attended, Trustees also are reimbursed
for expenses they incur relating to thair services as Trusteas.

The fund has adopted a Trustee Fee Deferral Plan (the Deferral Plan) which allows the Trustees to defer the receipt
of 3l or a portion of Trustees fees payable on or after July 1, 1995, The deferred fees remain invested in certain
Putmarm funds until distribution in accordance with the Deferral Flan.

The fund has adopled an unfunded noncontributary defined benafit pension plan (the Pansion Plan) covering
all Trustees of the fund who have served as a Trustee for at least five years and were first elected prior to 2004,
Benefits under the Pension Plan are equal to 30% of the Trustee's average annual attendance and retaines fees for
the three years ended December 31, 2005, The retirement benefit is payable during a Trustee's lifetime, beginning
the year following retirement, for the number of vears of service through Cecember 31, 2006, Pension expense
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fer the fund is included in Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of operations, Accrued pension
liability is included in Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of assets and liakllities. The
Trustees have terminated the Pension Plan with respect to any Trustee first elected after 2003,

The fund has adopted distribution plans (the Plans) with respect to its class A, class B, class €, class M and class R
shares pursuant to Rube 12b-1 under the lrvestment Company Act of 1940, The purpose of the Plans is to compen-
sate Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnarship, anindirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investrments,
LLEC, for services provided and expenses incurred In distributing shares of the fund. The Plans provide for payments
by the fund ta Putnam Retall Management Limited Partrership at an annual rate of up to 0.35%, LOO%, 1.00%,
1.00% amd 1.00% of the average net assets attributable to class A, class B, class €, class M and class R shares,
respectively. The Trustees have approved payment by the fund at an annual rate of 0.25%, 1.00%, 1.00%, 0.50%
and 0.50% of the average net assets attributable to class A, class B, class C, class M and class R shares, respectively.
During the raporting pariod, the class specific expensas related to distribution fees were as fallows:

Class & $.2,006,545 Class M B31.168
ClazsB | 186,926 Class R | Z4.376
Class C 1,538,635 Tatal 44,747,650

Far the reporting period, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter, received net
commissions of $87,703 and $9,223 from the sale of class A and class M shares, respectively, and received $21.786
and 55,188 in contingent deferred sales charges from redemptions of class B and class C shares, respectively.

A deferred sales charge of up to LO0% and 0.40% is assessed on certain redemptions of class A and class M shares,
respectively, For the reporting pericd, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership, acting as underwriter,
received 52,545 and no manies an class A and chass M redemalions, respectively,

Mate 3: Purchases and sales of securities

During the reporting period, cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of investment securities ather than short-
terminvestments and TBA transactions aggregated $3,321,533,633 and 53154, 258 294, respectively. These figures
include the cost of purchases and proceeds fram sales of lang-term U5, government securities of no monles and
£432 081, respectivaly,

Written cption transactions during the reporting period are summarized as follows:

Written opticn
contract
Written swap amounts,
option contract Written swap number of Wiritten option
amounts  option premiums ! contracts | premiums
Witten options outstanding
at the baginning of the
reporting penod £70,432 000 $1.529,066 = $=—
Options openad 3.649.963 556 11.870.705 57 22157
Options exenciced (276, 173.800) (5%6,963) . =
Options expired - — (573 (22157}
Options closed (3.211,856,356) (10.267.155) = =
Whitten options outstanding at
the end of the reparting period $241,365, 400 $2,535,653 $— =
76 Income Fund
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Al the close of the reporting period, there was an unlimited number of shares of bepelicial interest authorized,
Transactions incapital shares were as follows:

Class A
Shares sold

Shares issued in cannection with
rervestment of distributions

Shares repurchased
Het decrease

Class B
Shares sobd

Shares issied in cannection with
rerwestment of distributions

Shares repurchased
Het decrease

Class C
Shares soid

Shares issued in connection with
rervestment of distributions

Shares repurchased
Het decrease

Class M
Shares soid

Shares issuad in connaction with
rervestmeant of distnbutions

Shares repurchased
Met decrease

Class B
Shares soéd

Shares issued in connection with
rervestment of distributions

Shanes repurchased
Het increase

Year ended 10,/31/13 Year ended 10,/31/12
Shares Amount Shares Amount
20725285 | $150,177.288 27,380,698 $189.503.530
3.334.755 24.048.300 272,191 22.639.765
24060038 174,225 547 30,622 HEO 212.14% 299
(36,133,561) (260,478,835) {32.950,350) (228,777.619)
(12,073523)  5(86,253,238) (2327.461)  S(16,634,320)
Year ended 10,/31/13 Year ended 10,/31,/12
Shares Amount Shares Ameount
B2 163 $5.959 445 1,368 524 0528 158
114,704 819,305 108.522 744,380
042 867 6,778,751 1,497,050 10,282,538
(1826179 (17,066 485) (1.651.519) {11.377.763)
(B33 312)  $(5,287,734) (154,469) $(1,095,225)
Year ended 10/31/13 Yoar ended 10/31/12
Shares Amount Shares Amount
2888 515 20,818,710 5123472 335,269,152
389,912 2,792,633 376,116 2.585433
I.278.427 23,611,343 5,409,588 37.854,585
(7.688,.225) (54,807 508) (74112200 (51.136,287)
(4,400,798)  $(31,280,255) (1911632)  ${13281,702)
Year ended 10/31/13 Year ended 10/31/12
Shares Amount Shares Amount
673,386 $4,797 863 1,131 8497 $7.625,763
54,910 87 604 57,125 387,404
728,296 5,185,557 1,189,022 B.O83,167
(3.731.396) (26,426,129 (5.356,881) (36.496.13.2)
(30031000  5(21,240,572) (4,167,859)  5(28,412,965)
Year ended 10/31/13 Year ended 10/31/12
Shares _ Amount Shares _ Amount
7a24 | $5.381.147 372015 $2.551.B8E
26,004 186.217 12,450 127.087
774,248 5.E67.364 390,465 26784973
(379,041) (2,715.551) (355,773) (2,444,067)
395207 $2,851.813 34,690 5234906
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For the period 7,/3/12
: (commancement of operations)
Year ended 10/31/13 to 10/31/12
Class RS Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sold - = 1406 210,000
Shares issued in cannection with
reamestment of distributions 51 373 14 100
51 373 1.420 10,108
Shares rapurchased - = - -
Met increase 51 §373 1,420 310,100
For the period 7/3/12
{commencement of operations)
Year ended 10/31/13 to 10/31/12
Class RE Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sod u3e. 717 %6,0974,232 1,408 210,000
Shares issued in connection with
resrmvestment af distributions 18,0590 131,370 14 100
957 807 7105602 1,420 10.100
Shares repurchazes {110,595} (B05.572) - -
Met increase B47.212 $6,300,030 1,420 510,100
Year ended 10/31/13 Year ended 10/31/12
Class ¥ Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sokd 13,446,440 398,603,847 20,514,428 144,552,458
Shares ssuad M connection with
resrnvestrment of distribulions 637,375 4,652,623 533,133 37445348
14,083,815 103,256,470 21,047 561 148,296,806
Shares repurchazed {22,055,550) | (160,640,906) {13,902 881) (97 7.29.796)
Met increase (decrease) (7.960,515) $(57,3B84,436) 7,144,680 $£50,567,010

Al the close of the reporting penod, Putnam [nvestments, LLC owned the following class shares of thie fund:

Shares owned Percentage of ownership Value
Crass RS 1471 106000 $10,720
Class R 1,472 01y 10,731
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Mote 5: Affiliated transactions
Transactions during the reporting pericd with Pulnam Money Market Liguidity Fund and Putnam Shorl Term
Imvestrment Fund, which are under common ownership or control, were as follows:

Market value at Market value
the beginning at the end of
‘of the reporting Investment  the reporting
Putnam Money Market
Liquidity Fund®* $141.045,783 5221019516 | $362.069,299 483,368 i
Putnam Short Term
Irvestrment Fund® — 515828907 480 347 464 34, 265 27481533
Totals $141,049,783  $736,848,513  $850,416,763 £117,633 527,481,533

* Management fees charged to Putnam Money Market Ligquidity Fund and Putnam Short Term Investment Fund have
been walved by Putnam Managemant.

MNote B: Senior loan commitments

Senlor loans are purchased or sold on a when-lssued or delayed delivery basis and may be settled amonth or morne
after the trade date, which from time to time can delay the actual investment of avallable cash balances; interest
income is accrued based on the terms of the securities. Senior loans can be acquired throwgh an agent, by assign-
ment fram anather kalder of the loan, or as a participation interest in ancther holder’s portion of the loan, Whenthe
fund invests in a loan or participation, the fund is subject to the risk that an intermediate participant between the
tumd and the borrower will f2] to meet its obligations to the fund, in addition tothe risk that the borrower under the
lzan may default onits abligations,

Mote 7: Market, credit and other risks

In the normal course of business, the fund trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions where
risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market (market risk) or fallure of the contracting party to the
transaction bo perform (credit risk}, The fund may be exposed o additional credit risk that an institution or other
entity with which the fund has unsettied or open transactions will default. Investments In foreign securities involve
certain rishs, including those related to economic instability, unfavarable political developments, and currency
fiuctuations. The fund may imeest a significant porticn of its assets in securitized debt instruments, Intluding mort-
gage-backed and asset-backed investments. The ylelds and values of thesa investments are sensitive to changes
ininterest rates, the rate of principal payments on the underiying assets and the market’s perception af the issuers.
Themarkeat for thesa imsestments may be volatile and limited, which may make them difficult to buy or sell,

MNote B: Summary of derivative activity
The volume of activity for the reporting period for any derivative type that was held dunng the period is listed
below and was as follows based on an average of the holdings at the end of each fiscal quarter:

Purchesed TBA commitmenl opticn contracts (contract amount ) 39,700,000
Purchasad swap option contracts {(cantract amount) 754,400,060
Written futures contract option contracts (number of contracts) (Mote 33 10
Written swap option contracts (contract amount ) (MNote 3) $569, 000,000
Futures contracts (number of contracts) 2,000
OTC interest rate swap contracts {notional) $1.820,700.000
Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts (notional) $458,500.000
OTC total return swap contracts (natonal} $1.076, 500,000
OTC credit default swap contracts (noticnal) 39,800,000
Certrally cleared credil default contracts {nationaly -

® For the reporting period. the transactians were minimal,
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The following i< a summary of the market values of derivative instrurments as of the clase of the reporting penod:
Market values of derivative instruments as of the close of the reporting period

Aﬁ_ﬂ derivatives Liability derivatives
Derivatives not

accounted for as Statement of Statement of

hedging instruments assets and assets and
under ASC 815 Habsilities location Market value liabsllities location Market value
Credit contracts Recevables L T Payables £1,148.798

Investrmants,

Racevables, Met Payables,

assets — Mot assets —

Urrealized Unraalized
Interest rate contracts appreciaton 11,819,635" depreciaton 23,755,023
Total 511,819,635 $24,903,821

* Imchudes cumiulative appreciation/depreciation of lutures contracts and centrally cleared swaps as reparted in the
furd's portfolice Only current day's vadiabion marainis reporbed withinthe Statement of assets and liabilities

The fcllowing is a summary of realized and change in unrealized gains or losses of desivative instruments on the
Staterment of operaticns for the reporting period (see Mota 1)

Amount of realized gain or (loss) on derivatives recognized in net gain or (loss) oninvestments

Derivatives not accounted for
as hedging instruments under
ASCELS Options Futures Swaps Tatal
Credit contracts — — 445 942 5446942
Interest rate cantfracts (7.720.912) (14,429 478) 30,929,216 38,778,825
Total $(7,720,91%)  $(14,429,478) $31,376,158 $9,225,768

Change inunrealized appreciation er {depreciation) on derivatives recognized in net gain or {loss) oninvestments

Derivatives not accounted for

as hedging instruments under

ASCE1S Options Futures Swaps Tatal
Credit contracts = — $232,048 $232.048
Intarest rate condracts 3,082 548 84,490 {13.269.917) (10, 102879
Total $3,082,548 384,490 £(13,037 869) $(9,870,831)

Mote 9: New accounting pronouncement

Im January 2013, ASU 20M3-01, “Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsefting Assefs and Liabilities,”
amended ASU No, 200-1, “Disclosuwes about Offsetting Assels and Liabifities. " The ASUs create new disclosure
requirernants requiring entities to disclose both gross and net information for derivatives and other financial Instru-
ments that are either offset in the Statement of assets and liabilities or subject to an enforceable master netting
arrangement or similar agreement. The disclosure requirements are effective for annual reperting periods begin-
ning omor after January 1, 2013 and interim periods within those annual pericds, Putnam Management is currently
evaluating the application of ASUs 2013-01 and 2011-11 and thelr impact, if any, on the fund's financial statemants.
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The fund's portfolio 10/21/13
MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (48.2%)"

Agency collateralized mortgage obligations (25.15%)

Faderal Home Loan Mortgage Coro.
IF8 Spr. 3182, Class 5P, 27.904s, 2032
IF8 Ser. 3408, Class EK, 25,093, 2037
IFB Ser. 2976, Class L, 23,7825, 2035
IFB Ser, 2979, Class AS, 23,6358, 2034
IF8 Ser. 3072, Class 5B, 23.012s, 2035
IF8 Ser, 324%, Closs PS, 21.701s, 2036
IFB Sar, 3065, Class DC. 19,338, 2035
IF8 Ser. 2890, Class LB, 16.501s, 2034
IFB Ser, 4105, Class HS, 10, 6.4265, 2042
IFB Ser. 3861, Class PS, 10, 64265, 2037
IFB Ser, 3007, Class K5, 10, 6,376s, 2040
IF8 Ser. 3708, Class 54,10, 62765, 2040
IFB Ser. 4112, Class 5C, 10, 5.976s, 2042
IFA Ser, 4108, Class LS, 10, 59765, 2041
IFB Ser. 4245, Class AS, 10, 5.8265, 2043
IFB Ser. 3852, Class NT, 5.826s, 2041
IFB Ser, 3752, Class PS, 10, 5.8265, 2040
IFB Ser, 310, Class 54, 10, 5,.776s, 2043
IFB Ser, 311, Class 51, 10, 5.776s, 2043
I8 Ser, 314, Class AS, 10, 5.716s, 2043
Ser, 3632, Class (1, 10, 55, 2038
Ser, 3626, Class DI 10. 55, 2037
Ser, 4132, Class IR, 10, 4 1/7s, 2042
Ser, 4127, Class T1, 10, 4 1725, 2042
Ser, 4018, Class DI, 10, 4 1/25, 2041
Sor, 3747, Class HI, 10, 4 1/25, 2037
Ser. 3707, Class PIL 10, 4 1/2s, 2025
Sef, 4116, Class ML, 10, As, 2042
Sor. 4127, Class AL 1D, 3 1/ 25, 2042
Ser, 4141, Chass PLL 10, 35, 2042
Ser, 4158, Class 11,10, 35, 2082
Ser, 4165, Class 11,10, 35, 2042
Ser, AL76, Clas: DI, 10, 3=, 2042
Sor. 4171, Class NI, 10, 3=, 2042
Sor, 4183, Class M1, 10, 35, 2042
Ser. T-56, Class A, 10, 0,524, 2043
Ser, T-56. Class 1. 10, 2era % 2043
Ser, T-06, Class 2, 10, 2era %, 2043
Ser. T-56, Class 3, |0, zero %, 2043
Ser, 3835, Crass FO, PO, zoro %, 2041
Ser, 3369, Class BO, PO, rerc %, 2037
Sar, 3391, PO, rero ¥, 2037
Ser, 3300, PO, zera %, 2037
Ser, 3206, Class EQ, PO, rero ¥, 2036
Ser. 3175, Class MO, PO, reo X, 2036
Ser 3210, PO, rera %, 2036
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Principal amount

$150.953
1731145
205,592
BA.677
683208
564015
901 6E0
1020868
5173432
4536070
4,770,004
12,251.768
14,511,068
5473110
13806235
3506432
6,795,538
3,820,979
31,441,947
9,014,368
178311
61.482
16,943,801
6076408
7062.119
1,766,615
4,651,306
13,160,907
11.373.703
11656085
23,840,861
35,584,478
12076062
18,700,401
10,631,064
11,774,383
14,053,150
5.062.290
4,241,175
11,882,147
28,447
319.432
515.505
24816
86,371
88328

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

£232.916
2574531
307,924
115010
68,904
785,253
1,305,929
1,365,821
1,248,039
680,773
803,167
2063503
2681323
1,064,301
5,123,246
3,508,711
1,037,067
¥50,469
033803
2,000,380
13,386
1398
2,989,570
1,199,270
1,074,956
170,644
381175
26240872
1,774,299
1,634,580
4,136,839
4,360,476
4,455 (86
2,576,915
1,482,532
21912
105,39
15.820
55,665
10,027 140
34,639
271,045
A68.975
22,099
76,101
BOB7S

Income Fund 27



EDINETOOOO

O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (48.2%) con. Principal amount Value

Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.

Federal Home Laan Mertoage Corp,
FRE Ser. 3117, Class AF, zero ¥, 2036 $20.530 £18.424
FRE Ser. 3326, Closs WF, zer %, 2035 22,307 20,335
FRE Ser. 2086, Class AS, zero k., 2035 7.984 7961

Federal National Mortoage Association
IFE Ser. 06-62, Class PS, 38,8795, 2036 1.085.822 2163581
IFB Ser. 06-8, Class HP, 23,9435, 2036 7495.931 1240522
IFB Sar. 05-45, Class DA, 23,7965, 2035 1551972 2355481
IFB Ser, 05-122, Class S5E, 22,504, 2035 1,655,750 2430950
IFB Ser, 05-75, Class (35, 19,7305, 2035 S10,077 BH7 6D
IFB Ser. (5-106, Class JC, 19.508s, 2035 Br2.492 1,310,501
IFE Ser. 05-83, Class GF. 16,951, 2034 180,627 237,758
IFE Ser. 11-4, Class £5, 12 565, 2040 1,925 682 2,288,198
IFE Sar. 12-96, Class PS, 10, 6535, 2041 £.247.980 1728481
IFB Ser, 12-75, Class SK, 10, 64485, 2041 13,518,545 2573525
IFB Ser, 12-75, Class KBS, 10, 6.38s, 2042 8,227,728 1523940
IFB Ser. 12-3, Class (S, 10, 5,385, 2040 5,843,598 1471133
IFB Ser. 11-27, Class AS, 1D, 6,315, 2041 8,394,427 1,389,048
IFE Sar. 10-35, Class 56, 10, 6,235, 2040 20,462.587 3662261
IFBSer. 12-132, Class 58,10, 5.03s, 2042 11,235,219 1703147
IFB Ser, 13-19, Class DS, 1D, 6.03s, 2041 9,284,191 1787932
Ser, 06-10, Class GC, b5, 2034 6831424 7.036,367
IFB Ser, 13-59, Ciass SC, 10, 5.98s, 2043 13,080,840 2808224
IFR Ser, 13-13, Clas SA, 100, 5,08, 2043 14,348 594 3,509,800
IFE Ser. 13-101, Class AS, 10, 5.78s, 2043 22,492 544 5.252,164
IFE Sar. 11-583, Class SY, KD, 5.78s, 2041 12,282 436 1408795
IFB Ser. 13-103, Class 5K, 10, 5 3/4s, 2043 5152693 1,214,219
Ser, 13-101, Class SE, 1D, 5,735, 2043 12,136,893 3079737
IFB Ser, 13-102, Class SH, 1D, 5,735, 2043 12,244,307 2.754 969
Ser, 12-139, Class T1, 10, 4 1/, 2040 G, /35,445 1,811,464
Ser. 418, Ciass C24, 10), 45, 2043 8,950,000 1,932,691
Ser. 12-124, Class LI, 10, 45, 2042 26,277,220 4945373
Sar. 12-40, Class M1, 10, 45, 2041 13.507.841 2402033
Ser. 418, Class C15, 10,3 1/2s, 2043 18,260,000 3.939,6062
Sar, 13-55, Class K, 10, 35, 2043 5,246,000 1,349,084
Ser, 13-35, Class |8, 10, 35, 2042 10626850 1.298,053
Ser. 13-55, Class P, 103, 35, 2042 17,915,061 2.338,005
Ser, 13-30, Clagg IR, 10, 35, 2041 9,427 840 1,026,692
Ser. 13-23, Class L, 35, 2041 10,842,160 1,187.73%
Sor. 03-wW10, Class 1,10, 1.147s, 2043 679,708 282,768
Ser. 01-50, Class B1, 10, 0.405s, 2041 836,915 8369
Ser, 2002-Wh. Class 1410, 0,173s, 2042 1,070,260 2,341
Ser, 2005-Wa, Class 1A, 0,005, 2035 236,140 564
Ser, 03-34, Class P1, PO, ero, 2043 228,240 1844922
Ger, 07-54, Clagg L0, PO, zem %, 2037 124,430 110479
Ser. 07-14, Class KO, PC, 2ara ¥, 2037 166,294 520,562
Ser. 06-125, Class OX, PO, zero &, 2037 51,053 46,503
Sar. 06-84, Class OT, PG, zero %, 2036 39,393 35413
Ser, 06-4&, Class OC, PO, zero %, 2036 35,398 31,233
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Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.
Govarnmient Naticnal Mortgage Associatan

IFB Ser, 11-56, Class 54, 23.751s, 2041 £10,300,384 £15,28% A2
IFB Ser, 10-158, (lass S0, 14,4835, 2040 2,780,250 3410866
IFE Ser, 11-70, Class WS, 9.3555, 2040 11,858.000 11,774,164
IFE Ser, 11-72, Clags SE. 7.1745, 2041 9,422,000 9,400,612
IFE Ser, 11-61, Class C5, 10, 6.508s, 2035 15,967,354 2303291
IF8 Ser. 12-26, Class 5P, 10, 4785, 2012 9,236,560 2272472
IFB Ser, 10-10M0, Class SB, 6.428s, 2040 10,750,502 2225137
Ser, 10-9, Class X[, 10, 6.425s, 2040 35,183,282 6,315,626
IFB Ser, 11-3. Class 56, 10, 6,378, 2041 3,620.068 725461
IFE Ser, 10-56, Class SC, 10, 6.3285, 2040 3912346 728831
IFE Ser, 10-35, Class CS, 10, 6,298, 2040 15,815,535 3022824
IFB Ser, 11-56, Class MI, 10, 6.278s, 2041 5580772 1,353,751
IFB Ser, 10-20, Class SE, 10, 6.0785. 2040 12,509,446 2,230,434
IFB Ser, 13-113, Class 5L, 10, 6.058s, 2042 5312164 975,695
IFB Sar, 13-87, Class AS, 10, 6.028s, 2043 5313809 202 604
IFB Ser, 13-87, Class SA, 10, b.028s, 2043 9,659,246 1,654,001
IF8 Ser, 13-124, Class SC, 10, 6.028s, 2041 5,145,751 1,047,052
IF8 Ser, 13-129, Class SM, 10, 5.978¢, 2043 T.484,250 1.223.750
IFB 5ar, 13-99, Class 5L, 10, 5.978s, 2043 9,710,093 1,502680
IFB Ser. 10-20, Class 5C, 10, 59785, 2040 T.751.316 1377098
IFB Ser, 13-129, Class SA, 10, 5.928s, 2043 3,958,667 B62.483
IFB Ser, 11-04, Class 54, 10, 5.028s, 2041 14, 515.015 2618509
IFA Ser, 11-146, Class AS, 10, 5.9255, 2041 T4 712 1,576,775
Ser. 13-149, Class MS, 10, 5.922¢, 2039 11,755,000 1,809,167
IFB Ser. 10-158, Class 54, 10, 5.878s, 2040 4,691,096 842,193
IF8 Ser, 10-151, Class 54, 10, 5.878s, 2040 4,658,431 836,887
IFB Ser. 10-120, Class SA, 10, 5.878s, 2040 9,720,610 1747812
IFB 5er, 11-128, Class 15, 10, 5 7/8s, 2041 25,380,281 2418,620
IF8 Ser, 11-13, Class 58,10, 5,778s, 2041 7,74R,542 1,374,032
IFB Ser, 11-70, Class SM, 10, 57155, 2041 5,789,000 1,425,715
IF8 Ser, 10-31, Class SA, 10, 5.578s, 2040 10,149,991 1,717,900
IF8 Ser, 10-37, Class 5G, 10, 5.528:. 2040 12983 482 2,109,751
IFB Ser, 10-42, Class 5%, KD, 54985, 2040 TAZ6.B02 1.1%8.529
Ser. 13-3, Class T, 10, 55, 2043 8.937.395 1876486
Ser 11-116, Class 18, 10, 55, 2040 10,762.073 926,321
Ser, 13-16, Clazs 1B, 10, 55, 2040 18,699,223 1,978,400
Ser, 10-35, Clazgs LI, 10, 55, 2040 10,564,792 2194 8248
Ser. 10-9, Class Ui, 10, 55, 2040 10,310,063 14,419,541
Ser. 08-121, Class LI, 10, 55, 2039 20623978 4,212,448
Ser. 12-129, Class 1D, 10, 4 1/2s, 2042 8650870 2,104,757
Ser, 10-35, Class QI 10, 4 1/25, 2040 9,411,689 1.95B8.698
Ser, 10-9, Class G, 10), 4 1/25, 2040 31,347,301 6,211,963
Ser, 11-116, Class 1A, 10,4 1/, 3039 B500812 1,309,805
Sar, 12-56, Clase B, 10, 45, 2042 17,717,874 3E91.345
Ser. 13-37. Class I, 10, 3 172 2043 9.B13.324 1542066
Ser, 13-27, Class PI, 10, 3 1/ 2s, 2042 11833690 1.530003
Ser, 12-T1, Class &1, 10, 3 1/2s, 2042 22.519.650 29390359
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (48.2%)" cont Principal amount Value
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations cont.
Government National Mortgage Assodistion
Ser, 13-18, Class &I, 10, 3 1/25, 2041 $10,530,154 1,684,821
Ser, 12-48, Class K1, 10, 31/2s, 2029 8,943,827 1492814
Ser. 13-53, Class P, 10, 35, 2041 15,616,106 2087093
Ser. 13-23%, Class K, 10, 3s, 2037 3588 575 681,579
IFB Ser. 11-70, Class ¥1, 10, 0,155, 2040 15,722,313 83,800
Ser, 10-151, Class KO, PO, 7ero %, 2037 196,140 609,823
Ser, 06-36, Class 0D, PO, zero %, 2036 45,913 42,412
Strctured Asset Securities Corp, 1444
Ser. 0B-RFE3, Class A, 10, 615, 2024 443 546 73,185
IFB Ser. 07-4, Class 1A3, 10, 5.997s, 2045 32,473,154 5,647 802
Commercial mortgage-backed securitios (15.8%) SO s
Banc of America Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRE3 Ser. 05-5, Class B, 5.223s, 2045 6,500,000 6,768,450
FRE Ser, 05-1, Class Ad, 51685, 2042 1075127 1,107,994
Ser, 04-4, Class D, 5.073s, 2042 384,000 1.020,083
Ser, 07-1, Class XW, 10, 0,323z, 2049 8,699,398 5S40
Bane of America Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
Ser, 04-4, Class XC, 10, 0.823s, 2042 16.162.580 64,586
Ser, 04-5, Class XC, 10, 06875, 2041 318086828 170,021
Ser. 02-PBZ. Class XC, 1D, 0.403s, 2035 6,627 411 &0
Saer, O7-5, Class XW, 10, D.367s, 2051 19,721,270 192 5598
Ser. 05-1, Clazs ¥W, 10, 0.038=, 2042 221 636,795 50,533
Baar Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securitios, Inc, Ser, 04-PR3IL,
Class %1, 10, 0.895s, 2041 4,457 B64 34,824
Bear Stearns Commercial Mortgage Securities, InC. 1444
FRE Ser. 06-PW11. Class B, 5.443s, 2039 1,881,000 1877050
Ser, 06-PW14, Class k1, 10, 0.1675, 2038 16,028,404 275,689
CFCRE Cammercial Mortgage Trust 1444 FRE Ser. 11-C2,
Class [, 5.5545, 2047 1,750,000 1,791,650
Citigroun Commearcial Mortgage Trust 1444
FR Ser. 12-GCB. Class D, 4 8785, 2045 7.098,000 6,540,807
Ser, 0E-C5, Class %0, 10, 0. 1445, 20449 112,018,142 1,646,667
Citigroupy Deutsche Bank Camemercial Mortoaoe Trust 1444
Ser, 07-C04, Class XW, 10, 0.378s, 2049 46,219,725 499,173
Ser. 07-CD4, Class ¥C, 10, 0,169, 2049 146,564,270 1,377,704
Commercial Martgage Trust
Ser, 07-C9, Class AJ, 5,655, 2049 3377000 5.549.565
Pass-Through Certificates Ser. 12-CR3, Class XA, 10,
22045, 2045 26,114,345 3234728
Commercal Mortgage Trast 1444
FRB Ser. 07-C0, Class AJFL. 0.8645, 2049 1,943,000 1,709,840
Pass-Theough Certilicates Ser. 06-CE, Class X5, 10,
01625 2046 ) 50,260,534 659,548
Credit Sussse First Boston Commercial Mortgage Trust
Ser. 05-C5, Class C, 5.15, 2038 1,487,000 1,524 937
Cradit Suisse Maortgage Capital Cartiticates FRE Ser, 07-C4,
Class 42, 5.761s, 2039 3,069,464 5,074,931
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (48.2%)" cont

Commaercial mortgage-backed securities conf.
Credit Suisse Mortgage Capital Certificates 1444 Ser. 07-C2,
Class A%, 10, 0.07 15, 2049

C3 First Boston Mortgzge Securities Corp, Ser. 03-CPNL,
ClassE, 4.891s, 2035

C5 First Boston Mortgage Securities Corp, 1444

Ser, 98-C1. Class F. 65, 2040

Ser, 0Z-C3. Class AX, 10, 1.3225, 2038

Ser, 02-CP3, Class AX, 10, 1.23s, 2035
DBRR Trust 1444 FRB Ser. 13-EZ3. Class A, 16365, 2043
Deutsche Bank-UBS Commencal Mortgage Trust 1444 FRB
Ser. 11-LC2A, Class D, 5.48445, 2044

DL Commercial Mangage Conp. 1444 FRE Sar. 98-CG1,
Class B4, 7.1725, 2031

First Union National Bank-Bank of America Commercial
Mortgage Trust 1444 Ser. 01-C1, (lass 3, 10, 1,692s, X033
(GE Business Loan Trist 1444 Ser, 04-2, Class D, 2924, 2032F
GE Capitsl Commercial Morlgage Corp. 1444

Ser, (5-C3, Class X0, 10, 0,165, 2045

Ser. 07-C1, Class XC, 10, 0.113s, 2043
GE Commercial Mortgage Corporation Trust FRB Ser. 05-C1,
Class B, 4.86s, 2048
GMAC Comimercial Morgage Secufitios, [nd.

Ser. 97-C1. Class ¥, 10, 1.201s, 2029

Ser, 05-C1, Class X1, 10, 0.602s, 2043

Greenwach Capitad Commercial Funding Corp. FRB-Ser, 05-GG3.
Class B, 4,894s, 2042
G5 Mantgage Securties Corp. 11 1444 Ser. 06-GG6, Class XC_ 10,
0.082s, 2038
G5 Martgage Secunties Trust
FRE Ser. 04-GG2, Class [, 56455, 2038
Ser, 06-GGE, Class A ), 5,622, 2009
Sef, 06-GG6, Class A2, 5.506s, 2078
G5 Martgage Securntias Trust 1444
Sor. 98-C1, Class F, Gs, 2030
FREB Ser. GC10, Class D, 4.415s, 2046
JPMargan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
FRE Ser. 07-CB20, Class &4, 6.072s, 2051
FRBE Ser. 07-L012, Class A3, 59255, 2051
FRE Spr, 06-L0PT, Class B, 5 863s, 2045
Ser. 07-LD12, Class A2, 5.827s, 2051
FRB Ser, 07-LD11, Class A2, 57085, M9
FRE Ser. 04-CBS, Class B. 5.6475. 2041
FRE Ser, 06-CB14, Class AZE, 54868, 2044
Ser, 02-C3, Class D, 5.314s, 2035
FRB Ser, 04-CBX, Class B, 5,021s, 2037
FREB Ser. 13-C10, Class 0, 4.161=, 2047
Sor, 06-LDPR, Class X, 1D, 0.546s, 2045
Ser, OF-LDEX, Class ¥, 10, 0.302s, 20449

150/300

84 64T B4E
1,528,000

LB46,736
4,086,335
1.523.954
9,610,402

500.000
192.289

974.910
208,192

260,189.922
124,956,542

3,997.000

2.316.011
30,327,605

1,594,000

091,921,304

1.628.000
866,000
1.454.564

126,225
3,433,000

3.863.000
19,773.000
3.516.000
9H.240
2,303.860
4374000
811.924
188.174
1,143,000
1,709,000
50,202,452
bE.960.878
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$278.224

1,526,000

2031408
41

10.636
9625418

S00.617
192,574

4,760
104,069

75935
B42,776

4,003,895

61.557
xn13n

1544570
106,721

1653346
847,042
LA72746

128,225
3,023,100

321
20,272,130
3,042 594
08,240
2,308,468
2436911
§14.261
188109
1,134,532
1,456,924
706,700
577,710
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (48.2%)" cont. Principal amount. Value

Commercial mortgage-backed securities cont.
JPMergan Chase Commearcial Mortgage Sequnties Trast 1444

FRE Ser. 10-C1, Class [, 6.312s, 2043 $3.439,000 $35,627.805
FRS Ser.07-CB20,Class C, 6.172s, 2051 1,556,000 1,453 506
FRE Ser_01-C1, Class H, 5.626s, 2035 1,335,565 1,311,243
FRB Ser. 11-C3, Class E, 5.541s, 2046 1,416,000 1,464,934
FRE Ser. 12-C8, Class D, 4.6685, 2045 5,584,000 5800447
FRE Ser. 12-L.C3, Class E, 4.4275, 2047 912,000 819,583
FRE Ser. 12_109, Class [0, 4.4275, 2047 3,277,000 5,088,316
Ber, 05-CH12, Clazs X1, 100, 0,345, 2037 5,808,440 149,560
Sar, 06-LOPE, Class X1, 10, 0.078s, 2043 48,087,106 139,741
LB Commercial Conduit Martgage Trust 1444
Ser, 99-C1. Class F 6415, 2031 248,114 249,974
Ser, 99-C1, Class G, 6,415, 2031 BRLITT 886,814
Ser, 98-C4, Class G, 5,65, 2035 93740 96,009
Ser. 98-C4, Class H, 5.65, 2035 E08,000 857,127
LB-UBS Commercial Mortgage Trust
FRE Ser. 05-C6, Class AJ, 5.4525, 2039 3.913.000 4,186,268
Ser. 06-C7, Class A2, 5.35, 2078 2,170,479 2,260,857
Sar, O7-C2, Class XW. 10, 0.538s, 2040 5,910,496 105,538
L8-UES Commercial Mortgage Trust 1444
FRB Ser. 04-C1, Class G, 5.077s, 2036 7,400,000 7002734
Ser, 06-C7, Class KW, 10, 0.651s, 2038 37,064,025 665,522
Ser, 05-C5, Class XCL. 10, 0.462s, 2040 A3,829,807 768,552
Ser, 05-C2, Class ¥CL. 10, 0.348s, 2040 137,505,314 477 868
Ser, 0B-C7, Clags ¥CL. 10, 02568, 2038 61,933,991 1,087 685
Ser. 05-C7, Class ¥CL. 10, 0.207s. 2040 116,880,592 458,406
Ser, QF-C2, Class ¥XCL. 10, 0.131s, 2040 130,919,906 2089613
Merrll Lynch Mortgage Investors, Inc. Ser. 96-CZ, Class 15, 10,
2.377s, 2028 30,018 4
Mesrill Lynch Mortgage Trust
FRE Ser. 08-C1, Class A, 5.2635 2051 1,828,000 1,906,970
FRB-Ser. 07-C1, Class AZ, 5.8525, 2050 1.012.000 1,036,622
FRB Ser, 05-CKI1, Class B, 5.285, 2057 10,872,000 11,169,893
Mernll Lynch Mortgane Trust 1444
Ser, 04-KEY 2, Class XC, 10, 0,935, 2039 12,752,006 71,067
Sar, 05-MCP1, Class XC, 10, 0.59s, 2043 36,006,277 276,452
Merril Lynch/Countrywide Commercial Mortoage Trust FRE
Ser 6.4, Class AZFL, 02045, 2049 AR 986 480,385
Merrll Lynchy/Countrywide Financa Corp. Commercal
Martgage Trust Ser, 06-4, Class AJ, 5.239¢, 2049 1,286,000 121,700
Mezz Cap Commercial Marlgage Trust 1444
Ser.04-C1, Class ¥, 10, B.619s, 2037 764,431 35393
Sar. 06-C4. Class X, [0, 5108, 2045 4,937,942 481,449
Sar. 05-C3, Class X, 10, 5.9535, 2044 1,762 681 166,045
Margan Stanlay Caoital | Trust
FRE Ser, 06-T23, Class A2, 5.741s, 2041 62,690 62,630
Ser, 07-1014, Class AZ, 5615, 204% 77497 884,663
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MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES (48.2%)° cont.
Commercial mortgage-backed securities conf,
Morgan Stankey Capital | Trust

FRE Ser, 07-HQ12 Class A2, 5.57%s, 2049

FRB Ser, O7-HGQ 12, Class AZFX, 5.5795, 2049
Morgan Stanley ReREMIC Trust 1440 FRE Ser, 10-C304,
Class A3B, 52465, 2043
Morgan Stanley/Bank af America/Merrill Lynch Trust 1444
Ser. 13-C10, Class D, 4.083s, 2046
Tha Real Estate CDO. Ltd, Ser, 03-14, Class E. Bs. 2038
UBS-Barclays Commercial Mortgage Trust 1a4A

FRE Ser. 12-C3. Class [, 4.958s, 249

Ser, 12-C4, Class XA, 10, 1.884s, 2045
Wachovia Bank Commercial Mortgage Trust

Ser. 06-C24, Class AJ, 5.658s, 2045

Ser, 05-C17, Class 0, 5.3%6s, 2042

Ser. D&-C29, 10, 0393, 2048

Ser. 0F-C34, 10, L3357, 2086
Wachowia Bank Commescial Mortgage Trust 1444

Ser, 05-C18, Class XC, 10, 0.336s, 2042

Ser, B6-C26, Class X, 10, 0,051s, 2045
WF-RES Cormmercial Mortoaoe Trust 1444

FRE Ser. 11-C4, Class E, 5.248s, 2044

FRE Ser, 12-C10, Class D, 4,465, 2045

FRB Ser. 13-C11, Class D, 4.184s, 2045

Residential mortgage-backed securities (non-agency) (7.3%)
Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc. Ser. 2005-WF2, Cass AF4,
49645, 2035

Citigroup Mortgage Loan Trust, Inc. 1443 Ser. 10-8, Class 1A2,
51125, 2056

Countrywide Asset Backed Cartificates FRB Ser. 05-AB1L.
Class A%, 0,775, 2035

First Plus Hame Loan Trust Ser. 97-3, Class B1, 7.79s, 2023
(in defaul) _ _ _
Harbarview Mortoage Loan Trust FRE Ser. 05-9, Class 2A1E,
0.543s, 2035
Mortgageit Trust FRE Ser. 08-1, Class 1M2. (.76s, 2035
WAMU Martgage Pass-Through Cortificalios

FRE Ser. 05-AR11, Class ALCS, 0.68s, 2045

FRB Ser, 2004-AR13, Class A182, (.678s, 2034

FRB Ser, 05-AR19, Class ALCE, 0.67s, 2045

FRE Ser. 05-AR11, Class ALB2, 0635, 2045

FRE Ser, 05-AR13, Class ALCA, 0u6s, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-4R1T, Clags A1B2. 0585, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-AR11, Class ALBE, 0.57s, 2045

FRB Ser. 05-ARS, Class 2AC3, 0,565, 2045

FRB Ser, 2005-AR17, Class A1B3, 0.525, 2045

Total mortgage-backed securities (cost §544,315,512)

152/300

$2.003.220
6,133,031

424, 262

1.803.000
1.577.041

2,810,000
23873.626

2171000
6,740,000
177523974
16,304,776

22,783,196
10,954,877

3.990,768
2 618,000
1605000

1,141.114
1.300.000
10,723,146
134,710

7.878.121
3.861.035

4,778,701
12,169,628
12,214,433

4,994,082
20,164,757

6,751,251

B.B97 377

5,236,264

2,008,712
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3200821
6.256.919

433,55

1.438.632
304,485

£.5352.171
2784190

2,093,495
6638226
2089457

197.288

90.905
20,157

3892377
2342001
1,338,169
194,555,832

1,138,261
1.274.000
10,052 949
13

7,216,359
3.262 876

042 478
10,952,665
10,260,141

4,295 684
17,140,044

5806076

7. 740718

4,558,167

1777710
89,418,091

$592,408,101
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US GOVERNMENT AMD AGEMCY
MORTGAGE OBLIGATIONS (34.3%)° Principal amount Value

LS. Government Guaranteed Mortgage Obligations (5.9%)
Government National Mortgage Asscoiation Pass-Through Certificates

55, TBA, Novemnber 1, 2043 $10,000.000 410,884,375
4 1/25, TBA, Novernber 1. 2043 45,000,000 48,747,654
31/2s. TBA, Novernber 1, 2043 12,000,000 14.464,0603

72,096,092

LL5. Government Agency Morlgage Obligations (28.4%)
Federal Horme Loan Mortgage Corporation Pass-Throuah Certificates

s, with due dates from June 1. 2042 10 June 1, 2043 35.157.211 36.805.205
Federal Mational Mortgage Association Pass-Through Cartificates
¥s. January 1. 2017 2,551 2642
5. TBA, November 1, 2043 10,000,000 10.960,938
A5, wath due dates from Jume 1, 2042 to kovember 1, 2042 124437 157 130,386,808
A5, THA, December 1, 2043 6,000,000 6,303,985
45, TBA, Movernber 1, 2043 16,000,000 16857501
3 1/2c withdue dates from Movamber 1, 2042 60 May 1. 2043 51,744,977 52,743,424
51/, T8A, Docember 1, 2043 22,000,000 22518 625
31725, TBA, Novernber 1. 203 22,000,000 22575782
35, TBA, November 1, 2043 51,000,000 20,338,591
349,490,571
Total U.S. government and agency mortgage obligations (cost $429,101,386) $421,586,663
LS TREASURY DBLIGATIOMNS (=%)* Principal amount Value
L5, Treasury Nates 25, September 30, 2020 $479,000 3431,074
Total U.S. treasury obligations (cost $428,734) $431,074
CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (27.2%)" Principal amount Value
Basic materials {L7%)
Ashiand, Inc. company guaranty s unsec. unsub. notes
A 3/4s, 2022 $571.000 548,160
Colanese LIS Holdings, LLT sr. motes 5 7/8s, 2021 (Germany ) 835,000 893,450
CF Industries, Inc. company guaranty sr, unsas. ursub, notes
7 1/8s, 3020 112.000 133,427
Cytes industnes, inc. &, unses, unsub, notes 3 1725, 2023 255,000 335,758
Eastman Chemical Co, s, unsec. notes 3.6, 2022 1,245,000 1,216,204
Eastrman Chemical Co, s unsec. unsub., notes 6,35, 2018 200,000 344,810
FMC Corp. sr. unsec. unsub. motes 5.25, 2019 025,000 6I0,542
Georgia-Pacific, LLT sf, unsec. unsub, notes 7 3/4s, 2029 470,000 60,662
International Pager Co. srounsas. notes 8.7s, 2038 510,000 718,331
Iriternatanal Pager Co. srunsec. notes 7955, 2018 1,400,000 1.734.372
LYB International Finangs BY sr, unsec. unsul, notes 45,
2023 (Metherlands) 610,000 612,737
LyondellBasell industries NV sr. unsec, notes s, 2021 1,935,000 2251380
Masaic Co, (The) sr. unsec, notes 3 3445, 2021 540,000 631,552
Packaging Corp. of America sr. unser, unsub, notes 4 1/2s, 2023 215.000 219,802
Packaging Corp. of Amesica s unsec, unsub. notes 3.9y, 2022 945,000 933,881
PPG industries, Inc. srunsec. unsub. debs. 745, 2019 1,130,000 1,361,859
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CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (27.2%)" cont.

Basic materials conf.
Rock-Tenn Co, comaany guaranty 50, Unsec, umsua,
notes 4.9, 2022

Rock-Tenn Co. company Quaranty 5. unssc. unsubn. notas

4,455, 2019

Termphe-inland, Inc. sr.unsec, unsub. notes & 5/8s, 2018

Unian Carbide Corp, 5. unsec, unsuby, bonds 7 3/4s, 2006
Westvaco Corp. company guaranty sr, unseg. unsub. notes
7.955, 2031

Weyerhasuser Co. sr, unsec, unsub, notes 7 3/8s, 2032
¥strala Finance Canada, Lid. 1444 company guasanty sr. unsec.
notes 63, 2041 (Canada)

X¥strata Finance Canada, Ltd. 1444 company guaranty sr, unsec.
unsub, bonds 5.8s, 2016 (Canada)

Capital goods (0.8%)

B/E Aerpgpace, Ing_ sr. unsec. unsub. notes 5 154s, 2032

Crown Amaricas, LLC/Crown Amenicas Capital Corp. 1V 1444
COMpany guaranty sr unsec. notesd 1,/2s, 2023

Delphi Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec, unsub. notes 55, 2023
Legrand France S5A 5. unass. unsub. debs B 1/24. 2025 (France)
Parker Hannifin Corp, sr, unsec. unsub, notes Sar MTH,

6 1/4s5, 2038

Republic Sarvices, InC. COMDAryY QUEBTAnTy S, unsec.

notes 5.7s, 2041

Republic Services. Inc. comoany Quaranty SF unse:,

notes 3.8s, 2018

Republic Services, Inc. comaany guaranty 5, unsed. ursyb,
notes 5 172, 2019

Staples, Inc. sr. unsec. unsul, notes 2 5/1s, 2018

Umited Technologies Corp. sr. unsec. notes 5.7s, 2040

Umited Technplogies Carp. sr unsec, unsub, notes 3.1s, 2022

Communication services (2.8%)

Amgrica Mowvil SAR de CV company guaranty &, unsed, unsub,
notes B 1/8s, 2040 (Mexica)

Amenca Movi SAB de CV company quaranty unsec. ursul.
notes 2 3/8s, 2016 {Mexico)

American Tower Corp, sr, unsac. notes 75, 20178

CC Holdings G5 V. LLC/Crown Castie GS 1l Corp. company
guaranty sr. notes 3.849s, 2023

CenturyLink, Inc, sr, ungec, debs, notes Ser, G, 6 7/8s, 2028
Comcast Corp, company guaranty st umsec. unsuly. notes
61/2s. 2035

Cornieg, InC. 57, unseC, unsuby, notes 5 374s, 2040

Crown Castle Towers, LLC 1444 comparny guaranty 51, notes
4 80835, 2000

Frantier Communicalions Corp. s, unsec. notes § 1/2s, 2000
MECUniversal Mecha, LLC s¢unsec. unsuby, natos G.ds, 2020
Orange 54 s unsec. unsub, notes 5 3/8s, 2019 (France)
Orange SA 51 unsec. unsub, notes 4 1/8s, 2021 (France)
Qwiest Corp, s5unsec. notes & 3/4s, 2021
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333,000
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1,210,000

1,415,000
2,025,000

700.000
265,000

1.915.000
B00.000
E45.000
EA0,000
BBE6.000

1,394,000

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Ooooooooooooooooonoao

£048, 366

420,331
1,251,418
150,123

1,746,109
1,722,164

568.612

671,789
20,717,839

1,113,481

418,500
2,214,445
1,224,343

530,642
B48.772
LR T

752203
916,710
116,961
553,201

9,861,130

41,150

682,900
1,404,845

1,343,330
1873125

851347
230392

2,068,778
214,000
1.022.412
83619
913680
15230585
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Communication services conl.

Rogers Communications, Inc. compary guaranty notes 6.8s,

2018 (Canada) £610.000 ETI3 115
Rogers Communications, Inc. Comoary guaranty Sr, Wnsec.,

uresuly, notes 4 1/2s, 2043 (Canada) 425,000 I76578
S84 Tower Trust 1444 comipany guaranty st notes 5,101s, 2017 2,425,000 2642313
SOA Tower Trust 1444 notes 2 9335 2017 280,000 268,834
SES 1444 company guaranty sr. ursec. notes 5.3s,

2043 (France} 920,000 878,306
TC! Communications, Inc. oompany guaranty 51 unsec, wnsub,

dehs, 77788, 2026 2,435,000 3240927
Tetecom Italia Canital SA company QUArAnty S UNRSEE, wnsub,

nates 6.175s, 2004 {italy) 621,000 637,978
Tefiefonica Emisiones SAL company guaranty sr. unsec, notes

5.462s, 2021 (Spain) 1.845.000 1,954,803
Tebeforeca Emisiones SAL Company guaranty sr. unsac, notes

4,575, 2023 (Spain) 770,000 TB7 455
Teleforsca Emisiones SAL company guaranty sr, unsec, wnsub,

notes 31925, 2118 {Spain) B50,000 BRE2,450
Time Warner Cabie, Inc. company Quaraniy sr. notes 7.3s, 2038 1,165,000 1,174,663
Time Wamer Cable, Inc, company Quaranty 51, unsec, notes

b 3/4s, 2018 255,000 309,308
Tirse Warner Cable, Inc., comipany guaranty st unsec, wnsuls.

notes & 3/4s, 2039 350,000 333317
Tima Warner Cable, Inc. company guaranty s unsec. unswb.

naotes § 1/2s, 2041 85,000 69,584
Tirma Warner Cable, Inc, s unsec, FRM notes 8 3/4s. 2019 B200.000 951,392
Tirne Warmer Entertainment Ca., LP company guaranty sr.

unsec. bonds 8 3/8s, 2033 449,000 431,651
Tirrs Warner Entertasnment Ca,, LP gr. unsec. debs, 8 3/8s, 2003 1,119,000 1.313 849
Verizon Communicat=ons, Ine. sr, nsac. unsub, notes B.4s, 2033 9Bs, 000 1112291
Verizon New Jersay, Inc. company quaranty Sr. unsec. unsub.

bonds 8s, 2022 540,000 772,829
Yenzon Pennsylvania, Inc. company guaranty srunsec, bonds

B.35s, 2030 795,000 972,065
Caonsumer cyclicals (2,4%) 34,798,546
Autanaton, Inc. company guaranty s, umsec, notes

6 3/4s, 2018 645,000 741,750
CBS Corp. company guaranty sr. unsec, debs. 7 7/8s, 2030 2,400,000 2985926
Chioice Hatals International, inc. coempany guaranty 5. unsec.

unsub, notes 5,75, 2020 1,195,000 1,244,294
Expedia, Inc. comparry guaranty sr_unsec. unsub. noles

5.955, 2020 950,000 1.008, 359
Ford Motor Co. st unsec. unsub, notes 7.4s, 2046 350,000 /32,740
Ford Motor Credit Co., LLC st unsec, notes 4.207s, 2016 2,760,000 2945,778
Ford Mator Credit Co., LLC sr. unsec, unsub. notes 5 7,/8s, 2021 1,675,000 1,919,002
Fard Mator Credit Co,, LLC s ungec, unsub, notes 5 3/45, 2021 400,000 455,627
General Motors Financial Co., Inc. 144A 5r, unsac. notes

31/4s, 2018 £61.000 658 521
General Mators Financal Co., Inc. 1444 sr. unsec. notes

2 3/45 2016 94,000 951,080
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CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (27.2%)" cont.

Consumner cyclicals cont.

GLP Capital LP/GLP Fnancing I, Inc. 144A company guaranty
of, unsec, nates 4 378 2018

Grupo Televisa SAB sr. unsec, unsulb, notes & 5,85,

2025 (Mexicc)

Historic TW, Inc. cornpary guaranty sr. unsec, unsul, bonds
9155, 2023

Host Hotels & Resorts LP s, unsec. unsub, notes Bs, 20219
Host Hotels & Resorts LP sr,unsec. unsub. notes 5 1/4s, 2022
Hyatt Hotels Corp, sr, unsec, unsul, notes 3 3/Bs, 2023

L. Brands, inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 6 5/8s, 2021
L Brands, Ine. 1. notes 5 5/8s, 2022

Macy's Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranly sr. unsec.
notesb.9s, 2029

Macy's Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
6.655, 2024

Macy's Retail Roldings, Inc. company guaranty §7, unsec, notes
51/8s. 2042

Macy’s Retail Holdings, Inc. company guaranty sr. unsec. notes
37/8s, 2022

Marriott International, Ing, S unsec. unsub, notes 3s. 2019

Mews Amernica Holdings, Inc, company guaranty sr. unsec. debs.
7 3/4s, 2024
HMews Amerca Haldings, Ine, debs. 7 3/4s, 2045

Mews Amesica, Inc. company guaranty Sr. unsec. unsub.,
notes b.ds, 2034

NVR, InC. 5. unsec, unsub. notes 3,955, 2022

O'Reilly Automotive, Inc. company guaranty s, unsec. unsub,
notes 3855, 2023

Ciwens Cormeng Company guaranty sr. unsec. notes 9s, 2019
Tirme Warmes, [nc. company guaranty sr.unsec, bonds 7.7s, 2032
TJ¥ Cos., I, 5. unsec, notes 2 1/2s, 2023

Walt Dizney Co, (The) srounsec, notes 2 3/4s, 2021

Walt Digney Co. (The) &r. unsat, unsub. notes 4 3/85, 2041

Consumer staples (2.3%)

Aldtria Grown, Inc. company guaranty srounsec, bonds 45, 2024
Altraa Group, Inc, company guaranty srunsac, notes 3,75, 2018
Altria Groug, InC. COMpany guaranty sr.unsec, notes

91/4g, 2019

Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide, inc. company guaranty sr.
unsec, unsub, notes 5,25, 20339

Bacardi, Lid, 1444 unsec, notes 4 1/3s, 2021 (Bermuda)
Campbell Soup Co. sr, unsec, unsub, notes §7/8s, 2021
Corrections Conp. of AMEnca company Guardnty 55 unsec. noles
41785, 20209

CV5 Pass-Throwah Trust 1444 company guaranty sr, notes
7.507s, 2022

Darden Restaurants, Inc. srunsec, unsub, notes 6,85, 2037
Dedhaize Geoun COMPANY uUAranty st Unsac, notes 4 1LIEs,
2019 (Belgitm)
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Value

1132600
596.001

910,456
294,444
131,182
623,840
924,000
845,625

394.094
482,294
231616

359,025
794,128

1,051,352
935,707

754,693
720,344

628,708
140,750
2,365.070
953,484
1,790,228
504,403
29,467,161

693,050
413,599

782145
1,975,243
1,527,386

942,818

278,538

2,595,305
2,361,517

514,813
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Consumer staples cont.

Dragen fnvestment Corp. COMDAny guaranty sr, unser.

debs. Bs, 2022 $675.000 imOE ITE
Erac USA Finance, LLC 1444 o, unsec, notes 4 1/2s, 2021 2,235,000 2,355,851
Kerry Group Fingnoial Services 1444 company guaranly 5.

unsec, notes 3.25, 2023 (reland) 1,300,000 1,214,742
Kralt Fopds Group, Ing, of, unsed. unsub, notes & 1/2z, 2040 3,905,000 4 667,715
Krait Foods Group, inc. sr. unsec. unsub. rotes s, 2042 420,000 £22135
Kroger Co, (The) company guaranty sr. unsec, unsub.,

naotes 6.4s, 2017 505,000 699,437
Kroger Con, (The) s, notes 6,158, 2020 200,000 232376
MeDonald's Corp, §9 unsec, Ser, MTM, 6.3, 2038 680,000 850,865
MeDonald's Corp. se unsec. bonds 6.3, 2037 530,000 664,752
McDionald's Corp. s unsec. notes 5.7s, 2039 T75.000 907,082
Malson Coors Brewing Co. company guaranty s unsac, unsub,

noles 55, 2042 610,000 al6,671
SABMillzr Haldings, Inc, 1448 company guaranly s unsed,

notes 4.95s, 2042 G50,000 643,861
WIPP Finance UK company guaranty 57 unsec, notes 8s, 2014

{United Kingdom) 1,370,000 1452118
Energy (2.3%) 2736088
Access Midstream Partners LR/ACMP Finance Conp. company

guaranty s unsec, notes 5 7/8s, 2021 202,000 643,645
Anadarko Finance Co. company guaranty s, unsec. ursub,

nates Sor, B, 7 1/, 2031 4880000 ZB67,199
BG Energy Capital PLC 1444 company guaranty 1. unsec. notes

ds, }021 (United Kangdom ) 200,000 208,385
BP Capital Markets PLC company guaranty srunsed, unsub,

nates 4, 7425, 2021 (Unted Kingdonm) 1.860.000 2,053,726
BP Capital Markets PLC company Quaranty 5¢. unses, unsul,

nates 4 1/24, 2020 (Linited Kingdom}) 520,000 679,900
Continental Resources, e, company guaranty &2 unsec, notas

41/2s5, 2023 450,000 453375
DCP Midstream, LLC 1244 sr. unsec, nobes 5,355, 2020 T75.000 826,785
Ker-Mobee Corp. compary guaranty 57, Unsec, unsun. notes

77485, 2031 285.000 1135574
Liskoil International Finance BY 144A compasny guaranty &

unsec. notes 4.563s, 2023 (Russia) 1,040,000 996,012
Marmathan Petrobeum Corp. sr. unsec, unsub. notes 6 1/2s, 2041 525,000 585,216
Mativa Enterprises, LLC 1444 sr, ursec, notes b.85s, 2040 805000 1112924
Mokl Hoiding Intermationasl, Ltd, company guaranty s unsec.

notes 6.05s, 2041 1,085,000 1,129,712
Petrabras Global Finance BY company guaranty S5 unsec,

unsub. notes 4 3/8s 2023 (Rrazil) #20,000 757,178
Petrohawk Erergy Corp. company guaranty 57, unsec, notes

7 1/4s, 2018 2.910.000 5054440
Piains Exploration & Production Co. company quaranty sr,

unsee. notes b 574, 2022 1,680,000 1,847,412
Pride intesnational, Inc. sr. unsac. notes ¥ 7 /&8s, 2040 2,160,000 2852 027
Ras Laffan Liguehed Matural Gas Co., Lid. 2444 company

guaranty sr. notes 5 1/2s, 2014 (Gatar) 1,015,000 1,055,600
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CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (27.2%)" cont. Principal amount Value

Energy cont.

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC company guaranty 5. unsec. notes

5655, 2020 £240.000 F262 849

apectra Energy Capital, LLC comparny guaranty sr. unsec, unsub.

notes 6,25, 2018 135,000 155,327

Spectra Energy Capital, LLC sr. notes &s, 2019 650,000 791,529

Statod ASA company Guaranly &1 unsac. noles 5.1s,

2040 Morway) 1,900,000 2,028,163

Weatherford Bermuda company guaranty sr, unsec. nates

a5,/8s, 2013 (Barmuda)l 584,000 745141

Woatharfordg Intarrational, LLEC company guaranty sr. unsec.

ursub, motes 5.8s, 2057 205,000 219,696

‘Weatherford International, LLC company Guaranty sr. unsec.

unsub, motes 6,355, 2017 240,000 27249

Weatherford International. Ltd. company guaranty notess 1/ s,

2036 (Bermuda) B2.000 84,803

Financials (10.0%) ALY

ABN Armire Bank MY 1444 2. uncec, notes 4 1/4s,

2017 {Metharlands) 4,480,000 4,798 507

Affac, Inc. sr. unsec. notes 5.9s, 2039 1,725,000 2,180,208

Adiac, Inc, sr. unsec. notes 6.45s, 2040 675,000 317.807

Ammerican International Group, Inc, jr, sub. FRB bonds

B8.175s, 2068 1.414.000 1,742,755

Aon PLC corngmany gusaranty sr unssc. ursul, notes 4 1/4s, 2042 3,255,000 2,852,705

Associates Corp, of North America st unsec. noles 6.95s, 2018 1,764,000 2.107.979

Assurant, Inc. s unsec, nates 6 3/4s, 2034 1,485,000 1,631,798

AXASA 1444 i unsec. sub, FRMN notes 6.463s, povpelual

maturity [France) 1630000 1,656,488

Banco del Estada de Chile 1444 sr, unses. notes 28, 2007 (Chile) 1.0G0.000 981,642

Banco do Brasi 54 1448 unsec, sub, nates 5 7/85, 2022 (Banl} 1,965,000 1,982,923

Bank of America Corp. sub. notes ¥ 3/45, 2015 1.455.000 1622,319

Bank of America, MA sub. notas Ser, BKNT, 5,55, 2017 805,000 1,004,930

Barclays Bank PLC 1444 sub, notes 10,179, 2021

{United Kingdom) 2.881.000 3814.242

Barclays Bank PLC 1444 unsec. sub. notes 6.05s, 2017

{United Kingdorn) 381000 428,566

BEVA International Preferrad SAU bank guaranly . unsoe, sub,

FRN motes 5.919s, perpetual maturity (Spain) 1,135.000 1,066.900

Brar Stearns Cos.. Inc. (The) sr, notes 6.4s, 2017 1.020.000 1180717

Bear Stearns Cos,, Inc. {Thed sr, unsec, nates 7 1/4s, 2018 1,685,000 2,031,994

Barkshire Hathaway Finance Corp, company guaranby s unsec,

unguby, rotes 4.5, 2043 2,065,000 1.922.517

BPCE SA 1ddh unsec. sub, notes 5.7s, 2023 (France) 265,000 2776

Captal One Bank USA NA unsec. sub, notes 3 3/8s, 2023 1.260,000 1,200,982

Citegroug, Inc. sk unsec, notes 8 1/2s, 2019 100,000 129,388

Citigroup, Inc. sr, unsec, SIJ_J. FRN notes 0.528s5, 2016 1.961.000 1,919,631

CMA Financial Corp. &5, unsec. unsub, notes 5 3/45, 2021 520.000 562,019

Commerzbank 4G 1444 unsec. sulb. notes B 1/8s,

2023 (Germany’} 545,000 5A1.738
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Financials cont.

Commanwealth Bank of Australia 1444 sr, ungec. notes s,

2019 CAustralia) $510.000 576,378
DOR Corp. sr. unsec, unsub, notes 7 7,/8s, 2020# 1,715,000 2,129,838
Duke Realty LP company guaranty sr, unsed. noles

63/, 20208 200,000 934,989
Diuke Realty LP srunsad. noles 6 1/2s, 20188 390,000 451 851
EPR Properties unsec. notes 5 1/ds, 20238 1,150,000 1,148,742
Fifth Third Bancorp i, unsec, sub. FRB bonds 5.15, 2049 626,000 563,400
Genworth Financesl, Inc. sr, unsec, unsub, notes 7 5785, 2021 1,075,000 1.318,042
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc, (The) & notes 7 1/2s, 2019 240,000 1,151,548
Goldman Sachs Group, Ing, (The) 57, unsec, notes b.15s, 2018 505000 689,601
Goldrman Sachs Group, Ing, (Thed sub, notes & 3745, 2037 950,000 1,025,046
Hartiard Fanancial Sorvicos Group, Inc. (Thi) 52, unses. unsuh.

notes 6 5/8s. 2040 3,548,000 4408315
HEBOS PLC 1444 50 unsec, sub, notes 6 3/4s, 2018

(United Kingdaen) 1,175,000 1321476
HBOS PLC 1244 unsac. sub. bangs &5, 2033 (United Kingdom) 2)520,000 2857 504
Hesalth Care REIT, Inc. sr.unsed, unsulb, notes 3 3,748 20239 825,000 FH7 033
Hghwood Realty LF sr. unsec. bonds 5.85s, 2017 # 835,000 926,233
HSBC Bank USA, N.A, unsec. sub. notes 75, 2030 2,000,000 2.519.948
HSBLC USA Capital Trust | 1444 i, bank guaranty unsec. notes

7.808s, 2026 055,000 970,510
lcatn Enterpeises LP/Icabn Enterprises Finance Corp, company

guaranly &, ursec, nokes 7 3/4s, 2016 670,000 690,100
ING Bank M0 1444 unsec. sub. motes 5 8s, 2023 (Motheriands) 1,708,000 1,781,424
International Lease Finanoe Corp. sr. unsec. nates 6 1/4s, 20149 805,000 977,788
Internationad Lease Financa Corp. sr unsed. unsub, notes

47/85, 25 1,148,000 1.192,088
JEtoegan Chase Bank, NA sub, notes See BKNT, &5, 2017 404,000 465,712
JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA sub. notes Ser, BKNT, &5, 2017 1,311,000 1,498,418
Leucadia Matenal Corp. 55 unsec, bonds 5 1/2, 2023 425,000 4249096
Liberty Mutual Group, e, 1444 compamy guaranty jf. unsec,

sub. bonds 7,85, 2037 130,000 141,700
Liberty Mutual Group, Inc, 1444 notes 6 1/2s, 2035 1,715,000 1.902,050
Ligyds Bank PLC comparky Quaranty sr, unsec, sull, noles

Ser. MTM, 6 1/2s. 2020 {United Kingdam) 4,335,000 4897822
Macquaric Bank, Lid. 1444 unsoC. sub, motes 6 5785,

2021 {Australia) 2,880,000 3,200,832
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Co, 1444 notes

B7/8s, 2039 2.305.000 3.380.278
Metropolitan Life Global Funding | 1444 notes 35, 2023 715,000 689,118
Metropolitan Life Insurance Co. 14dA unsec. sub. notes 7 85, 2095 3,000,000 3.863,163
Mid-Amenca Apartments LF s unsac. notes 4,35, 20230 150,000 150,319
Morgan Stanley sr. unsec. notes Ser. MTN, 5 3/4s, 2016 970,000 1082143
MPT Operating Fartnership LP/MPT Finance Corp, company

guaranty 51, UNsec, naotes 6 7/8s, 2021 1,060,000 L171,750
Mationwite Financial Services, Inc, notes 55/8s. 2015 500.000 524,925
Mationwice Mutual Insurance Co. 144A notes 9 3/8s, 2039 85,000 119,263
Mordea Bank AR 1444 sub. notes 4 778z, 2001 (Swedon) 5,160,000 5,435 916
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CORPORATE BONDS AND NOTES (27.2%)" cont.

Financials cont

OneAmaerica Financiagl Fastners, Inc, 1444 bonds 7s, 2053
Pacific LifeCorp 1444 sr. nabes G5, 2020

Primesica, Inc. sr, unsed. unsub, notes 4 304, 2022

Prudential Financial, Inc, sr, unsec. notes 6 5/%s, 2040
Pruclential Holdings, LLC sr, FRN notes Ser, AGM, 1.1275, 2017
Rabatank Nederland 1444 r ursec, suby, FRN notes 115,
perpetual matunty (Metharlands)

Rayonier, Inc. compsny guaranty s unsec, unsub. notes
3345, 20220

Realty Income Corp, 5. unsec. notes 4,655, 2023

Royal Bank of Scottand PLC (Thed sr, sub. FRN notes 3 1/2s,
2022 (United Kingdom)

Royal Bank of Scotland PLC {The) unsec. sab. notes 6,15, 2023
{United Kingdom}

Santander issuances 5.4, Unipersanal 1444 bank guaranty
ungec, sub. notes 5.911s, 2006 (Spain)

Santander UK PLC 1444 unsec. sub, notes 56, 2023

{United Kingdom)

&L Groen Realty Corp /5L Green Operating Partnership/
Reckson Operating Partnership sr wnsec. notes 5s, 20188
Standarg Chartered PLE 1448 unsec, sub, notes 3.955, 2023
(United Kingdorn)

Targier Properties, LP sr. urdee, notes 6 1/8s, 20208

Teachers insurance & Anmuity Assooation of America 1444
notes b.B5s, 2039

Traveers Property Casuaity Corp, sr, unsec. unsub, bongs

7 3/45, 2026

Wachovia Bank NA s, ungec. sub. notes 6.6s, 2038

WEA Finance, LLC 1444 comgany guaranty sr, notes

71/8g, 2018

WERA Finance. LLC/WT Finance Aust. Pty. Lid. 144A company
guaranty sr, unsec, nates 6 3/4s, 2019

Wells Fargo Bank, Na unsec, sub. FRN rotes 0,47 3s, 2016
Willis Group Haldings PLE company gearanty 51, unsec, unsub,
notes S 5748, 2021

Health care (0.6%)

Actavis PLT srounsec. notes 4 5/8s, 2042

Actavis PLC srounsec. notes 3 1/4s, 2022

Aetna, Inc, 5r, unsec, unsub, notes B 3/ 4s, 2037
Fresenius Medical Care LS Finance (1, Inc. 1444 campany
guaranty sr, unsec, notes 5 5/8s, 2019

Fresenius Medical Care US Finance, inc. 1444 company
guaranty sr. notes 5 3/ ds, 2021

Mylan, Inc./PA 1444 sr. unsec, notes 2.65, 2018

Quest Disgnostics. Inc, company guaranty Sr. unsec. nokes
6.95s, 2037

Guest Digghostics, Inc, campany duaranty S unsec, nokes
43082, 2020

UritedHealth Groug, Inc. sr. unsec. unsub. notes 4 5/8s, 2041
WellPoint, inc. s unsec. unsub, notes 4 5/8s, 2042
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$1,010.000
1,575.000
357.000
1,135,000
160.000

1,255,000

570000
455000

2,640,000
1,465,000
2.600.000

565.000
1.185.000

2,835.000
645,000

259,000

975.000
250.000

1.070,000

810000
1,180.000

750.000

345,000
275.000
1,660.000

356.000

#59.000
375,000

1,045,000
244,000

975.000
665000
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Value

$1,002.842
1,767 053
378,005
1411337
158,702

1,650,325

554,602
470,335

1,076,102
1,507,323
2709643

563,198
12724088

2,719,998
756,287

1,120,224

1.290,578
312044

1,282,358

971620
1170627

822,740
122,551,008
319,051
260,593
2073,416

ZB0.920

BH7.243
37075

1,168,590

261,037
949,396
620,970
7,298,301
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Technology (0.4%)

Apale, Ing. 51, unget, unsub, nates 3,855, 2043 £1,835,000 $1.554,738
Brocade Communications Systems, Inc. Eompany guaranty &,

nates & 7/8s, 2020 580,000 624,950
Fraedity Matonal Infarmatian Senaces, I, Company Quaranty sr.

unsec., urisub, rotes 5s, 2002 1,075,000 1,105,885
SoftBank Corp, 1444 srunsec, notes 4 1/2s, 2020 (Japan) 820,000 811,800
¥erow Corp. sr. unsec. notes 6,355, 2018 1.205.000 1,389,540
Transportation (0.5%) B
Burlingbon Morthern Sants Fe, LLC sr, unses, notes 5 3/4s, 2018 365,000 &22136
Burlington Morthern Santa Fe, LLC 51, unsec. noles 5 4z, 2041 1,520,000 1613628
Continental Airknes, tnc. pass-through certificates

Sor 9714, 695, 2015 778,665 8IT 172
Continental Airknes, inc. pass-through certificates Ser. 98-1A,

B.648s, 2017 310,996 330,045
Kansas City Southern de Maxico SA de OV & unses, unsub,

notes 2,355, 2020 (Mewca) 154,000 147,383
Kansas City Southern Rabway Co, (The) 1444 s unsed,

nates 4,35, 2043 286,000 255,624
Morfoli Southern Cann. sr, unsec. notes &5, 2111 1,115,000 1212257
Southwast Airfines Co. pass-through certificates Ser 07-1.

6.156, 2022 194,726 223935
Unign Pacfic Corp. 1444 pass-through certificates 5,214s, 2014 200,000 402,898
United AirLines, Inc. pass-through certificates Ser. 07-A,

b.636s, 2022 434,021 455,722
Utilties and power (3.4%) oS
Appalachian Power Co, 52, notes Ser, L, 385, 2035 ZB0.000 619,927
Arizena Public Sevvices Co, 51 unsec. notes 4 1/2s, 2042 360,000 361641
Boaver Valley Funding Coep, &0 bongs 95, 2017 142 000 143,300
Boardwalk Pipelines LP company guaranty sr.unsec. nates

57/8s, 2016 580,000 1095430
CM5 Energy Corp, sr unsec, notes 8 3/4s, 2019 2,280,000 2939884
Commanwealth Edisan Co, st mtge. sec, bonds & 7/8s, 2033 480,000 856,450
Consolidated Edisan Co. of MNew Yark 51 unsec. unsus,

nates 4.2, 2042 T10.000 BbE, 546
Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC sr. mitge, notes 4 1/ds, 2041 725,000 697,761
EDP Finance BY 1444 sr. unseC. unsub. notes Bs,

2018 (Matherkands) 1,940,000 2051550
El Pasc MNatural Gas Co. st unsec, unsub, bonds B 3/8s, 2032 B20.000 1.075.062
El Paso Pipaine Partners Operatmg Cou, LP company guaranty

g, unsec, motes B 1/ 2, 2020 750,000 873718
Eleclricile de France SA 1444 sr. unsec. noles 695,

2035 (France} S70,000 1.212.205
Electrcite de France 54 1444 unsec, sub, FRN notes 5 1/4s,

perpetusl maturity (France) 2,895,000 2.833,48]1
Enel Financa intarnational 54 14404 cormpany guaranty ar. unsed,

nates 5 1/8s, 2019 {Netherlands) 695,000 745,654
Energy Transter Partners LP s unsec, unsul.: nates 6 1/2s, 2042 2,265,000 2,488,351
Energy Transfer Partners LP 5. unsec, unsul, notes 5,25, 2022 780,000 838,675
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CORPORATE BONDS AMD NOTES (27.2%)" cont.

Utilities and power cont.
Entarprise Products Ooarating, LLC company guaranty sr.
unsec, unsub. notes 4.85s, 2042

Iberdroia International BY cormpany guaranty sr, unsec. unsub,
notes & 3/4s, 2034 (Spain)

ITE Holdings Corp, 1444 notes 5 7/8s, 2016

ITC Holdings Corp, 1444 of. unses, nates 6.05¢, 2018

Kansas Gas and Electric Co. bands 5.647s, 2021

Kinder Morgan Energy Partners LP-sr. unsec, notes 6.85s, 2020
Kinder Morgan, Inc./DE 1444 sr, notes 55, 2021

Karea Gas Corp. 1444 sr, unsec, unsub, notes b 1/4s, 2042
{South Koraa)

MidArmerican Energy Heldings Co. bonds 6 1/8s, 2036
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Co. srounsec. bonds 6 1/2s, 2037
MidAmerican Funding, LLC 5. bonds 6.9275, 2029
Marragansett Electne Co, (The) 1444 5r unsec, notes

4,175, 2042

Onegr Electne Delivery Ca., LLC bank guaranty unses. sulb.
notes 4,565, 2041

Pacific Gas & Electric Co, s unser, notes b.35s, 2058

Pacific Gas & Ebectric Co, 5. unsub. notes 5.8s, 2037
PacifiCorp Sinking Fund 1st mtge. & 1/4s, 2087

Patomac Edison Co. 1444 sr, bonds 5.85, 2016

PRL WEM Holdings PLC 1444 &r, unsec. notes 5 5/8s, 2021
{United Kingdom)

Teco Finance, Inc, company guaranty 5. unsec. unsub. notos
6572, 2017

Toxas-New Mexico Power Co. 1444 1st mige. bonds Ser, A,
a1/25 2019
West Penin Power Co, 1444 1sf mitge. 5,955, 2017

Total corporate bonds and notes (cost $314,616,779)

MUNICIPAL BONDS AND NOTES (0.4%)"

CA Stale 5.0, Sonds (Build America Bonds), 7 1/25, 4/1/34
IL State G0, Bands

44215, 1/1/15

4,071, 1/1/14

Morth TX, Thruway Auth. Rev. Bonds (Buld Amenca Bonds),
6,718, 1/1/49

OH Stata U, Rey, Bonds (Build Amaerica Bands), 4,915, 6,/1/40
Total municipal bonds and notes (cost $3,925,173)

PURCHASED SWAP OPTIONS OCUTSTANDING (0.2%)"

Counterparty

Fixed right % to receive or {pay)/ Expiration
Floating rate Index/Maturity date date/strike
Credit Suisse International

28873 manth LUSD-LIBOR-BBAS Now-23 Mew-13/2.88
{3083 month USO-LIBOR-BEA/ Now-23 MNov-13,/3.08

Total purchased swap options outstanding (cost $2,535,661)
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11,220,000

510.000
8%0.000
330,000
509,901
1,425,000
&9.000

1285000
1,000,000
A10.000
360,000
1,345,000
1,456 000
295,000
TR5.000

450,000
885,000

3,220,000
340,000

840,000
B20.000

Principal amount.
§70.000

410,000
1,220,000

675,000
B45.0C0

Contract
amant

£146,570,000
146,570,000
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$1.165.952

S62.674
H1E6T4
375,501
543192
1,710.232
B9.000

1,509,756
1133558
ABA.4TA
445104

1,209,662

1,361,681
44,87
68,963
360,135
978913

3516414
395184

3,640,385
952,986

42,077,322
£333,546,650

Value
$1.010.845

423805
1226454

&28.299
8rE.975
$4,366,381

Value

$2,532,730
1,486
$2,534,196
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PURCHASED OPTIONS Expiration date/ Contract
DUTSTANDING (=%)" strike price amaunt Value
Federal National Mortoage Association 30 yr. 35 TBA
cormamitment (Cally Dhec-13/598.52 $19,000,000 $143.450
Federal Mational Mort gage Asseciation 30 yr, 35 TBA
comimibment {Call) Dec-13/08.59 19,000,000 135470
Tatal purchased options outstanding (cost $299,102) £278,920
FOREIGN GOVERMMENT AND AGENCY
BONDS AND MOTES (01%)" Principal amount Value
Kores Development Bank &, unsac, unsub, notes 45, 2016
{South Korea) $800.000 $852 587
Total foreign government and agency bands and notes (cost $797,867) 852,587
SEMIDR LOANS [—%)" ¢ Principal amount Valug
Caesars Entertanment Opeating Co., InC. bank term koan FRN
Ser. BE, 5.488s, 2018 $160.015 $£149992
SunGard Data Systemns, inc, bark term loan FRN 19535, 2014 1451 1,451
Total senior loans (cost $153,874) 3151443
SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (5.0%)" Principal amount/shares Valua
Putnam Short Term Imvestment Fund 00754 27481533 127481533
S%gah Prime Mongy Markat Fund 0.02% " 2210000 2.2 10.000
LS. Treasary Bills with effechve yielas rangana from f.0a%
1o 0L13%, Avgust 21, 20147 A S £16, 471000 16,462 606
LS, Treasury Bills with an effective vield of 0.11%
July 24, 2014 2% 1,522.000 1521216
.S, Treasury Bils with effective yields ranging from 0.08%
o 0.09%, May 29, 20148 A S 13,319.000 13,313,779
Total short-term investments (cost $60,983,605) $60,989,134
TOTAL INVESTMENTS
Total investments (cost $1,357,157.693) $1,417,145,149
Key to holding's abbreviations

BRNT Bank Mote

FRE Floating Rate Bonds: the rate showr s the current interest rate at the cigse of the reporting period

FRN ioating Rate Notes: the rale shownis Ehe current interest rate at Lthe close of the reporting period

G0, Bonds  General Obligation Bongds

IF& Irserrse Floating Rate Bongs, which are secunities that pay inlerest rabes thal vary inverssly 1o

changes in the market interes: rabes. Asntorest rates nse, iverse floators produce 1ess Current
ircome, The rate shown is the current interest rate at the close of the reporting penod,

10 Interest Only

MITN Madiaim Tamm Motes

PO Principal Only

TBA To Be Apncunced Commitments
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Mates to the fund's portfolio

Unless notad otherwise, tho notes ta the fund's porifolio are for the close of the fund's reporting period, which
ran from Movember 1, 2012 thraugh Octeber 31, 2013 (the reporting period). Within the follawing notes ta the
partfolio, references to “ASC 8207 represent Accounting Standards Codification 820 Fair Value Measurements ang'
Ireriasires and references 1o "OTCT, If any, reprezent over -|he-counter.

* Fercentages mdicated are based on nes assats of $1,227,849,965,

t Non-income-producing secunty.

# This secunty, in paek arm antirety, was pledged and segregated with the Draker [ caver mangen requraments far
futures contracts at the close of the reposting Deriod.

A This securily, i1 part or i entirely, was pledoed and segrecated with the custodian for collatesal on certain
denvative contracts at the clase of the reporting peniod.

& This secunty, n pait or i entirety, was pledged and segregated with the custodian for collateral on the initial
margin on certain centrally deared derivative contracts at the close of the reporting penod.

¢ Sarvor ipans are exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, but contain certain
restriclions on resale and cannct be sold pulbihcly, Thess loans pay et &t rates wihich adjust perocscally. The
interest rates shown fior senior loans ane the current interest rates at the close of the repcrting pericd. Senicr loans
are also sutpect o mandatory and/or optional prepayviment which cannot be predicted. As a result, the remaining
miaturity may be substantially 255 than tha stated maturity shown (Notes 1 and B).

* |5 valued at fair value following procedures approved by the Trustees. Securities may be classified as Level 2
of Level I foe ASC 820 based on the securities’ valuation inguts.

L Affiliated company (Mate 53, The rate guoted in the secunty descnption is the arnuatized 7-day yield of the fund
2t the cloge of the reporting penod,

P Security was oledoed, or purchased with cash that was pledged, to the fund for collsteral on certain darivatives
contracts. Therate quoted in the security description is the annualized 7-day vield of the fund at the close of the
reparting perad (Note 1

® Real Estate Investmant Trust.

At the close of the reporting pennd, the furd maintaned ligud assats totaling $243,036,529 to cover Cerain
derivatives contracts and delayed deafivery securities.
Drebot obligations are considered secured unless otherwise indicated.

1444 after the name of an issuer represents securities exemot from registration under Rule 1444 under the
Securites Act of 1933, as amended. These securities may be resoid intransactions exemgt (rom registration,
narmally to qualifed irstitutional buyers,

See Mote 1 to the financial statements regarding TEA's.
The dates shown on debt cbligations are the onigingl maturity dates.

FUTURES CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/3113

Number of Expiration Unrealized

LLS, Treasury Note 5 yr {Shart) 173 $21.051,938 Dec-13 $0133,743)

L5, Treasury Mote 10 yr (Shart) E 5] 4,457,578 Dec-13 20,0513

Total $(153,794)
Income Fund 45
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WRITTEN SWAP OPTIONS QUTSTANDING at 10/31/13 (premiums $2,535,653)

Counterparty
Fixed Obligation % toreceive or (pay)/ Expiration Contract
Floating rate index,/Maturity date date/strike BTN Vil
Credit Suisse International
298/ 3month USD-LIBDR-BRA/ Nov-23 MNow-15/2.98 5103582700 §7.251
(2.98)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BBA, Nav-23 Wov-13/2.98 103,582,700 2.708,723
Total $2,716,974
FORWARD PREMIUM S\WAP OFTION CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10,3113
Counterparty
Fixed right or abligation % to recelve of (pay)’ Esxpiration Contract Unraalized
Floating rate index/ Maturity date date/Strike amount appreciation
Credit Suisse International
(2. 70625)/3 month USD-LIBOR-BEA/
Dec-23 {Written) Dec-13/2.70625 £17,100.000 19,234
(2.7165)/ 3 month USD-LIBOR-BBAS
Dec-23 (\Writtan) Dec-13/2. 7165 17,100,000 1,076
Total $10,260

TBA SALE COMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/13 (proceads recaivable $28,943,438)
Principal Settlement.

Agency amount date Value
Federal Mational Maortgage Associaton, 45,

MNovember 1, 2043 £i6,000,000 11/13/13 $6,321.563
Federal National Mortoage Associaton, 3 1/2s,

Movember 1, 2043 22,000,000 11/13/13 22 575,782
Tatal $28,897,345

CENTRALLY CLEARED INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31,13

Upfront Payments Payments Unrealized
premiuvm  Termination made by received by appreciation/
Mational amount received (paid) date fund per annum fund per annum  (depreciation)
$£2,797,000 B(176) 9/25/23 3 manth LSD- 2.52% $71.739
LIBOR-BEA
A72,134,100E 111,245 12/18/15 Imonth USD 0.75% (2598800
LIBCR-BEA
215,877 200 (413758 12/18/18 3 month LSD- 2.05% (6,013,612)
LIBCR-BBA
%4, 927,700 E (1.080.84%)  12/18/43 3 manth USD- J.B0% 3303461
LIBOR-2BA
158,458, 300 € (472015)  12/18/23  3month USD- 315% (6.461,739)
LIBOR-BRA
Total ${1,863,549) $(11,698,955)

¥ Extended effective date.
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/13

Upfrant Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty,’ premium  Termination received (paid)by  received by appreciation’
Notional amount received (pald) date fundperannum o pald by fund (depreciation)
Bank of America M.A.
£1.754,580 5— 1/12/41  4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index S24.574)
USD-LIBOR) 4, 00% 30 year Fannie
Mag pools
3.358.274 - 1/12/41 450% (1 manth Synthetic TRS index (63,4610
USG-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fanne
Mag pools
Barclays Bank PLC
7.284 650 L2736 (5.50%) Lmonth  Swnthetic TRS Index 72,340
UsG-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fanne
Mag pools
3,289,058 - 1/12/41 4.00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (46.063)
USC-LIBOR) A.00% 30 year Fanne
Maa pocls
5985162 - 1/12/38 (6.50%) Lomonth  Synthetic MBX Index (52.621)
Ush-LIBOR 6.50% 30 vear Fannie
) ) Mae pools )
5,374,160 - 1/12/40 4.50% (L manth Synthetic MBX Incex 20,605
USD-LIBORY 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae podls
28719129 - 1/12/42 A00% (1 monkh Synthotic TRS indox (38.,525)
LISE-LIBOR) 4,00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,546,151 - 1/12/38 (6.50%) Tmonth  Synthetic MBX Index {115,097
UsE-LIBOR B.50% 30 wear Fanme
Mae pogls
10,589,064 - 1/12/40 5.00% (1 mankh Synthetic MBY Index 23515
LSC-LIBORY 5.00r% 30 year Fannie
Mae podls
9,365,554 - 1/12/41 5.00% (1 manth Synthitic MBX Ingex 23721
USD-LIBOR) 5.00% 30 yaar Fannie
. - o - F'BE D:":Is
2815468 = 1/12/41 4,00% (X month Symthetic TRS Index (33,430
USD-LIBOR) 4,00% 30 year Fannia
Mas pools
5,722,410 - 1/12/41 £00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS index (80.141)
USE-LIBOR) 4,00 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
3.8090,179 — 1/12/40 (4.00%) Imenth  Synthetic TRS Index 78,790
UE0-LIBOR 4.00r% 30 year Fannie
Mae podls
26,417,704 - 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Syhthetic TRS index {369.975)
USB-LIBORY A.00% 30 year Fanmne
Maz pools
1,667,151 — 1/12/41 A.00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (23,348)
USC-LIBORY 4,00% 30 year Fannie
Mae podls
Income Fund 47
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Upfroat

Swap counterparty/ premium - Termination

Notional amount received (paid) date
Barclays Bank PLC cont,

$35,398,402 $-  1/12/38

23,292,593 —  ynm

1,000,232 - 1/12/40

3820677 - 112/4

1.736,984 - 11/4

2,025,751 - 112/41

9,106,165 - 1/12/41

3,046,652 - 1/12/3

20,307,683 - 1/12/3

20830919 - /A4l

9,069,751 - 1/12/40

580,144 - 11/38

3,182,075 —  1/12/38

1,442 841 - 1/12/41

942,096 - 114

16,712 447 - 1/12/41

48 Income Fund

Payments
received (paid) by
fund per annum

(6.506) L month
Uso-LIBOR

5.00% (1 manth
USD-LIBOR}

A 0% (1 month
USD-LIBORY

d_ﬂﬂ‘s; {1 manth
USD-LIBOR

4.00% (1 manth
USO-LIBOR)

5.00% (1 manth
LIS0-LIBORY

4.50% (1 month
USD-LIBOR)

6.00% (1 manth
LS IBOR)

{6.50%) L month
USD-LIBOR

5.00% (1 manth
UED-LIBORY

4.00% (1 manth
UsD-LIBOR)

650 (1 rmanth
LSD-LIBOR)

{6.50%) L month
EL-LIBOR

5.0C% {1 manth
UED-LIBORY

5.00% (1 manth
USD-LIBOR)

5.0(% (1 manth
USD-LIBORY
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Total return
recelved by
or paid by fund

Synthetic MBYX Ingex
6:5(7% 30 year Fannig
Mae poals

Synthetic MBX Index
5.00% 30 year Fannds
Mae poals

Synthetic MBX Ingex
4.00% T year Fannde
Mae poals

Synthetic TRS Index
o (0% 30 year Fannes
Maa pools

Synthetic TRS Index
4,00% 30 year Fannae
Mae poals

Swnthatic MBX Index
5.00% 30 year Fannag
Mai pools

Synthatic TRS Index
4.50% 30 year Fanmies
Mae poals

Synthetc TRS Index
6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools

Synihetic MBX incex
B.50% 20 year Fannég
Maepools
Synthetc MEX Index
5,00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools

Synthatic MBX Incex
4,00% 30 year Fannie
Mae poals

Synthetic TRS Ingex
6:.50% 30 year Fanneg
Map pqo15

Synthetic MBX Index
6.50% 30 wear Fannes
Mae pools

Synthetic MBX Inces
5.00% 30 yoar Fanrse
Mae pools

Synthetic MBX Incox
5.00% 30 year Ginnie
Mas Il pools
Syntnetic MBX noex
5,00% 30 year Fannie
Mar pools
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Unrealized
appreciation,
{depreciation)

§(311,221)
58,0495
9,005
(53.508)
(24,326)
5131
(172,079
(28,485}
{266,464
78,088
74918
(2,820
(27,977
3554
1.944
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Upfront

Swap counterparty/ premium  Termination

National amount received (paid) date
Barclays Bank PLC cont.

$12,792,024 $- 13

6,070,593 - yrm

2151067 - 1/12/41

1422618 - 112/40

6,004,745 - 1/12/40

26,713,073 - 118

4,483,236 - v/

786.920 - 112/

2,552,001 - /12/40

1,850,077 - 1/12/40

937.143 - 1/12/39

%91.595 - 1/12/38

26,505,844 —  1/12/38

54.535,780 - 1/12/39

18,396,980 — 112/

25239843 - 1/12/39

Payments
recaived (paid) by
Tund per annum

{6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

A.00% (1 month
USh-LIBOR)

A.00% (1 manth
USD-LIBORY

5.00% (1 manth
LUSD-LIBOR)

4.50% (1 month
WUEDR-LIBOR)

5.00% (1 manih
LSD-LIBOR)

5.00% {1 manth
USE-LIBOR)

5.00% {1 manth
LISE-=LIBOR]

5.00% {1 month
USD-LIBOR]

5,006 (1 month
USD-LIBORY

{6.00%) 1 month
UsD-LIBOR

{6.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

{6.50%) 1 manth
USD-LIBOR

{£.00%) 1 manth
USD-LIBOR

6.50%(1 mﬁn.t.n
LS0-LIBOR)

6.00% {1 month
LSD-LIBOR)
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Total retum Unrealized
recedved by appreciation
or pald by fund (depreciation)

Synthatic MEX Indest  E{112.467)
6.50% 30 year Fannig

Mze poois

Symthetic TRS Iridex (B85.018)
A, 00% 30 year Fannig

Mae Co0ls

Synthetic TRS Index (30,125)
A.00% 20 year Fannie

HB_E' peOCEs ) )
Synthetic MBX Index 3159
5.007% 30 year Fannig

Mag pooie

Synthetlc MBX ndex 23023
4.50% 30 year Fannie

Mae poois

Syntisetic MBX Inda 67.658
S.00% 20 year Fannig

Maa popis

Syntratic MEX Inde 11.304
5.00% 30 vear Fannie

Mae pools

Synthatic MBX Index 1.747
5.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools

Synthetic MEX Index 5667
5.00% 20 vear Fannie

Mae podis

Synthetic MBX Ingex 4,108
5.00% 30 year Fannia

Maa pools

Synthetic MEX Index (2.136)
B.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools

Synthetic MEX Index (8,718}
6.50% 30 year Famnie

Mae pools

Synthetic MBX Indax {233,830}
6.50% 30 year Farmie

Mae pools

Synthetic MAX Ingox (74,173)
6.00% 30 voar Farnie

HEED'DE'I'S N
Synthetic MBX Index 167,021
6.50% 30 year Farnie

Mae pools

Synthetic MBX Index 52981
6.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae pools

Income Fund 49
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS DUTSTANDING ﬂ'lﬂ.!_ﬂw cant,

Upfront Payments. Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ promiurm  Termination received (paid) by recelved by appreciation)
Mothonal amount recelved (paid) date fund per annum or paid by fund {depreciation)
Barclays Bank PLC cont,
5,387,203 112741 (A.00%) Imanth  Synthetic TRS Indax $B0,A53
USD-LIBOR 4,00% 20 year Fannig
Mae pools
4,017,308 1712730 (5.50%) Lmonth  Synthetic MBX ndex {5.550)
UsD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 vear Fannse
Mae podls
2,008,594 1/12/39 (5500 Lmonth  Synihetic MBX Index (2,795
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 0 year Fannis
) ) Mae pools
2,008,594 1/12/39 (5.50%) Lmonth  Synthetic MBX Index {2,795)
LUSD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fanna
Mae pools
3,558,279 1/12/41 4.50% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Indie (63.261)
LUSE-LIBOR) 4. 50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,030,695 /12739 (5.50%) Tmonth  Synthetic MBEX Index {5,609)
LSD-LIBOR 5.507% 30 year Fannap
Mae poals
10,469 294 1/12/39 (5.50%) 1month  Synthatic MBEX indosy {14 568)
USD-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannig
Map poals
4,030,454 1/12/30 (5.50%) Imanth  Synthetic MBX Index (5,608)
LISD-LIBOR 550 30 year Fannie
Mae poals
1,379,119 L/12/38 (6.50%) 1month  Synthetic MBX Indax (12.125)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 yaar Fannie
) Mae pools
1/12/41 5.00% (1 mankh Synthetic MBX Ingex 8.036
USD-LIBORY 5.00% 30 year Ginnla
Maa [l poods
EA47 618 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1month  Synthatic MEX Index (74.271)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mg pools
2,691,264 1712741 4.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (50.85T)
LSD-LIBORY #.50% 30 year Fannig
Mae pools
5,139,895 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetc TRS Index (25,023)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannée
Mae pools
7,902,001 /12741 (4.00%) 1 month  Synthetc TRS Index 110,686
USD-LIBOR A.00% 20 yoar Fanrde
) Mae pools
8,048,245 112/39 (550%) Imonth  Synthebic MBX Ingex {11,159
LSG-LIBOR 5.50% 30 year Fannss
Mae pools
4,745 87H 1712738 (6.50%) 1 month Syninebc MBX incex (41,7263
LISD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools

50 Income Fund
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10/31/13 cont.

Upfrant
Swap counterparty,’ premium  Termination
HNotional amount received (pald) date
Barclays Bank PLC canf.
$4,430,318 $~ 1712441
2,875,535 - 1/12/41
2264670 - 1/12/41
0,027.228 = 1/12/38
6,973,511 - 1/12/38
Citibank, N.A
9,561,863 - 1/13/41
15,263,605 = 1/12/41
7,548,994 1/12/41
1,581,325 - 1/12/41
6,231,894 - 1/13/41
7.0:28.682 o 1/12/41
Credit Suisse International
23.978.118 - 1/12/41
4,658,393 - 1/12/39
4,188,049 e 1/12/43
11 366,625 - 1/12/41

Payments
recaived (paid) by
Tund per annum

{5.00%) 1 month
UsD-LIBOR

{4.50%) 1 month
UsQ-LIBOR

{4.00%) 1 month
UED-LIBOR

{6,50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

{6.50%) 1 month
LED-LIBOR
5.00% {1 month

USE-LIBOR)

5.00% {1 manth
UsD-LIBOR)

{4.50%) 1 month
USD-LIBOR

{3.50%) 1 month
USD-LIZOR

{4.00%) 1 manth
USD-LIBOR

{4.50%) 1 month
LE0-LIBOR
4,50% {1 manth

LS0-LIBOR)

{5.00%) 1 month
WsSD-LIBOR

3.50% (1 month
USD-LIBOR

{4.00%) 1 month
USD-LIBCRA
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Total return Unrealized
received by appreciation’
or paid by fund [depreclation)

Synithetic TRS ndex $82.548
5.00% 30 year Fannig

Mag poois

Symithetic TRS index 54,339
A 50 30 vear Fanmnie

Mae pocls

Symithetlc TRS index 31716
A.00% 30 wear Fannie

Mae poois

Synthetic MBX Index {5B.266)
6.50% 30 year Fannie

Ma pocis

Synthetic MBX Index {61311}
6.50% 30 year Fannie

Mag pocis

Synithatic MEBX Ingex 24878
5.00% 30 year Fannie

Mag pocis

Swrithetic MEX Index 33504
5.00% 30 vear Fannie

Mag poois

Syiithetic TRS ingex 118874
4.50% 30 year Farnie

Mae pools

Synthetic TRS index 17,127
3.50% 30 vear Fannie

Mae pocls

Synthetic TRS Index gravy
A.00% 30 year Farnie

Mae pocls

Syrithetic TRS Index 132.821
4.50% 30 year Famnie

Mae pocls

Synthetic MBX Index 118,117
4 504 30 year Ginnie

Maz i pools

Synthetic TRS Index 1285914
5.00% 30 year Famnie

Mag pools

Symthetic TRS Index {33.586)
3.50% 30 yedr Fannie

Mae poals

Synthetic TRS Index 154,187
A.00% 30 year Fannie

Mae oools

Income Fund 51
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS DUTSTANDING ut'lﬂ.._ﬂ‘l.l"‘l! cant,

Upfrant Payments. Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty premium  Termination recetved (paid) by received by appreciation/
Motienal amount recelved (paid}) date fund per annum or paid by fund {depreciation)
Credit Suisse International cont.
L4627 873 £- 1712743 T.00% (1 month Synthetic MBX Indax $79,200
LISD-LIBOR) 3.00% 20 year Fannig
Mae pools
2,592,987 - 1/12/41 A50% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index {AD,000)
UsSD-LIBOR)Y 4.50% 30 year Fannis
Mae pools
%358 274 - 1/12/41 AB0% (1 month Lynthetic TRS Index (63,461)
USD-LIBOR) 4504 30 year Fannde
Mae pools
2,691,264 o 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synthetc TRS Index (50,8571
USD-LIBOR) 4 50% 30 year Fanrée
Mag pools
16.725 606 - 112741 (4.00%) tmonth  Synthotic TRS Indoex 254,239
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
9,342,304 - 1712741 (4.50%) 1 month  Synkhetic TRS Incex 176.541
LISD-LIBOR 4.50% 20 year Fannag
Mae poals
10,692,714 - 1712741 (4.50%) 1 month Syntnetic TRS Index 202,060
USD-LIBOR 4,50% 30 year Fanni¢
Mae pools
2213525 - 1/12/41 (4.50%) 1manth  Synthetic TRS Index 41,524
LSD-LIBOR: 4 507 30 year Fannig
Mae poals
4411.126 - L12/41 (450%) 1month  Synthetic TRS incex 83,357
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 yaar Fannie
) Pae poois
2,875,990 - 1/12/41 (4.50%) Lmonth  Symthetic TRS Index 54,347
usD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannia
Mag pools
2 B44 596 - 1/12/41 (4.50%) lmonth  Synthetic TRS index 53,754
UsSD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannig
Mae pools
5,584,860 {40,387) 1/12/00 {4.00%) 1month  Synthetic TRS Index T1.640
USD-LIBOR A.00% 30 wear Fannie
Mae poois
Goldman Sachs International
4,350 657 - 1/12/41 4 00% (1 month Synithetic TRS iney (81070
USD-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannig
Maz pocls
2103067 — 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS index {10.239)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 vear Fannie
Mae pools
7,570,654 - 1/12/38 6.50% (1 montn Symthetic TRS Incex (35.683)
USD-LIBORY) 6.50% 30 year Farnia
Mae pools

52 Income Fund
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Upfrant Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty, premium  Termination received (paid)by  recoived by appreciation’
Nertional amount received (pald) date fundperannum o pald by fund (depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont,
£5,685,892 - 1/12/38 6.500% (1 month Synthatic TRS Index $(27,681)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 20 year Fannia
Mze poois.
1,974,830 - 1/12/39  6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index {18.464)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Maea pools
18,018,200 - 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Syntbetic TRS index {177.819)
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 20 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,735,308 = 1712741 4.00% (L month Synthetic TRS Index (38.307)
LSD-LIBOR) A (0% 30 year Fannig
Mae poois
7,141,843 - 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Incex (34.769)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae poals
450,967 - LA12/41 4,000 (1 manth Syntretic TRS Indax (B.316)
USD-LIBOR) A.00% 20 year Fannie
Maa pools
1444 4672 - 1/12/41  4.00% (1 month Syntratic TRS Indax {4B,239)
USD-LIBOR) 4,00% 20 vear Fannig
Mae pools
1,386,034 - 112741 A50% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (63,986)
USDsLIBORY 4.50% 30 year Fannig
Mao poois
7,144,236 — 1/12/42 4.00% {1 month Synthetic TRS Index (95.595)
USD-LIBOR) 4,00% 20 year Fannie
) Maa poals
7,144,235 - 1/12/42 4.00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (95.535)
USD-LIBGR) 4,00 20 year Fannie
Maa pools
760,791 - 1/12/41 A400% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (10.655)
LSD-LIBOWR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,065,497 - 112741 A.00%(1 manth Synthetic TRS Index (28,927
US0-LIBORY #,00% 30 year Fanne
Mae pools
3308726 — 1/12/41 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRE Index (47,599)
LUSD-LIBOR) #.00% 30 year Fanrie
Mae peals
7,820 858 - 1/12/41 (4.00%) Imomth  Synthetis TRS Index 109,530
USD-LIBOR A4.00% 20 yoar Fannip
. - \'131'] DD':IIE' -
7,864,953 = 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synihetic TRS Index (148,624)
LISE-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannisg
Mo peols
1.566,779 - 1/12/40 (&00%) Imonth  Synthetic TRS Index 27,642
USE-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
Income Fund 53
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS DUTSTANDING ﬂ'lﬂ.!_ﬂw cant,

Upfront Payments. Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ promiurm  Termination received (paid) by recelved by appreciation/
Mothonal amount recelved (paid) date fund per annum or paid by fund {depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont.
$£1.534,369 £~ 1712741 A.00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Indax $021,489)
USD-LIBOR) 4,00% 20 year Fannig
Mae poals
3.856,578 — 1/12/41 A.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (54,011}
LSD-LIBOR) Q0% 20 year Fanmig
Mae pools
10,550,084 - 1/12/358 (6.50%) 1month  Synthetic MBX Index (92 756)
USD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
) ) Mae pools )
5.963,375 = 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1month  Synthetic MEX Index (34,846
LSD-LIBOR 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pogls
7,284,650 - 1/12/36 5.50% (1 month Swnthetic TRS Index (723200
USD-LIBOR) 5.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
11459573 - 1/12/41 4.00% (1 manth Swnihatic TRS Index (160,489}
USE-LIBOR) 4,00% 20 year Fanmie
Mae pools
11,667,757 - 1/12/41 4.50% (1 manth Synthatic TRS Index {220,485)
USD-LIBOR) 4 506 30 year Fanme
Mae pools
3398773 - 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (64,226}
USD-LIBORY 4,500 30 yaar Fanmie
Mae poals
118011 - 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthatic TRS Indax {16,247}
USD-LIBOR) 4004 30 yaar Fannig
) Mae pools
2124757 - 1/12/33 B.00%(1month Synthelic TRS Indsx {19,865)
USD-LIBORY 6.00% 30 year Fannle
Maa pools
3558214 - 1/12/3% 6,00% {1 month Syrithetic TRS Indax (33,6413
USD-LIBOR) B.00% 30 year Fannie
Mag aoels
627003 - 1712741 4.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index {78,805)
USD-LIBOR) A.00% 30 year Fannie
Maez pools
440,659 — 1/12/38 B.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (2,145}
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
1.780.945 - 1/12/41 4.50% {1 month Synthetic TRS Index {070
UED-LIBORY A.50% 30 year Fannie
) ) ) Mae pools )
13.436.622 = 1/12/40 4,00% (1 manth Synthetic TRS Indes (2721400
LSD-LIBTRY A.000% 30 year Fanaie
Mag pools
3782318 - 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Synthetic TRS Incax {35.363)
USH-LIBOR)Y 6.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools

54 Income Fund
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Upfrant Payments Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty,’ premium  Termination received (paid)by  received by appreciation’
Notional amount received (pald) date fundperannum o pald by fund (depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont,
$2,260, 367 1/12/39  6.00% (X month Synthetic TRS index 50211245
USD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fanne
Mag pocis
7,564,635 1/12/39 6.00% (1 manth Sunthetic TRS Index {70.725%
USG-LIBOR) £.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pocls
1,642,158 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index (7.995)
USD-LIBORY 6.50% T0 vear Fannia
Mae pools
7.703.319 1712741 400% (L month Synthetic TRS Index {107.884)
USD-LIBORS A 00 30 year Fannie
Maa poois
1,613,546 1/12/41 A.00% (2 manth Synthetic TRS Index (22.597)
LSE-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
TA431.184 1712741 A4.00%(1 manth Synthetic TRS index (48.053)
LISE-LIBOR) A, (% 30 yoar Fannag
Mae pools
14,452 494 1/12/38 (b6.50%) 1 month Synthietic MBX ngoy (127.066)
USE-LIBOR 6,50% 30 year Fannie
Mag pools
a978,205 /12738 6.50% (1 manth Synithetic TRS Index {4,753%
LISC-L IBORY 6.500% 30 year Fannss
Mae pools
7,541,020 1/12/41 4.00% (1 monkh Synthetic TRS Index (105611}
USE-LIBOR) 4,00% 30 vear Fannie
) Mae pools
1,993,701 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index {9.731)
LISD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 year Fanna
Mae pools
535,897 1/12/38 (6.50% lmonth  Synthetic MBX Incex (4.712)
Us-LgoR f.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae podls
1,428,830 1/12/38 (650% lmonth  Synthetic MBX Index (12.563)
UsD-LIBOR G.50% 30 year Fanmne
Mae pocls
1,939,005 1/12/38 6.50% (1 manth Syrithetic TRS Index {3444
USD-LIBOHR) 6,50% 30 wear Fannie
Mae pools
1a7a81 1/12/38 6.50% (I month Synthetic TRS Index (18,889)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 30 woar Fannie
2,628,142 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Symthetic TRS Index {12,795)
LISD-LIBORY B, 50% 30 wear Fanna
Mag pools
1,188,152 1/12/41 4.00% (1 manth Synthenic TRS Incex (16,6400
USE-LIBOR) 4, 00% 30 yoar Fannse
Mae pools
Income Fund 55
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS DUTSTANDING ﬂ'lﬂ.!_ﬂw cant,

Upfront Payments. Total return Unrealized
Swap counterparty/ promiurm  Termination received (paid) by recelved by appreciation/
Mothonal amount recelved (paid) date fund per annum or paid by fund {depreciation)
Goldman Sachs International cont.
£1.212.230 £~ 1712738 G.50% (1 month Eynthetic TRS Index 5,900
USD-LIBOR) 6:.50% 20 year Fannig
Mae poals
8077648 - 1/12/38 6.50% (1 month Synihetic TRS Index {39.325)
USD-LIBOR) 6.50% 20 year Fanmig
Mae pools
58845921 - 1/12/42 ALO% (1 mpeth Synihetic TRS Index (7a.744)
USD-LIBORY 400 30 year Fanmie
) Mae pools
5.674,706 = 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1month  Synithetic TRS Index 79,473
USD-LIBOR 4,000 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,266,391 - 1/12/81 (4.00%) 1month  Synthetic TRS Indox 185,793
USD-LIBOR 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
2,664,757 - 1/12/41 (400 1month  Synthetic TRS Index 37319
USD-LIBOR 4,00% 20 year Fanmie
Mae poals
2664, 757 - 1/12/41 (4.00%) 1month  Synthotc TRS Index 17,319
USD-LIBOR 4,00% 20 year Fannie
Mae pools
3.729,096 - 1/712/41 (450%) Lmonth  Synthetic TRS Index 70,480
LUSD:L180R 4.51% 30 year Fannsg
Mae poals
13,507 846 — 1/12/41 (4.00%)1month  Synthetic TRS Index 193,376
LSD-LIBOR 4,00% 20 yaar Fanrss
_ Mae pools )
1,561,325 - 1/12/41 350W(Imonth  Synthetic TRS Incesx (17.127)
LUSD-LIBORY 2.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae poals
14,364,566 - 1/12/38 (6.50%) 1month Synthatic TRS Index 69,835
LSD-LIBOR 6,50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
13,655,680 - 1/12/39 6.00% (1 month Syntietic TRS Index {127.673)
LSD-LIBOR) 6.00% 30 year Fanne
Mal_! poots
4,107 £80 — 1/12/41 4.00% {1 month Synthetic TRS Index (57.530)
USD-LIBOMR) A.00% 20 year Fannie
Mae pools
4,018 548 - 1712741 A50% (1 manth Syninetc TRS Index (75.002%
LSD-LIBOR} A.50% I0 yoar Fanrap
_ Maepools
7.522,264 = 1712742 4.00% (1 manth Syntnetc TRS Index (101,991
LISC-LIBOR) 4, 00% 20 year Fannss
Mae pools
5358479 - 1/12/41 4.50% (1 month Synthetc TRS Index (B3.461)
USD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools

56 Income Fund
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OTC TOTAL RETURN SWAP CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at10/31/13 cont

Swap counterparty,’ premium  Termination
Notignal amount received (paid)

Goldman Sachs Intemational conl,

$6,612540

5,382,074

15204122

1978235

5174472

31738480

8,509,023

278,909

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A,
5,276,971

13,493 582

Total $(40,387)

Payments Total return Unrealized
received (paid) by recelved by appreciation’
Tund per annum of pald by fund (depreciation)

4 00% (L manth Synthetic TRS index 02 607y

OTC CREDIT DEFALULT CONTRACTS QUTSTANDING at 10/3113

Swap counterparty/
Referenced dabt*  Rating***

Bank of America M.A.

CMEX NA BEB BBE-/P
Inclax

CMBX NA BER BBB-/F
Inclex

CMBX N BEB BBB-/P
Inclex

ChEx WA BBE BER-/P
Indax

USE-LIBOR) 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mag poois
4.50% (1 month Synthetic TRS Index {101.705)
USC-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 yaar Fannie
Mae pocls
(4500 Lmonth  Synthetkc TRS Index 211,724
USD-LIBOR A.50% T0 vear Fannia
Mae pools
{4.50%) Lmonth Synthetic TRS Index 37384
USD-LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannie
Mag pools
(4.00%) Imonth  Synthetic TRS indox 4,455
USG-LIBOS 4.00% 30 year Fannie
Mag pools
{4.00%) 1month Synthetic TRS Index 44,451
UsD-LIBOR A.0K% 30 year Fannie
Mag pools
{4.50%) 1 month Synthietic TRS indox 157.015
USE-LIBOR 4.500% 30 year Fannie
Mae pools
{4.50%) 1 manth Symithetic TRS index 5271
LSD=LIBOR 4.50% 30 year Fannia
Maa pocls
4.50% (1 manth Synthetic TRS index {90,719}
UsD-LIBOR) 4.50% 30 year Fanniz
Mae pools
{6.00%) 1 maonth Synithetic TRS Index 126,155
LSD-LIBOR 6.00% 30 yvear Fannie
Mae pools
$(2,002.977)
Payments
Termi- recelved Unrealized

Motlonal nation (paid) by fund  appreciation/
amount date P annLIm (depraciation)

$198.000 5/11/B35 300bp $2.185
438000 5/11/6% 300bp 1.291
76000 S/1L/63  I00bLo 3870
04,000 5/11/65  300bp (286)
Income Fund 57
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OTC CREDIT DEFAULT CONTRACTS OUTSTANDING at 10,3113 cont

Swap counterparty/
Referenceddebt®  Rating®**

Barclays Bank PLC

CMBX NA BBB BBB-/P
Index

Credit Suisse International
CMBEX NA BRB BREg-/P
Ingie

CHBEX NA BRE BBS-/P
Irciex

CHEX NA BBEB BEE-/P
| richen

CHEX NA BEE BEg-/P
e

CMBY NA BEB BEE-/P
I

CMBEX M& BEB BEB-/P
It

CMEX NA BBB ABE-/P
Irviies

CMBX NA BBB BBE-/P
Index -
CHBX NA BBE BBB-/P
I

CMEX NA BEB BBS-/P
I

CMEX NA BEB BES-/P
Index

CHEX NA BEH RES-/P
I

CMBX MABBE BEZ-/P
I )

CHBX NA BBB BBS-/P
I

CHEX NA BEE BEE-/P
IrCie

CHBX NA BBEB BBS-/P
L

CMBY NA BBRB BES-/P
Indiex

CMBX MA BBB BEZ-/P
Ircen

CMEX NA BBE BBg-/p
Igies

CMBX MA BEE BEB-/P
Iriex )

CHBX NA BEB BB3-/P
Irihe

58 Income Fund

468,467

1320

}252

7401

35,247

44,521

58,504

59,048

57683

453,008

23,034

15355

12276

B 541

10,443

102818

98,633

60,857

L8383

19,798

33,674

33419

Moticnal
amount

$798.000

115,000
379,000
450,000
452,000
458,000
735,000
740,000
745,000
745,000
757,000
758,000

793,000

500.000
010,000
1.287.000
1,483,000
17.000
254,000
387,000

3E87.000

Termi-
nation
date

5/11/63

5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63
5/11/63

5/11/63
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Unrealized

(paid) by fund  appreciation/
per annum (depreciation)

00 bp

300 bp
300 bp
0 bp
300 bp
300 bp
300 bp
300 bp
300bp
300 bp
300 bp
300 bp
300 b
300 bp
300 bp
300 bp
300 bp
30 bp
300 b
SO0 bp
300 bp

300bp

$42.728

(3.157)
(14,471)
(22.302)
29,339
18,212
16376
16,632
14,982

6,308
(20.355)
(30,081
(33.520)

13,758
(41,136)
50,660
24,867
(24,143)
910
5,259
11,493
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OTC CREDIT DEFALLT CONTRACTS OUTSTANEING at 10/31/13 cont

Upiront Payments

premium Tormi- recelved Unrealized
Swap counterparty, recefved Hotional nation (pald) by fund  appreciation/
Referenced debt*  Rating*** {paid)** amount date pEr 2NnUm (depreciation)
Credit Suisse International conf,
CMEX NA BEB BEB-/F £39.926 412000 5/11/63 300bp $16.312
Inclex
CHEX NA BBB BEB-/P 128,508 1.206,000 5/11/63 I00bp 50,384
Inclex
CHBX NA BBB BBB-/F 165,558 1568000 5/11/63 300bp 75.70%
Inclex
Total $1,380,846 $232,048

*Payments related to the referenced debt are made upon a credit default event,
**Lpltront pramiuem 5 based on the difference betwasn the orgmal spread on issue and the market spread on day
of execution,

*** Ratings are presented for credit default contracts in which the fund has sold pratectson an the undarbang
referenced dobt. Ratings for an underhying index represent the average of the ratings of all the secuntios included
in that indiex, Thio Moody's, Standard & Poar's or Fitch ratings are believed 1o be the most recent ratings available
at October 31, 2013, Securitios rated by Putnam are indicatod by */P°

ASC 820 establishes a three-level hierarchy for disciosure of fair value measurements The valuation hisrarchy
i5 based upon the transparency of iInputs to the valuation of thie fund's investments. The threa levels are defined
s Tolhows:
Leval 1. Valuations Dasad on quoted onces for identical securities in active markats.
Leval 2 Valuations based onguated prices in markets thal arenol active or for which ali signiticant inputs are
nbservable, either directiy ar indrectly.
Level 3:Valuations based oninputs that are unchservable and significant to the fair value measurement,
The followang is a surmamary of the inpats used {o valye the fund's net aseels as of the close of the reporting period:

Valuation inputs
Inwestments in securities: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Corparate bonds and notes §—  $335.546,650 -
Foreign governmant snd agency bands snd notes - B52.587 -
Martgage-backed securities - 592,408,101 —
Murnicipal boads and notes - 4,366,381 -
Purchased options autstanding - 2784920 -
Purchased swap options outstanding = 2.534,196 -
Sanior lpans - 151,443 -
LS. government and agency moeigage obliations - AZ1.586,663 -
LS. waasury obbgations - 431074 -
Short-tarm irvestments 29,691,533 11,797 601 -
Tatals by level $29601,533  $1,387 453616 $—
Income Fund 59
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Other financial instruments:

Futures contracts

Written swap options outstanding
Farward premium swap oplion contracts
TBA sale commitments

Interest rate swap contracts

Tatal return Swap contracts

Credit default contracts

Totals by level

Level1

$(153,734)

The Accompamying Notes ars an integral part of these financed stataments,

60 Income Fund
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Valuation inputs
 Level 2 Level 3
-
{2.716,974} =
10,260 -
(28,897.345) ~
(9,835,406} -
(2,052,590} -
{1.148,798) -
$(44,640,853) —
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(2) 2012 10 31

2012 10 31

C )
( 1,687,711,272 ) 1,800,889,786 185,239,523
( 141,049,783  )( ) 141,049,783 14,508,381
9,790,223 1,007,022
2,690,843 276,780
102,759,901 10,569,883
« ) 275,723,630 28,360,933
« ) 10,807,062 1,111,614
« ) 1,156,531 118,961
« ) 12,423,309 1,277,862
2,357,291,068 242,470,959
3,523,144 362,391
104,733,431 10,772,881
« ) 593,771,109 61,075,296
3,661,098 376,581
« ) 490,151 50,417
« ) 180,620 18,579
C D 32,833 3,377
« ) 337,589 34,724
« ) 2,792 287
C ) 428,308 44,056
) ( 1,529,066 ) 1,372,108 141,135
« ) 10,521,076 1,082,198
« ) 11,329,077 1,165,309
186,552,578 186,503,278 19,183,727
« ) 3,670,736 377,572
297,088 30,558
920,854,438 94,719,087
1,436,436,630 147,751,872
( )( ) 1,527,261,454 157,094,113
« ) 6,088,116 626,224
« ) (209,537,413) (21,553,018)
112,624,473 11,584,553
— 1,436,436,630 147,751,872
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(
2012 10 31

(878,866,392  + 120,939,883 )
.27 96.00  100)
(41,214,580 =+ 5,723,450 )
(166,406,628  + 23,053,690 )
(151,112,829  + 21,221,276 )
(7.12 96.75  100)
(5,265,307 = 728,513 )
(10,446  + 1,420 )"
(10,447  + 1,420 )
(193,550,001  + 26,313,835 )
* 10 10

**

+

++
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.27

.57

.20

.22

.12

.36

.23

.35

.36

.36

748

779

741

743

732

757

744

756

757
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2012 10 31
40,457 253,882 Y 53,668,406 5,520,332
53,668,406 5,520,332
( 5,608,363 576,876
2,049,795 210,842
) 78,126 8,036
) 122,896 12,641
( 42,157 4,336
) 5,031,437 517,534
575,184 59,163
13,507,958 1,389,429
C ) (2,806) (289)
13,505, 152 1,389,140
40,163,254 4,131,192
) (1,484,872) (152,734)
( (38,156,213) (3,924,748)
) 22,123,189 2,275,591
( ) (11,129,194) (1,144,749)
TBA 114,096,560 11,735,972
85,449,470 8,789,332
125,612,724 12,920,525
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4.00

1940

2012 10 31

3.25

2012 10 31
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ETF
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2,075,900,000
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4,282,900,000

1SDA

2,131,208

987,360
TBA
TBA

TBA

TBA

TBA
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TBA
TBA

TBA

TBA

SEC

185

1.30
0.02

4982
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TBA

TBA

TBA

TBA

315

1.25

50,000
0.11

1986

ASC740 ASC740
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2012 10 31
194,801,386

16,899,346 21,706,087 38,605,433 *

92,884,454 92,884,454 2016 10 31

63,311,499 63,311,499 2017 10 31
*

2010 2010 12 22

1,671,215

1,671,215

105,132,641

(6,977,078)

98,155,563
6,895,242

(194,801, 386)

1,843,784,006
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50
100
200
300
800 1,
1,300 2,
21
0.40
0.12

0.05
2012

50
100
200
300
800
300
300
300

2013

PIL
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1,267,246 4
59,908 2
247,415 232,720
235,068 2,049,795
7,432
2,806
1,119
1995
2004
2005 12 31
50 2006 12 31
2003
1940 12
0.35
1.00 1.00  1.00 1.00
0.25 1.00 1.00 0.50 0.50
2,139,203 792,892
404,512 25,062

1,669,768 5,031,437
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110,700
13,013
32,495 7,212
1.00 0.40
3,408
2,268,429,858
2,035,148,665
5,972,188 5,971,484

2,343,944,374 125,397,305

1,772,454,238 65,113,914

(685,880, 454) (24,099,944)

(3,351,086,158) (164,882,209)

79,432,000 1,529,066

2012 10 31 2011 10 31
27,350,698 189,503,530 31,938,569 218,790,518
3,272,191 22,639,769 5,196,313 35,449,398
30,622,889 212,143,299 37,134,882 254,239,916

(32,950, 350)

(228,777,619)

(38,649,700)

(263,845,938)

(2,327,461)

(16,634,320)

(1,514,818)

(9,606,022)

2012 10 31 2011 10 31
1,388,528 9,538,158 2,105,943 14,318,416
108,522 744,380 208,992 1,412,938
1,497,050 10,282,538 2,314,935 15,731,354
(1,651,519) (11,377,763) (2,787,583) (18,884,104)
(154,469) (1,095,225) (472,648) (3,152,750)
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2012 10 31 2011 10 31
5,123,472 35,269,152 8,428,929 57,395,078
376,116 2,585,433 660,999 4,480,909
5,499,588 37,854,585 9,089,928 61,875,987
(7,411,220) (51,136,287) (8,652,088) (58,620,817)
(1,911,632) (13,281,702) 437,840 3,255,170
2012 10 31 2011 10 31
1,131,897 7,695,763 4,252,299 28,443,376
57,125 387,404 96,626 646,826
1,189,022 8,083,167 4,348,925 29,090,202

(5,356,881)

(36,496,132)

(12,052,732)

(80,978,751)

(4,167,859)

(28,412,965)

(7,703,807)

(51,888,549)

2012 10 31 2011 10 31
372,015 2,551,886 308,145 2,097,773
18,450 127,087 24,597 167,075
390,465 2,678,973 332,742 2,264,848
(355,775) (2,444,067) (234,689) (1,602,134)
34,690 234,906 98,053 662,714
2012

2012 10 31
1,406 10,000
14 100
1,420 10,100
1,420 10,100

2012

2012 10 31
1,406 10,000
14 100
1,420 10,100
1,420 10,100

2012 10 31 2011 10 31
20,514,428 144,552,458 19,234,583 133,635,790
533,133 3,744,348 554,836 3,832,111
21,047,561 148,296,806 19,789,419 137,467,901
(13,902,881) (97,729,796) (21,652,336) (149,652,242)
7,144,680 50,567,010 (1,862,917) (12,184,341)
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1,420 100 10,446
1,420 100 10,447
ASC815
11,837,818" 7,662,930
11,837,818 7,662,930
ASC815
(44,634,368) 22,123,189 (38,156,213) (60,667,392)
(44,634,368) 22,123,189 (38,156,213) (60,667,392)
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ASC815
17,757,596 (1,521,659) 30,397,359 46,633,296
17,757,596 (1,521,659) 30,397,359 46,633,296

235,139,135 | 999,698,920 ( 1,093,788,272 | 235,882 | 141,049,783

195/300



2003

SEC

2011 12

2011

10
2011

2011 12

2004

2011 04

EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SEC
2011
424,890
9,005
Topic 820
2011 04 Topic 820
2011 04 2011 12 15
2011 04
2011 11
2013

2011 11
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Statement of assets and liabilitles 10,/31/12

ASSETS
Irvestment in securities, at value (Note 1)

Uinaffiliated ssuers (identified cost $1,687,711,272) $1,B00,880,786

Affiliated msueses (identified cost $141,049,783) (Notes 1 and ) 141,049,783
Intarest and other recaivables 9,740,223
Recelvable for shares of the fund sold 2,650,843
Recelvable for investments sold 102,759,901
Recelvable for sales of delayed delivery securities {Mote 1) 275,723,630
Unreafized appreciation on swap contracts (Note 1) 10,807 062
Receivable for variation margin (Note 1} 1,156.531
Premium paid on swap contracts (Mate 1) 12423303
Total assets 2,357,291.068
LIABILITIES
Payable to custodian 3523144
Payable for investments purchased 104,733,431
Payable for purchases of delayed defivery securities (Mote 1) 583,771,108
Payable for shares of the fund repurchased 3,661,098
Payable for compensation of Manager (Note 2) 480,151
Payable tor imvestor servicing fees (Note 2 180,620
Parvable far custodian fees (Mote 23 12833
Payable for Trustes compensation and expenses (MNote 2) 337,589
Payable for administrative services {Note 2) 2,792
Payable for distribution fees (Note 2) 428,308
Written aptions outstanding. at value (premiums $1.529.066) (Notes 1 and T) 1372108
Premium received on swap contradts (Mote 1) 10.521.076
Unrealized depreciation on swap contracis (Nate 1) 11329077
TBA sale commitmants. at value (proceeds receivable 186,552 578) (Mate 1) 186,503,278
Collateral on cartain dervatve contracts, at valus (Note 1) 36707368
Other acCrusd expenses 297,088
Total liabilities 920,854,438
Met assets £1,436,436,630
REPRESENTED BY
Paid-in capital (Uinlimeted shanes authonized) (Motes 1 and 4) $1,527,261.454
Undistributed net investment mcome (Mote 1) 6.088.116
Accumulated net realized koss on mwestments (Mote 1) (209,537.413)
MNet unreafized appreciation of investments 112,624,473
Total — Representing net assets applicable to capital shares outstanding £1,436,436,630

{Continued on naxt page)

54 Income Fund
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Statement of assets and liabilities (Continued)

COMPUTATION OF NET ASSET VALLE AND OFFERING PRICE

Met asset value and redemption price per class A share
($578,866,392 divided by 120,939,883 shares)

Offering price per class A share (100,/96.00 af £7.271°
Met asset value and offering price per class B share (241, 214 580 dhvided by 5,723 450 shares)"*

Met asset value and offering price per class C share (3166 406,628 drvded by 23,055 690 shares)*

Met asset value and redemption price per class M share
{($151,112 B2 divided by 21,221 276 shares)

Offering price per class M share { 100,/96.75 of 37.12)

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class R share
($5,265,307 dnded by 728,513 shares)

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per chass RS share
(510,446 divided by 1,420 sharog)t

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class Ré share
(%10.447 divided by 1,420 sharesy

Met asset value, offering price and redemption price per class Y share
($193,550,001 divided by 26,313,835 shares)

EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
OooOooooOoooooooooboood

§7.27
$7.57
$7.20
§7.22

£7.12
57.36

$7.23
$7.35
57.36

$7.36

*Onsingle retall sates of less than $100,000. O sates of $100.000 or more the offenng price is reduced
* Redemption price per share &5 equal 1o ret asset value less any applicable contingent deferred sales charge.
fOnsmngle retall zales of less than $50,000. Onsales of $50,000 or mose the offering price is reduced

et asset value may not recalculate dus to rounding of fractional shares.

The accomganying notes are an integral part of these tnancial statermeants.

198/300

Imcome Fund 55



EDINETOOOO
O00000000000000(E14869)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Statement of operations Year ended 10/31/12

INVESTMEMT INCOME

Interest (nat of foreign tax of $40.457) Gneluding interest income af 253,882 from imvestments

imaffiliated issuers) (Note ) $535.668.406
Total investment income 53,668,406
EXPENSES

Compenzation of Manager (Mate 2} 5,608,363
Irvestor servicing fees {Mote 2) 2,048,795
Custodian fees (Mote 2) 78.126
Trustee compensation and expenses (Note 2) 122,896
Administrative services (Note 2) 42,157
Distribution fees (Note 2) 5031437
Other 575,184
Total expenses 13,507,958
Expense reduction (Mate 2} (2.806)
Met expenses 13,505,152
Het investment income 40,163,254
Mat realized kst on mvestments (Nates 1and 3) (1484872}
Mat realized koss on swap Contracts (Mote 13 (38,156,213}
Met realized gain on futures contracts (Mote 13 22123189
Met realized boss onwritten options (Mates 1 and 3) (11,129,154}
Met unreadized appreciation of investments, futures contracts, swap contracts, written options,

and TEA sale commitments during the year 114,096,560
Met gain on investments B5,449,470
Met increase in net assets resulting from operations $125,612,724

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of thesa financeal statements,

56 Income Fund
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Motes to financlal statements 0/31/12

Within the following Motes to Tinancial statements, references to "State Street” represent State Street Bank and
Trust Company, refefences to “the SECT represent the Secunties and Exchange Commission and referonces to
“Putnam Managemant™ représent Putriam Investment Management, LLC, the fund's manager, an indirect wholly-
ownet subsidiary of Pubnam Investmants. LLEC Unless otherwise noted, the “reporting penod” repoesants the
period from November 1 200 through October 31, 2012

Putnam Income Fund {the fund} is a Massachusetts business trust, which is registered under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, 3= amended. a5 a diversified open-end management investment company. The fund seeks
high current income with what Pulnam Management believes to be prudent nsk. The fund invests manly in bonds
that are securifized debt instruments (5uch as morfgage-backed imvestments) and other cbligations of companies
and governmants worldwide denomenated in LS. doilars, are elther investment-gratle or below investment -grade
(someiimes referred to as "junk bonds™) ard have intermediate: (o long-term maturites (three years of langer).

The fund offers class A, class B, chss C class M, Class B, class RS, class Rb and class ¥ shares. The fund began
offering class RS and class RE shares on July 2. 2012, Class A and class M shares are sold with a maximem front-end
sales change of 4.00% and 3.25%, respectively, and genesally do not pay a contingept deferred salescharge, Class B
shares. which comvert bo class A shares after approximately aight years, do not pay a front-end sales change and
are subject to a contingent deferred sales charge if those shares are redesmed within s years of purchase, Class ©
shares have a one-yoar LO0% contingent deferred sakes charge and do not convert to clads & shares. Class B shares,
whichare not availabie to all mvestors, are sold at net asset value. The expenses for class A, class B. class C elass M
and tlass / shares may differ Based on the distribution fee of each class, which is wentified n Nate 2 Cliass RS,
class RE and class ¥ shares, which are sokd a8 net assel value, are genemlly sulbject to the same expenses asclass A,
class B, class C, class M and class R shares but do not bear a distribution fee and in the case of class RS and class RE
shares, bear 3 lower investor seniicing fee, which i identified m Note 2 Class RS, class RE and dlass ¥ shares are not
available to all Investors,

by thee rioemial course of bBusiness, the fund entersiito contracts that may iclude agreements b indemnify anothes
parly under given circumstances, The fund’s maximum exposure under these arrangements is unknown as this
woald invalve future claims that may be, but have not yet been, made agaknst the fund. However, the fund's
management beam expects tha risk of material loss to be remote,

Mate 1; Significant accounting policies

Tha following 15 2 summary af significant accounting palicees consistently followad by the fund in the preparation
of its financial statements. The prepasation of financial Statements is in conformity withy accounting principles
genedally accepted in the United States of Amenica and reguines management to make estimates and assumplions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the reparted amounts of
increases and decreases innet assats from operations. Actusl results could differ from those estimates. Subse-
auent events after the Statement of assets and liahilities date throwgh the date that the financial statements wene
Issued hawve boan evaluatad in the preparation of the financeal statements.

Irvestiment incoma, realized and uirealized gains and Iosses and expeanses of The Tund are Borne pro-rata Based oa
the relative net assets of each class to the total net assets of the fund, except that each class bears expenses umique
to that class (including the distributian fees aoplscable to such classes), Each class voles &5 a classonly with respect
e dbs v distribution plan-or other matters onwhich a classvole i required by law ar determingd by the Trustees,
[ thee fupnd wore aadated, shames of each class would receive their pro-rata share of the net astets of the fund. in
additian, the Trustess declare separate dividends on each class of sharss.

Security valuation Market quatations are not considered 10 be readily availabie for cerfain debl obiioations and
other Investments; such Investments ane valied on the basis of vatuations furnished by an independent pricing
sarvice approved by the Trustees ar deaters selected by Putnam Management, Such services or dealers determing
waluations for normal institutional-size trading umits af such secunitees using methods based on market transac-
thons tor comparable securities and various relationships, generally recognized by institutional traders. between
socufitias (which consider such factors as security prices, yields, matunities and ratings), These sacurities will oen-
erally be categorized as Level 2. Securities quoted inforesgn currencies, If any, are translated into LS. dallars at the
current gxehange rate

Imdestments in other open-end (nvestment companées (excluding exchange traded funds), which are classified as
Level tsecuritios, are basad on their net asset valug, Tha nat assal vilue of an investrment company equals the tatal
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value of its assets less s liabilitses and divided by the number of its outstanding shares. Shares are only valued as of
thie closeof reoular trading on the New York Stock Exchange each day that the exchanoe 5 open,

To the extant & prcing sarvice ar dealer i unabla to value a secunty or provides & valuation that Putnam Man-
apement does not believe accurakely reflects the security’s fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by
Putnam Managerment. Certan fnvestments, Including cerkain restricted and lIBquid securities and derfvativas, are
dlzo valued at tair value following procedures approved by the Trustees. Thess valuations consider such factars
as sinificant market or specific security events such as interest rate or credit guality changes, vanous relation-
ships with other securities, discount rates, US. Traasury, US swap and credit yeilds. index levels, convexity expa-
sures and recovery rates. These securities are classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending oo the prorty of the
significant inputs

Such valuations and procedurnes are reviewed periodically by the Trustees. Certain secunities may be valued on the
lasis of a price provided by a single source, The fak valee of securities is generally determined as the amaunt that
the fund colld reasonably expect ba reglize from anarderly disposition of such sacurities over a reazsonabile penad
of trme, By its nature, a fair value price |s a good faith estimate of the vatue of a secunity ina current sabe and does
riak reflect an actual market price, which may be different by a material amaunt.

Security transactions and related investment income Security transactions are recorded on the trade date (the
date the grder to buy or sell is execuled) Gains or lpsses on securnities sold ane determined on the identifred cost
hasis. Interest income, net of any applicable withholding taxes, i recorded an the accreal basis. All premiums)
discounts areamartizet/accreted on a yield-to-maturity basis.

Secunties purchased or sold on a forward commitment or delayed delivery basis may be settled a month or mane
after the trade date; interest income is aconed based on the terms of the securities, Losses may arise due to
changes in the market value of the underying securities or if the counterparty does not perform under the contract.
The fund earned cerlain fees in connection with its senjor loan purchasing activities: These fees are breated as
market discount and are amortized inte income in the Statement of operations.

Stripped securities The fund may imvest in stripped securities which represent a participation in securities that may
be structured in classes with nghts to receive different potions of tha interest and pringipal. Interest-only securities
recejve all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of the principal. If the interest-only securities expe-
fience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the fund may fall bo recaup Tully ks initial investment in
these secunties. Conversely, principal-only securbies increase invalue If prepayments are greater than anticipated
and decling if prepayments are siower [han anticipated, The market value of these sacurities is highly sensitive to
changes in interest rates.

QOpticns contracts The fund Eses opticns cantracts fo hedge duration and comvexity and to solate prapayment risk.

The patential risk tothe fund (s that the change in vitue of opligns contracts may nat cormespond 1o the changa in
value of the hedged instruments: In addition, losses may arise fram changes in the value of the underlying instrus
ments f thane i.an ilhguid secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rales mova unexpectedly or if
the counterparty 10 the contract ks unable to perform, Realized galns and losses on purchased options are inchided
in realired gains and losses on investmient securities IF a written call option is exercised, the premium originally
received is recorded a: an addetion to sales procesds. I & wrtken put option is exercised, the premiurm orgnally
received is recorded as a reduction Yo the cost of investments.

Exchange traded ophions are valsed at the Wist sale prce o if no aales are reported, the last bid price for purchasod
eptions and the tastask price forwritten options. Gotions traded over-the-counter are valued using prices supplisd
by dealers. Certain options contracts include premiams that do not settle until the expiration date of the contract.
Weitten optioh contracts outstanding al period end, if any, are listed after the fund's partiolio. See Note 3 for the
valume of written options contracts activity for the reparting pericd. The fund had an average contract amount of
approximatety $2,075.900000 on punchased options confracts for the reporting period.

Futures contracts The fund uses futures cantracts to hedge nferast rate risk and (o gain exposure tonterost rates:
The potential risk to the fund is that the changs in value of futures contracts may not correspond ta the change o
value of tha hedaed instrurnents. |m addition, |osses may arse fram changes in the value of the undarlying rstru-
mentsif there is an iltiguid secondary market for the contracts, if interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if
this countarparty to the contract is unable to perform. With futienes, these is mirmal counterparty crodit rsk to the
tund since futures are exchange traded and the exchange's cleannghouse, as counterparty toall exchange traded
futures, guarantees the futures against default, Risks may excesd amounts recoanized an the Statement of assats
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and hiatulities. When the contract is closed, the fund records a reafized gain or loss equal to the difference between
the walue of the contract at the ime it was opened and the value at the time i was cosed.

Futures contracts ans valuad at the gquoted daily settlerment prices established by the exchange on which they
trade The fund and the broker agree to @xchange an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuatian in the value of
the futures contract. Such receipts or paymients ane known as "variation margin®

Futures contracts outstanding at period end, if any, are listed after the tund’s portfolio. The fund had an average of
approximately 2,500 futures contracts ootstanding for the reporting pericd,

Total return swap contracts The fund entered into total return swap contracts. which are arrangements to
exnchange a market (imked retum for a penodic payment, both based on a notional principal amount, to hedge
sector exposure, 1o manage exposune to specific sectors or industries, to gain exposure (o specific sectors of
intlustries: to gain exposure ba rates of inflation kn specific regions or countries and to hedge inflatian In spacific
TeQIons OF Countries.

To the extent thal the total return of the securily, index o other financial measure Gnderlving the transaction
exceeds or falls short of the offsetting interett rate obligation, the fund will recens a payment from or make a
payment to the counterparty, Total retusn swiap contracts ase marked 1o markat dally based upon guatations from
an independent prcing senvice of market makers and the change, il any, is recorded as an unrealized gain ar
hoss. Paymants recedved o made are recorded as realized oaing or fosses, Certam total returm swap contracts may
include extended effective dates. Paymants related to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of
the contract: The fund could be exposed lo cradit or markat risk due to unfavorable changes in the Buctuation
of interest ratés o in the poce of the underlying sacority or index, the possibility that there s no igud market
for these agreements or that the counterparty may default on ks obligation to perform, The fund's maximum
fisk of loss frem countarparty risk is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitkgated by Raving a master
netting arrangemant behween the lund and the counterparty. Risk of loss may excesd amounts recognized on the
Statement of assets and liabifites.

Total return swap contracts outstanding at perlod end, if any, are fisted after the fund's portfolic. Outstanding
national amount on total return swap contracts at the close of the reporting period are indicative of the velume of
activity durirg the reporting paricd.

Interest rate swap contracks The fund enléred into interast rale swap contracts, which are arrangements babween
two parties to exchange cash flows based on a notonal principal amount, to hedge interest rate nsk and to gan
exposure on intersst mtes.

Aninterest rate swap can ba purc hased ar sold with an upfrant premium. Anupfront payment recalved by the fund
is recorded as @ lability on the fnd's books. An upfront payment mada by the fund is rmecorded a8 an asset on the
tund's books Lpfront payiments are recorded as raalized Gains and osses at the closing of the contract interast rate
Swap contracts ane marked to market daily based upon quatations from an independent oricing service or market
makers and the change. | any, 15 recorded 2% an unrealized gain or kss. Payments recelved or made are recorded
as realized gains o losses, Certain nberast rate swap conbracts may include extended effective dates. Payments
rafated to these swap contrmcts are scorued based on the terms af the contret. The fund could be exposad ta
credit or market risk due to unfavorable changes in the fluctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults
oniks obligation to perform. The fund's maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk is the fair value of the contract.
This risk may be mitigated by having a master netting arrangerment betwaean the fund and the countarparty. Risk of
ligss ey exceed amounts recognized on the Statement of assets and labilities,

[esterest rate swap contracts outstanting at petiod end, if any, ane lsted after the fursd's portfalio. The fund had an
average notional amount of approsematedy $4.282.900,000 on interest rate swap contracts for the report ing period,
Master agreements The fund is & party to 15D (Intermatianal Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master
Agreements (Master Agréements) with carfain counterparties that govern aver-the-counter darivative and fareign
exchange conbracts entered inte from time to bme The Master Agreements may confam provisions regarding,
amang ather things, the parties’ general obligations, representations, sgreements, collateral regurement s, events
ot default and sasly termination. With respect to certain counterparfies_ in accordance with the terms of the Master
Agreements, collateral posted to tha fund = hald In a segregated account by the fund's custodan and with respact
to thase amaunts which ¢an be soid or repledged, are presented in the fund's portfolio, Collateral posted 1o the
fund which cannat be sold or repledged totaied $2131L.208 at the close of the réporting period

Collateral pledged by the fund is segregated by the fund's custodian and identifed in the fund's portfolic. Collateral
can be in the form of cash or debt securities ssued by the U5 Gavernment or related agencies of other se¢unties
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ag agread to by the fund and the applicable counterparty. Collateral requirements are detarmmed bazed on the
fundrs net position with gach counterparty:

Termination events apphicable to the fund may occur upon & decling i the tund's net assets below & specifind
threshold aver a certain pericd of time. Termination events apnlicables to counterparties may ocour upon a tecline
inn the counterparty’s tbong-term and shert-term credit ratings below a specified lavel in each case, upon oéour-
rence, the other party may efect to tarminate early and cause settiement of all denvative and torekgn exchange
contracts outstanding, including the payment of any Iosses and costs resulting from such early termination, as
reasonably determined by the terminating party. Any decision by one o mane of the fund's counterparties to ebect
early termination coubd impact the fund's future denvative activity

Al the close of the roporting paricd, the fund had a net labiity postton of 987260 00 opan derivabive contracts
subiect to the Master Agreements, Thers wias no collateral posted by the fund.

TBA purchase commitments The fund may enter into TBA (o be announced) commtments to purchase securt-
thes for a fixed unlt price at a future date beyond customarny settlement time Although the unit price has been
established, the principal value has not been finalized. However, it is anticipated that the amaunt of the commit-
ments will not significant iy differ from the poncipal ammount. The fund holds, and maintains until setttement date,
cashar high-grade debt ohiigations inan amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the fund may enterinto
offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Income on the securitles will not be earmed until
settiement date. TBA purchase commitments may be considerad sacunties themsalves, and invalve a risk of loss
if the walue of the security to be purchased decines prior o the settlement date;, which risk is in addition ta the risk
of declins in the value of the fund's other assets Unsettied THA purchase commitments are valued at fair valug of
the undertying securities, according to the procedures descnibed under "Security valuation™ above. The contract is
rnarked to market daify and the change in market value is recarded by the tund as an unrealized gain or loss.

Although the fund will generaily anter into TEA purchase commitments with the intention of aoguinng secun-
ties forits portfolio or for defivery pursuant to options contracts it has enteved into, the fund may dispose of a
cammitment prior to settlarmeant IF Putnam Management deems it appropriate bo do sa.

TBA sale commitments The fund may enter into TEA sale commitments to hedge is portfolio positions or to sall
mortgage-hacked sacurities it owns under detayed delivery arrangements, Proceeds of TEA sale commitmants
are not recelved until the contractual settlement date During the time a TEA sale commitment i$ outstanding,
equivalent dafiverabhe secunting. or an offsetting TBA purchase commitment deliverable on or before the sale
cammitmeant dale, are held as “eover” for the transaction.

Linsettled TBA sale commitments are vakied at the fair walue of the undertying securities, generally accarding to
the procedures described undar “Secunty valuation” above. The contract is marked to market daily and the change
in market value ks recorded by the tund a5 an pnreatized gain or less I the TRA sale commitment is closed through
the acguisitson of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment. the fund realizes a gain or loss. if the fund dellvers
securities under the commitmeant, the Tumd realizes a gain or & [oss from the sale of the securities based upan the
unit price established at the date the commitment was enkered into. TEA sale commitments outstanding at period
eng, IFany. are lsted aftor the fund's port folio,

Interfund lending The fund, alang with attier Putnam funds, may participate in an Interfund lending program
pursuant to'an exemptive order issued by the SEC. This program: allows the fund o borrew from o kend to other
Putnarn funds that permit such transactions. Interfund lending transactions ame sybsect toeach fund's mvestmuent
policies and borrowing and lending imits. interest earned or paid onthe interfund lending transaction will be based
on the average of certaln current markel rates. Buring he reporting period. the fund did not utilize the program.

Line of credit The fund participates, along with other Putnam funds, in 2 $315 mitlion unsecured committed line of
cradit and & 3185 million unsacured uncommattied line of creded, both provided by State Street, Borowings may ba
racle for temporary ar emergency purposes, including the funding of sharshokder redemption reguests and trads
setthements Interest is charged to the fund based on the fund's borrowing at a rate-equal to the Federal Funds rate
pliis 1.25% for the committed ina of ¢redit and the Federal Furds rate plus 1.30% far the usscamimitted line of cradit.
A closing fee equal to Q02% of the committed line of credit and $50,000 for the uncommitted ine of credit has
been padd by the pancipating funds, in addition, a commitment fee of DU1% par annum onany umnbilized portion
of the committed line ol credit s allocated to the participating funds based on their relative net assets and paid
guartarty. Dunng the reparting pancd, the fund had no borrowings aganst these arrangemants

Federal taxes it i the pahcy of the fund te distnbute all of its taxabde income within Ihe prescnbed tme pemnod and
otherwise comply with the provisions of the tntermal Revenue Code of 1986, s amendsd (the Code), applicabie
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to regulated investment companies., It is also the intention of the fund to distribute an amount sufficient to avoid
impasition of any excise tax under Section 4982 of the Code.

The fund is subject to the provisions of Accounting Standards Codification ASC 740 /ncome Taxes (ASC 740).
ASC 740 5ets forth a minimum threshald for financial statement recognition of the benefit of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The fund did nat have a llability to record for any unrecognized tax benefits in
the accompanying financial statements. Mo provision has been made for federal taxes on mcome, capital gains o
unreakized appreciaticn on securities held nor for oxcise tax on income and capital gains, Each of the fund's federal
tax returns for the prior three fiscal years remains subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service.

At Qctober 31, 2002, the fund had a capital loss carmyover of $194,801,386 available to the extent allowed by the
Code to offset futune net capstal gain, if any, The amounts of the carryovers and the expiration dates are:

‘Shart-term Leng-term Total Expiration
£16,899 346 £21,706,087 436,605,433 s
92 854,454 M/ 92,884,454 October 31, 2016
63,511.499 M 63,311,499 Dciober 31, 2017

* Under the Regulated Investment Company Modernization Act of 2000, the fund will be permitted ta carry forward
capital losses inourred in taxable years beginning after December 22, 2000 for an undimited period. However, any
lesgas mourred during thase futura years will be required to be utilized prior (o the losses incurred in pre-enactiment
tax wears, As a result of this ordenng rule. pre-enactment capital loss carryforwards may be more likely to expire
unused. Additianally, post-enactment capdal lasses that are carried forward will retain their charactar as either
shart-term or long-term capital losses rather than being consadersd alf short-term as under previous Bw

Distributions to shareholders Distributions to shareholders from net investrnent income are recorded by the fund
on the ex=dividend date. Distributions from capatal gains, if any. are recorded on the ex-dividend date and paid at
least anmually, The amount and character of income and gains to be distributed are determined in accordance with
income tax regulations, which may differ from generally accepted accounting principles. These differences include
tempaorary and/or permanent differences of income on swap contracts and interest only securities, Reclassifications
are made o the fund's capital accounts to reflect income and gains availlable for distnbution (or available capital
loss carryovers) under income tax regulations. For the reporting period ended, the fund reclassified $1,671.215 to
increase undistributed net investmaent income and $1,671,215 to increase accumulated net realized losses.

The tax bass components of distributable sarnings and the federal tax cost as af the close of the reporting persiod

were as follows:

Unirsalzed apprecation $£105,132.641
Linrealized depreciation (6,977,078)
Met unrealized appreciation 98,155,563
Undistributed ordinary income 6,895,242
Capitat loss carryforward (194.801,386)
Cost for federal ncome tax purposes $1.843,784,006

Note 2: Management fee, administrative services and other transactions

The fund pays Putnam Management a management fee (based on the fund's average net assets and computed and
paid rmanthly ) at annual rates that may vary based on the average of the aggregate net assets of most open-end
funds, as defined in the fund's management contract, sponsored by Putnam Management, Such annual rates may

vary as follows:
0.550% of the first 35 blion, 0.350% of the next $50 billion,
{0.500% of the next 35 billion, 0.330% of the mext $50 billion,
0.450% of the next $10 billon, 0.320% of the mext $100 billion and
0.400% of the next $10 billion, 0.315% of any excess therealter,

Putnam Management has contractually agreed, through June 30, 2013, to walve fecs of reimburse the fund’s
expenses to the extent necessary to limit the cumulative expenses of the fund, exclusive of brokerage, interest,
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taxes, investment-related expenses, extraordinary expenses, acquired fund fees and expenses and payments
under the fund's investor servicing contract, investment management contract and distribution plans, on a fiscal
year-to-date basis to an annual rate of 0,20% of the fund's average net assels over such fiscal year-to-date period.
During the reporting period, the fund's expenses were not reduced as a result of this limit,

Putnam Imvestrnents Limited (PIL). an affiliate of Putnam Management, is authorized by the Trustees to manage a
separate portion of the assets of the fund as determined by Putnam Management from time to time. Putnam Man-
agement pays a quarterly sub-management fee ta PIL for its services at an annual rate of 0.40% of the average net
assets of the partion of the fund managed by PIL.

The fund reimburses Putnam Management an allocated amount for the compensation and related expenses of
certain officers of the fund and their staff who provide administrative services to the fund. The aggregate amount
of all such reimbursements is determined annually by the Trustees,

Custodial functions for the fund's assets are provided by State Street, Custody fees are based on the fund's asset
level, the mumber of its security holdings and transaction volumes,

Putnam Investor Services, Inc,, an affiliate of Putnam Management, provides investor servicing agent functions
to the fund, Putnam Investor Services, Inc, received fees for investor servicing (except for Class RS and RE shares)
based on the fund's retail asset level, the nurmber of sharehalder accounts in the fund and the level of defined
contribution plan assets in the fund. Class RS shares pay a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class RS
shares at an annual rate of 0.12%. Class RE shares pay a monthly fee based on the average net assets of class RE
shares at an annual rate of 0.05%. Investar servicing fees will not exceed an annual rate of 0.32% of the fund's
average net assets, Prios to March 1, 2012, investor servicing fees could not exceed an annual rate of 0.375% of the
fund's average net assets. During the reporting period, the class specific expenses refated to investor servicing fees
were as follows:

Class A 21,267,246 Class RS 4
Class8 59,908 Class R 2
Class C 247,415 Class ¥ 233730
Class M 235,068 Total $2,049,795
Class R T.A432

The fund has entered into expense offset arrangements with Putnam Investor Services, Inc. and State Street
whereby Putnam Investor Services. Inc's and Stabe Street's fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash balances.
For the reparting pericd, the fund's expenses were reduced by $2, 806 under the expense offset arrangements.

Each independent Trustee of the fund receives an annual Trustee fee, of which S1119, a5 a quarterly rataines, has
been aliocated to the fund, and an additional fee for each Trustees meeting attended. Trustees also are reimbursed
for expenses they incur relating to their services as Trustees.

The fund has adopted a Trustee Fee Deferral Plan (the Deferral Plan) which allows the Trustees to defer the receipt
of all or a portion of Trustees fees payable on or after July 1, 1995, The deferred fees remain invested in certain
Putnarn funds until distnibution in accordance with the Deferral Flan.

The fund has adopted an unfunded noncantributary defined benefit pension plan (the Pension Plan) covering
all Trustees of the fund who have served as a Trustea for at least five years and were first elected prios to 2004,
Benefits under the Pension Plan are eqgual Lo 50% of the Trustee's average annual attendance and retainer fees for
the three years ended December 31, 2005, The retirement benefit is pavable during a Trustee's lifetime, beginning
the year following retirement, for the number of years of service through December 31, 2006, Pension expanse
for the fund is included in Trustee compensation and expenses in the Staterment of operations, Accrued pension
liability is included in Payable for Trustee compensation and expenses in the Statement of assets and labilties. The
Trustees have terminated the Pension Plan with respect to any Trustee first elected after 2003,

Thee fund has adopted distribution plans (the Plans) with respect to its class A, class B, class C, class M and class R
shares pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, The purpose of the Plans is to com-
pensate Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Pubnam Invest-
ments, LLC, for services provided and expenses incurred in distributing shares of the fund, The Plans provide for
payments by the fund to Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership at an annual rate of up to 0.35%, 100%,
1.00%, 1.00% and 1.00% of the average net assets attributabde to class A, class B, class C, class M and class R shares,
respectively. The Trustees have approved payment by the fund at an annual rate of 0.25%, 1.00%, LO0%, 0.50% and
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0.50% of the average net assets attributable to class A, class B, class C, class M and class R shares, respectively.
Dwuring the reporting period, the class specific expenses refated to distribution fees were as follows:

Class A $2,139.203 ClassM 792.892
ClassB 404,512 ClassR 25,062
ClassC 1,669,768 Total $5,031,437

For the reparting pericd, Putnam Retall Management Limited Partnership. acting as underwritor, recaivied net com-
missions of 8110,700 and $13,013 from the sale of class A and class M shares, respectively, and received $32,495 and
§7.212 in contingent deferred sales charges from redemptions of class B and class € shares, nespectively,

A deferred sales charge of up to LOO% and 0.40% 15 assessed on certain redemptions of class A and class M shares,
respectively. For the reporting peried. Putnam Retail Management Limited Partnership. acting as underwriter,
received 33,408 and no monies on class A and class M redemgptions, nespectivedy.

Mote 3: Purchases and sales of securities

During the reporting pericd. cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of investment securities ather than
short-term investments aggregated $2.268.429.858 and $2.035148,665, respectively. These figures include
the cost of purchases and proceeds from sales of long-term US. government securities of 55872188 and
§5,971,484, respectively,

Written option transactions during the reporting period are summarized as follows:

Written swap option Written swap option
contract amounts premiums
Written options outstanding at the
beginning of the reponting penod §2,343 044, 374 $125.397.305
Options opened 1772454238 65,113,914
Options exercised {B85.880,454) (24,099,944}
Qptions expired = =
Options closed (3,351.086,158) {164,882 209)
Wiitten options outstandmng at the
erxd of the reporting pariod $79.432.000 $1.529.066

Note 4: Capital shares

At the close of the reporting period, there was an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest authorized.
Transactions in capital shares were as follows:

Year ended 10/31/12 Year ended 10/31/11

Class A Shares Amaunt Shares Amount
Shares soid 27350698 | $189.503.530 31938569  $218.790,518
Shares issued in connection with
reinvestment of distnibuticns .27 1m 22 630,769 5,196,313 35,449 058

30622889  212.143.299 37134882 254,239.916
Shares repurchased (32950350) | (228.777.619)  (38,649,700)  (263.845.938)
Net decrease (2327,461)  $(16,634,320)  (1514818)  $(9,606,022)
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Year ended 10/31/12 Year ended 10/31/11
Class B Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sokd 1,588,528 $9.538.158 2105943 $14.318.416
Shares issued in comnection with
reinvestment of distributions 108,522 744,380 208,992 1.412938
1,497 050 10,282,538 2314935 15731 354
Shares repurchased (1.651,519) {11.377.763) (2,787.583) (18.884,104)
Het decrease {154,469) $(1,095,225) (472,648) $(3,152,750)
Year ended 10,/31/12 Year ended 10,/31,/11
Class C Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares sokd 5,123,472 $35.269,152 8,428,929 457,395,078
Shares issued in comnection with
rexrvestmnent of distributions 76,116 2585453 660,999 4,450,909
5.4%3,588 37 854,585 4,089,528 61875987
Shares repurchased (7.4811,220) (51,136,287 {8,652,088) (58,620,817)
Het increase (decrease) (1,911,632}  $(13,281,702) 437,840 £3,255,170
Yoar ended 10,/31/12 Year ended 10,/31,/11
Class M Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares soid 113180 $7,6595,763 4,252,299 328,443,576
Shares isswed in connection with
resnvestanent of distributions 57,125 187,404 95,626 646,826
1.189.022 B.083.167 4,348,925 29,090,202
Shares repurchased (5.5356,881) (36,496,132) (12,052,732) (B0.978,751)
Het decrease (4,167,859)  $(28,412,965) (7,703,807)  $(51,888,349)
Year ended 10,/31/12 Year ended 10,/31/11
Class R Shares Amount Shares Amount
Shares soad 372015 $2.551 885 308,145 £2.007.773
Shares isswed in cannection with
reinvestment of distributions 18,450 127,087 24,597 167,075
200,465 26784073 332,742 2.264,848
Shares repurchased (355,775) {2.444.067) (234,680 (1.602.134)
Met Increase 34,690 $234 906 98,053 $662,714
For the period 7/3/12
(commaencemaent of operations) to 10/31/12
Class RS Shares Amount
Shares sokd 1,406 $10,000
Shares isseed in connection with reimestment of distributions 14 100
1430 10,100
Shares repurchased - -
Met increase 1,420 $10,100
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For the period 7/3/12
(commaencemaent of operations) to 10,/31/12
Class RE Shares Amount
Shares spkd 1,406 $10,000
Shares isswed in connection with reimestment of distributions 14 100
1,420 10,100
Shares repurchased - -
Met increase 1,420 $10,100
Year ended 10/31/12 Year ended 10/31,/11
Class Y Sharas Amount Shares Amount
Shares soid 20,514 428 $144,552,458 19,234 583 $133.635,790
Shares issued in comnection with
rexrvestmnent of distributions 533,133 3744348 554,836 IAZ2In
21.047 561 148 296 806 19,789,419 137,467,501
Shares repurchased (13,902 881) (9,729, 79%6) {21,652 3365 {140,652 242)
Het increase (decrease) 7,144,680 $50,567,010 (1,862,917)  $(12,184,341)

At the close of the reporting period, Putnam Investments, LLC awned the fallowing class shares of the furd:

Shares owned Percentage of ownership Value
Clats 75 1420 100% £10,446
Class 6 1420 100 10447

Note 5: Summary of derivative activity
The following is a summary of the market values of derivative instruments as of the close of the reporting persod,

Market values of derivative instruments as of the close of the reporting period

Asset derivatives Liability derivatives
Darivatives not
accounted for as Statement of Statement of
hedglng instruments assets and assets and
under ASC B15 liabilities location  Market value liabilities location  Market value
Investmeants,
Receivables, Net Payables, Met
assels — Unrealized assels — Linrealized
Interest rate contracts appreciation $11.8357 BIB* depreciation %7 662,030
Total $11,837.818 £7.662,930

* Inchudes cumulative apprecation/depreciation of futures contracts as reported in the fund's portfobo. Only curmant
day's variation margin is reported within the Statement of assets and kabilities

The fallowing is a summary of realized and change In unrealized gains or losses of derivative instruments on the
Statement of operations for the reporting period (see Note Ty,

Amount of realized gain or (loss) on derivatives recognized in net gain or (loss) on investments

Derivatives not accounted for

as hedging instruments under

ASC 815 Options Futures Swaps Total
[nterest rate contracts £044,634,368) $22.123.189 $(38,156,213)  $(60,667.392)
Total $(44,634,368) $22,123,189 $(38,156,213)  $(60,667,392)
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Change in unrealized appreciation or (depreciation) on derivatives recognized in net gain or (loss) on investments

Derivatives not accounted for
as hedging instruments under
ASC 815 Options Futures Swaps Tatal
Interest rate contracts 817,757 506 $01.521 659} $30, 797 359 $45, 633 206
Total $17,757.5%6 ${1,521,659)  $30,397,359 $46,633,296

Mote &: Transactions with affiliated issuer
Transactions during the reporting pericd with Putnam Money Market Liquidity Fund, which is under common
ownership and contrel, were as follaws:

Market value at Market valua

the beginning at the end of

of the reporting Investment  the reporting

Mame of affiliate period  Purchasecost  Sale proceeds incame period
Putnarm Money Market

Liquidity Fund® $235.139,135  $999.608,920 51093788272 $253,882 | §141.049,783

* Management fees charged to Putnam Money Market Liquidity Fund have been waived by Putnam Management.

Mote 7: Senior loan commitments

Senior loans ane purchased or sobd on a when-issuad or delayed delivery basis and may be settled a month or mone
after the trade date, which from time to time can delay the actual investment of available cash balances; interest
income is accrued based on the terms of the securities. Senior loans can be acquired throwgh an agent, by assign-
rment fram anather halder of the loan, ar as a participatson interest in another hodder's portion of the loan, When the
fund invests in @ loan or participation, the fund is subject to the risk that an intermediate participant between the
fund and the boerower will fall bo meet its obligations to the fund, inaddition te the risk that the borrower under the
loan may default onits obligations,

Hote B: Market, credit and other risks

I the normal course of business, the fund trades financial instruments and enters into financial transactions where
risk of potential loss exists due to changes in the market {market risk) or failure of the contracting party to the
transaction to perform (credit risk), The fund may be exposed to additional credit risk that an institution or ather
antity with which the fund has unsettied or open transactions will default. Investmants in foreign secunities involve
certain risks, including those related to ecanomic instability, unfavorable political developments, and currency
fluctuations. The fund may invest a significant portion of its assets in securitized debt instruments, including mart-
gage-backed and atset-backed investments. The viebds and values of these mvestmants are senstive to changes
ininterest rates, the rate of principal payments on the underlying assets and the market's perception of the issuers,
The market for these mvestments may be volatile and limited, which may make therm difficult to buy o sell,

Note 9: Regulatory matters and litigation

Inlate 2003 and 2004, Putnam Management settied charges brought by the SEC and the Massachusetts Secunties
Diwision in connection with excessive shart-term trading in Putnam funds. In July 2011, the fund recorded a receiv-
able of $424 890 related to restitution amounts in connection with a distribution plan approved by the SEC. This
amaunt, which was received by the fund in December 2011, is reported as part of Increase in capital from settle-
ment payments on the Statement of changes in net assets, These allegations and refated matters have served as
the general bases for certain lawsuits, including purparted class action lawsuils against Putnam Managerment and,
in a limited number of cases. some Putnam funds. In May 2011, the fund received a payment of $9,005 related to
settherment of those lawsuits. This amount ks reported as a part of Increase in capital from settiement payments on
the Statement of changes in net assets, Putnam Management has agreed to bear any costs inturred by the Putnam
funds as a result of these matters.
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Maote 10: Mew accounting pronouncements

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASE) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU)
201-04 “Fair Value Measurements and Disciosures (Topic 8200 — Amendments o Achieve Comman Fair Value
Measuwrement and Disclosure Requiremenis in LLS. GAAP and IFRS™. ASU 2011-04 amends FASE Topic B20 "Fair
Value Measurement” and seeks to develop commaon reguirements for measuring fair value and for disclosing infor-
mation about fair value measurements in accordance with GAAR ASU 2001-04 is effective for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The application of ASU 2011-04 did not have a material impact
on the fund’s financial statements.

In Decembser 2011, the FASB issued ASU Moo 2001-N “Disclosires about Offsotting Assets and Liabiities”, The
update creates new disclosure reguirements requiring entities to disclosa both gross and net information for deriv-
atives and other financial instruments that are either offset in the Statement of assets and latalities or subject to
an enforceable master netting arrangement ar similar agreement. The disclosure requirements are effactive for
annual reporting pericds beginning on or after January §, 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods.
Putnam Management is currently evaluating the application of ASU 2001-11 and its impact, if any, on the fund’s
financial statements.

Imcome Fund 71
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(2014 )
( ) ( )
1,869,714,791 192,318,863
638,355,055 65,661,201
1,231,359,736 126,657,662
108,726,879
4,628,847
18,082,824
17,007,404
1,216,511
216,477
2,204,058
18,574,402
7.23 744
7.16 736
7.17 738
7.07 727
7.18 739
7.31 752
7.32 753
7.32 753
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@)
a) (2014 )
31,483,089 ( )( 32 ) )
b)
( )
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
69,079,977 82,851,104 | 135,510,826 21,073,034 31’%29’9415 )
)
(
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@
@
2014
116 (
765
(2014 )
(100 )

6 2,511.26

11 5,968.30

36 24,011.05

63 43,994.13

116 76,484.74
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(1) 2012 12 31

2012 12 31
29,064,952 2,989,621
4,127,372 424,541
33,192,324 3,414,162
39,763 4,090
33,232,087 3,418,252
3,558,199 365,996
8,600,854 884,684
12,159,053 1,250,680
« ) (107,636,097) (11,071,449)
128,709,131 13,239,021
21,073,034 2,167,572
33,232,087 3,418,252
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2012 12 31
322,716,322 33,194,601
160,419,016 16,500,700
26,082,456 2,682,841
10,564,692 1,086,684
« ) 49,186,440 5,059,317
246,252,604 25,329,543
76,463,718 7,865,058
24,672,939 2,537,859
51,790,779 5,327,200
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2012 - - 135,510,826 13,938,644 135,510,826 13,938,644
¢ ) - - (96,947,453) (9,972,015) (96,947,453) (9,972,015)
¢ ) - - 41,251,907 4,243,171 41,251,907 4,243,171
2012 31
(107,636,097) (11,071,449) - - (107,636,097) (11,071,449)
C )

- - (2.896,928)  (297,978)  (2,896,928)  (297,978)

- - 51,790,779 5,327,200 51,790,779 5,327,200

2012 12 31 (107,636,097) (11,071,449) 128,709,131 13,239,021 21,073,034 2,167,572
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2012 12 31

51,790,779 5,327,200
5,913 608
(2,317,641) (238,393)
(490, 842) (50,488)
(216,864) (22,307)
2,335,275 240,206
51,106,620 5,256,827
« ) (51,106,620) (5,256,827)
(51,106,620) (5.256,827)
(96,947,453) (9,972,015)
41,251,907 4,243,171
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2012 12 31

2012

1,251,602
(1,251,602)

2012

28,146,791

28,146,791

(2,242,423)

(2,242,423)

(1,231,429)

24,672,939
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2010
2010
20
2010
2012 12 31 (1,231,429)
2012 12 31
2012 12 31
2012 12 31
®
2012 31
2012 31
96,947,453
41,251,907 55,695,546
2012 12 31 2,817,429
2012 12 31
8,355,324
2012 12 31

49,186,440
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3,826,667



VES' N

BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS

Current Assets
Investment management fees receivabla
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Other assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AN B 3 TY
Liabilities
Accrued compensation and employee benefits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Toal liabilities

Members' Equity
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate
Members' equity

Total members” equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' EQUITY

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements.
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5 29,064,952
4,127,372

33,192,324

39,763

5 33,232,087

5 3,558,199
8,600,854

12,159,053

(107,636,097
128,709,131

21,073,034

] 33,232,087
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STATEMENT OF OPFRATICNS
Year Emded December 31,
2012

REVENUE

Investment mansgement fees, net 5 322716322
QPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and benefiis 160,419,006

Professional and extemnal services 26,082,436

Other operating expenscss 10,564,692

Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates (Mote 53) 49,186,440
Taral operating expenses 246,252 604
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES T6463,718
Provision for income taxes (Mot 4) 214,672,930
MET INCOME 5 51,790,779

The accoimfrsiying noles are an nregral pan of these financial statements.
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Yenr Ended December 11,
0z

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
et income 3 51,790,779
Adjustiments 1 reconcile nol income i net cash wsed in

operuting aclivities:

Depreciation and amonizaion of preperty and equiponent 5913
Changes in assets and Jiabilities:
Investment management fees receivable (2,317.641)
Prepard expenses and olher assels (490,542
Acersed compensation and employee benelits (216, 864)
Acoounts payable and accrued expensue 2,335,275
Met cash provided by operating activities 51, 106,620

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in accounts receivable from Parent and alTiliane

and net intercoampany (ransactions [Note 5) (51, 106,620)
et cash used in Minancing sctivitics (31, 1066200
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 5 -

Supplemental Non-Cach Flow Information from Financlug Activities:
Dividend 1o Parent {Mote ) L1 (96,947,453)
Contribution from Parent (Mot 53 5 41.251,.907

The acoompanying notes are an inlegrad pan of these lnanciol stalements.

230/300



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION

Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company™) is a wholly indircctly-owned subsidiary of
Putnam Investments, LLC (the “Parcnt” or “Putnam”), which is a majority indirectly-owned subsidiary of
Great-West Lifeco Inc. (“Lifeco™).

The Company's primary business is to provide investment advisory services to Putnam-sponsored mutual
funds (the “Funds"). In connection with providing these services, the Company receives a management
fee, which is based upen the average asset value of the respective fund or account to which the services
are provided. Company revenue is largely dependent on the total value and composition of assets under
managerment of the Funds, which include domestic and imternational equity and debt ponfolios,
Accordingly, fluctuations in financial markets and in the compesition of assets under management affect
revenue and results of operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as deseribed in Mote 5.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the
Company and may not be indicative of the conditions or the results of operations that would have existed
if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with aceounting principles genceally accepted in the
United States of America, which require management to make estimates and assumptions regarding the
potential outcome of litigation and other matters that effected the reported amounts in the financial
statements and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from these estimates,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization. Depreciation
expense is calculated using the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of cach asset
group as follows: compuler equipment (servers and mainframes) — three 1o five years, office and other
equipment and automobiles — five years, and furniture — seven years. Leaschold improvements are
amorlized using the steaight-line method over the periods covered by the applicable leases, or the
estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is less. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related
accurmulated depreciation or amortization is removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is reflected in operating income. Additions, renewals, and betterments of fixed assets are
capitafized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when incurred.
Depreciation and amortization cxpense on property and equipment, along with the cost of repairs and
maintenance, is included in Other operating expenses in the Statement of Operations. The Company
periodically reviews the earrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or
changes indicate that the carrying value of assets may not be recoverable, There have been no property
and equipment impairments during the year, All currently held property is fully depreciated as of
December 31, 2012,
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees, net are recognized as services arc performed.  Investment management fees
are eamed daily and paid monthly or quarterly. Invesiment management fees are primarily based on
percentages of the average assets under management. Fees resulting from the achievement of specified
performance thresholds are recorded when such levels are attained and when such fees are not subject to
forfeire. Investment management fees are shown net of fees waived pursuant to specified contractual
expense limitations of the Funds totaling $7,406,904.

Translation Adjustment, net

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in U.S. dollars, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. Exchange rate différences arising from the translation of
inercompany receivable and payable with affiliates are recorded (o Members™ Equity.

Income Taxes

The Company participates in a tax sharing agreement with a U.5. affiliate of Lifeco, with which it files
consolidated federal and certain combined state income tax returns, which also include the Parent, It
accounts for income taxes under the modified separate return method. Aceordingly, the Company’s net
operating losses (excluding certain state losses) are charneterized as realizable because the benefits of the
net operating lesses are recognized in the Parent's consolidated financial statements,

Under the tax sharing agreement, the Company shall pay to, or receive from, the Parent an amount equal
to the wtal provision for income taxes that the Company discloses on its financial statements via an
intercompany transaction with the Parent. The U.S. affiliate assumes ultimate responsibility for the
payment of all taxes in accordance with federal, state, and local laws with respect to consolidated and/or
combined returns. As a result of this tax sharing agreement, the Company had no current or deferred tax
liabilities or assets recorded on its Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012, rather such amounts are offset
with other intercompany balances with the Parent. The income iax balances reflected within the
intereompany accounts are periodically settled via a contribution from or 2 distribution to the Parent.

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following as of December 31, 2012:

2m2
Property and equipment £ 1251602
Less accumulated depreciation (1,251,602}

Property and equipment, net $ -

Depreciation expense was $5,913 for the year ended December 31, 2012 and is included within Other
operating expenses in the Statement of Operations.
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PUTHAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{4) INCOME TAXES
The Company’s income tax provision for the vear ended December 31, 2002 consists of the fotlowing:

012
Federal
Current jax provision 5 -
Deferred tax provision 28,146,791
Total federal provision 28,146,791
Srate
Current tax provision .
Deferred tax benefit §1242,423!
Total state tax benefit (2,242,423)
Change in valuation allowance (1,231,429
Total income tax provision 5 24672039

The total tax provision differs from the amount that would be caleulated by applying the federal statutory
tax rate to income before provision for income taxes primarily due to slate taxes. For years prier to
January 1, 2010, the Company recorded a valuation allowance against the future state tax provision that
the Company would receive due to limitations surrounding the timing of the related siate 1x deductions.
A change in Massachuseus state tax law during 2010 changed the net operating loss carmyforward period
from five vears to twenty years, thereby eliminating the shon term limitations surrounding the timing of
taking such deductions on a prospective basis. As a result, no state valwation allowance has been
recarded relative to future tax benefits originating in tax years beginning lanuary 1, 2010 and forward.
The existing state tax valuation allowance was adjusted by (51.231,429) for the year ended December 31,
2012,

As of December 31, 2012, the Company docs not have any unrecognized tax benefils thal would affect
the effective tax rate. The Company’s policy is to include intcreat and penalties related to uncertain tax
positions in its income tax provision, During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company did not
recognize any interest and penalties in its income tax provision and does not have any acerued interest
and penalties at December 31, 2012, The Company's U.5. Federal tax returns filed in the preceding three
years are apen to audit; additionally, the Company has filed state tax returns in the prior three to five year
period that remain open to audit.
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PUTHAM INVESTMENT MAMNAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(5) TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT AND AFFILIATES
Accounts Receivable from Parent and affiliate

The Company instructs its customers to remit cash directly to the Parent and instructs the Parens
disburse cash on its behalf. The Parent also allocates certain expenses to the Company. Accounts
receivable from Parent and affiliate represents the net of intercompany transactions between the
Company and the Parent and affilistes due to (i) the above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by the
Parent cn its behalf (ii} the recording of expense and [iii} the previously deseribed tax sharing
agreements. Commencing March 31, 2012, these balances are recorded as comesponding increases or
decreases in the Members” equity section of the Balance Sheet as the Company neither pays or receives,
nor anticipates paying or receiving cash related 1o these balances.

Settlement of Intercompany Balances with Affiliates

On March 31, 2012, as pan of a group-wide exercise carried out by the Parent, in order to settle historical
intercompany balances between Putnam affiliates, the Company’s Members' equity balance on the
Balance Shest was reduced by 555,605,546 as a result of a dividend of $96,947 453 issued to the Parent,
offset by a capital contribution of $4 1,251,907 from the Parent.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parem and affiliates sponsor a defined contribution retirement plan (the “Plan™)
covering substantially all employees and provides for a predetermined monthly matching employer
contribution and an annual discretionary contribution as determined by the Parent's Board of Directors.
For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company's share of the annuval expense to the Plan tomled
$2,817.429. This amount is included in Compensation and benefits in the Statement of Operations.

Internally Developed Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software devetoped for internal use as long-lived assets,
which is amortized on 2 straight-line basis (using the half-year convention) over three years. The
amortization cxpense is allocated 1o each subsidiary of the Parent, including the Company, based on the
subsidiary’s usage of cach capitalized software project. Amortization expense allocated during the year
ended December 31, 2002 was 58,355.324, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and
affiliates in the Statement of Operations.

Parent Operating Expenses

The Company shares office facilities, personnel and other arrangements Further described in this note
with other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related costs of such arrangements have been
allocated among the varicus subsidiaries in a manner which management believes is representative of the
actual costs incurred.  During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company was allocated
£49,186,440 of costs. These charges are included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates in the
Statement of Operations.

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsers the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP'). Certain emplayees
of the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricied
shares of the Parent's Class B common shares and Class B stock options. Awards under the EIP are
issued at the grant date fair value as determined in accordance with the valuation methodology described
in the Plan.
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BUTHAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT. LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Parent recognizes expense for awards based on the grant date fair value over the vesting period of up
to 5 years, The Company utilizes the graded-vesting method of amortization. A portion of these
expenses are charged to the Company in a manner comsistent with the grant of such share-based
payments.

The Company has employees who were granted restrieted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant
to the EIP. The Company was also allecated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The
fair market value of the Class B common shares was determined under the valuation methodology
outlined in the EIP, which includes consideration of the range of values determined by a nationally
recognized independent valuation firm chosen by the EIP Committze. Compensation expense for these
awards is being amortized over the vesting period of up to five years. Compensation cxpense charged
and allocated to the Company during the year ended December 31, 2012 was $11,315707 and
51,812,242 respectively. As of December 31, 2012, there was 528425085 of unrecognized
compensation expense related to the Company's portion of restricted Class B common shares. The
weighted average period over which that expense is expected to be recognized is 4.24 years.

The Company was alse allocated expense related o the Parent's 2008 grant of Class B stock options for
the year ended December 31, 2002 of 5305,248. As of December 31, 2002 thore was 3102975 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company’s allecated portion of Class B stock options.
The period over which the expense is expected to be recognized is 0.58 years.

Expenses charged directly to the Company related to the EIP are included in Compensation and benefits
in the Swutement of Operations. Allocated expenses related to these plans are included in Allocated
expenses from Parent and affiliates in the Statement of Operations.

(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Claims, Lawsuits and Ciher Confingencies

From time to ime, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, ansing in the normal
course of business. Tt is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on
the financial position of the Company.

In addition, the Company does receive inquiries, including requests for documents and information, in
the course of its business from varions state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the
Company's policies and procedures. Each of these maiters is handled in the ordinary course of business.
The Company fully responds to these requests and Tully cooperates with all regulatory inguiries.

Fumnam Litigation

Pulnam is a defendant in an action brought by a Pumam employee who was terminated for market timing.
The former employee is seeking deferred compensation left at Putnam at the time of termination. Putnam
removed the case to Federal Court and moved to dismiss the Employee Retirement Income Security Act
(“ERISA™) based claims. Putnam algo filed counterclaims and discovery and depositions are in process.
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MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Indemmnified Matrers

Putnam’s former parent company, Marsh & McLeonan Companies, Ine., will indemnify Lifcco with
respect to certain Putnam-related litigation and regulatery matters following the date of the acquisition by
Lifeco. This includes, but is not limited to, regulatory and civil matters and litigation invelving excessive
shornt=term trading by certain former employees of the Parent and sharcholders in shares of the Funds and
alleged market timing and late trading activities in the Funds,

(7) PREPAID SIGN-ON BONUSES

At December 31, 2012, there is $507,000 of prepaid sign-on bonuses which are included in Prepaid
expenses and other current assets in the Balance Sheet. The expense for these bonuses is being
recognized through 2013, These bonuses are subject 1o a clawback period if the recipient employees do
not remain continuously employed by the Company through 2013, Amortization expense for the year
ended December 31, 2002 amounted to $3,826,667 and is included in Compensation and benefits in the
Statement of Operations.

(8) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has policies and procedurcs relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring,
mitiguting and controlling of rsks associated with financial instruments,  The key nisks related o
Mnancial instruments are liqudity rsk, credit nsk and market risk (interest rte and equity).  The
following sections describe how the Company manages each of these risks.
(a) Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as
they come dug, The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk:
+ The Company closely manages operating liquidity through eash flow matching of assets and
liabilities,
* The Company has the financial suppont of its Parent, which maintains a $500,000,000
revolving credit agreement with a consortium of banks.
* The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due as of
December 31, 2012,
* The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal year,

(b) Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when
due. The Company monitors its credit sk management policies continuously to evaluate their
effectiveness. The maximum credit exposure is the carrying value of the assers on the Balance
Sheet.

() Market Risk

Muarket risk is the risk that the fair value or foture cash flows of a financial instrument will
Muctuate as a result of changes in market factors which include two types: interest rate (including
related inflation) risk and equity risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) Inteprest Bate Risk

Imterest rate risk cxists if asset and liability cash flows are not closely matched and interest
rates change causing a difference in value between the asset and liability. The Compeny's
primary exposure to interest rate risk arises from fee revenue earmed from fixed income
investments within the Funds advised by the Company.

(i) Equity Risk

Equity risk is the uncerlainty associated with the valuation of assels arising from changes in
equily markets, The Company’s primary exposure to equily risk arises (rom fee revenue that
is generaled from the Funds advised by the Company.

(9 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after December 31, 2012 through

June 4, 2013, the date these financial statements were issued. The Company is not aware of any
subsequent events which would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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(2) 2011 12 31

2011 12 31
26,747,311 2,751,228
« ) 112,225,023 11,543,466
6,521,016 670,752
145,493,350 14,965,446
C ) 12,355 1,271
45,763 4,707
145,551,468 14,971,424
3,775,063 388,303
6,265,579 644,477
10,040, 642 1,032,780
135,510,826 13,938,644
145,551,468 14,971,424
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2011 12 31
340,542,397 35,028,191
170,267,232 17,513,687
30,362,089 3,123,044
9,349,332 961,672
( ) 48,691,719 5,008,430
258,670,372 26,606,834
81,872,025 8,421,356
21,637,055 2,225,587
60,234,970 6,195,769
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2011 12 31
( ) 82,851,104 8,522,065
4,338,292 « ) (7,575,248) (779,190)
( ) 75,275,856 7,742,875
60,234,970 6,195,769
12 31 135,510,826 13,938,644
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12 31

60,234,970

35,481

3,954,481

(66,604,705)

(122,244)
184,356

2,317,661

6,195,769

3,650

406,758

(6,850,960)

(12,574)
18,963

238,395
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2011

1,258,043

(1,245,688)

12,355

2011

30,725,443

30,725,443

303,635

(6,671,762)

(6,368,127)

(2,720,261)

21,637,055




2010
2010
20
2011
12 31 2,720,261

2011 12 31

®

2011 12 31

8,712,528
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2011
2011
IT
2010
2010 12 31 37,327,918 40,640,686
2,013,500
2008
2011
IFRS
2011 7,575,248
2011 12 31
12,178,632 3,474,666 2011 12 31
22,000,970
3.29
2008
8.06
0.00 27.98
4.39 6.3 2011 12 31
793,769 2011 12 31
569,666 1.50
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2012 2012
2011 12 31 4,000,000
®
)
500,000,000
2011 12 31
)
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December 31,
2011

ASSETS
Current Assets

Investment management fees receivable $ 26,747,311

Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate (Note 5) 112,225,023

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,521,016
Total current assets 145,493,350
Property and equipment, net (Note 3) 12,355
Other assets 45,763
TOTAL ASSETS $ 145,551,468
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS EQUITY
Liabilities

Accrued compensation and empl oyee benefits $ 3,775,063

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,265,579
Tota liahilities 10,040,642
Members' Equity 135,510,826
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS EQUITY $ 145,551,468

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.

248/300



EDINETOOOO
OO0000OO000DO00oOO(EL4869)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2011

REVENUE

Investment management fees, net $ 340,542,397
OPERATING EXPENSES

Compensation and benefits 170,267,232

Professional and external services 30,362,089

Other operating expenses 9,349,332

Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates (Note 5) 48,691,719
Total operating expenses 258,670,372
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 81,872,025
Provision for income taxes (Note 4) 21,637,055
NET INCOME $ 60,234,970

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS EQUITY

December 31,
2011

Balance, January 1 (as previously reported) $ 82,851,104

Adjustment for change in accounting principle, net of income tax of

$4,338,292 (Note 5) (7,575,248)
Balance, January 1 (as restated) $ 75,275,856

Net income 60,234,970

Baance, December 31 $ 135,510,826

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Investment management fees receivable
Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued compensation and employee benefits
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash used in operating activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) ORGANIZATION

Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”) is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam
Investments, LLC (the “Parent” or “Putham”), which is a mgjority indirectly-owned subsidiary of Great-West
Lifeco Inc. (“Lifeco”). The Company’s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to Putnam-
sponsored mutual funds (the “Funds’). In connection with providing these services, the Company receives a
management fee, which is based upon the average asset value of the respective fund or account to which the
services are provided. Company revenue is largely dependent on the total value and composition of assets under
management of the Funds, which include domestic and international equity and debt portfolios. Accordingly,
fluctuations in financial markets and in the composition of assets under management affect revenue and results of
operations.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant interdependencies, as described in Note 5. The
accompanying financia statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the Company and
may not be indicative of the conditions or the results of operations that would have existed if the Company had
been operated as an unaffiliated company.

(2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Estimates

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generaly accepted in the United
States of America, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortization. Depreciation expense is
calculated using the straight-line method, based on the estimated useful life of each asset group as follows:
computer equipment (servers and mainframes) - three to five years, office and other equipment and automobiles -
five years, and furniture - seven years. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over
the periods covered by the applicable leases, or the estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is less.
Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation or amortization is removed from the
accounts and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is reflected in operating income. Additions, renewals, and
betterments of fixed assets are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense when
incurred. Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment, along with the cost of repairs and
maintenance, is included in Other operating expenses in the Statement of Operations. The Company periodically
reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes indicate that the
carrying value of assets may not be recoverable. There have been no property and equipment impairments during
the year.

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees are recognized as services are performed. Investment management fees are earned
daily and paid monthly or quarterly. Investment management fees are primarily based on percentages of the
average assets under management. Fees resulting from the achievement of specified performance thresholds are
recorded when such levels are attained and when such fees are not subject to forfeiture. Investment management
fees are shown net of fees waived pursuant to specified contractual expense limitations of the Funds totaling
$7,882,179.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share based payment arrangements in accordance with share-based compensation
guidance as described in Note 5. The Company elected to change its method of amortizing its share-based
compensation from the straight-line method to the graded vesting method.

Income Taxes

The Company participates in a tax sharing agreement with a U.S. affiliate of Lifeco. It accounts for income taxes
under the modified separate return method. Accordingly, the current and deferred tax provision recorded by the
Company represents how the Company would have computed its provision had it filed separate federal and state
tax returns. Recoverability of deferred tax assets is assessed based on current and anticipated cash flows arising
from the tax sharing agreement.

Under an agreement with the Parent the Company records, via an intercompany transaction with the Parent, the
amount of its net current and deferred tax provision or benefit. The Parent assumes ultimate responsibility for the
payment of all taxes in accordance with federal, state and local laws. As aresult of this agreement, the Company
had no current or deferred tax liabilities or assets recorded on its balance sheet at December 31, 2011; rather, such
amounts were recorded within accounts receivable from Parent and affiliate.

(3) PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following as of December 31.

2011
Property and equipment $ 1,258,043
Less accumulated depreciation (1,245,688)
Property and equipment, net $ 12355

Depreciation and amortization expense was $35,481 for the year ended December 31, 2011 and is included within
Other operating expenses in the Statement of Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) INCOME TAXES
The Company’s income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2011 consists of the following:

2011
Federal
Current tax provision $ -
Deferred tax provision 30,725,443
Total federal provision 30,725,443
Sate
Current tax provision 303,635
Deferred tax benefit (6,671,762)
Total state tax benefit (6,368,127)
Change in valuation allowance (2,720,261)
Total tax provision $ 21,637,055

Thetotal tax provision differs from the amount that would be calculated by applying the federa statutory tax rate to
income before provision for income taxes primarily due to nondeductible charges related to the equity incentive
plan, a portion of meals and entertainment expenses not deductible for income tax purposes and changes to the
valuation allowance. For years prior to January 1, 2010, the Company recorded a valuation allowance against the
future state tax provision that the Company would receive due to limitations surrounding the timing of the related
state tax deductions. A change in Massachusetts state tax law during 2010 changed the net operating loss
carryforward period from five years to twenty years, thereby eliminating the short term limitations surrounding the
timing of taking such deductions on a prospective basis. As a result, no state valuation alowance has been
recorded relative to future tax provision originating in 2011. The existing state tax valuation allowance was
decreased by $2,720,261 (net of federal provision) for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The Company does not presently have any unrecognized tax benefits that would affect the effective tax rate. The
Company’s policy isto include interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in its income tax provision.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company did not recognize any interest and penaltiesin its income
tax provision and does not have any accrued interest and penalties at December 31, 2011. For the period ended
December 31, 2011, the Company’s tax returns remain subject to examination in the following tax jurisdictions:
prior three years for U.S. federal taxes and prior threeto five years for U.S. state taxes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(5) TRANSACTIONS WITH PARENT AND AFFILIATES

Accounts Receivable from Parent and affiliate

The Company instructs its customers to remit cash directly to the Parent and instructs the Parent to disburse cash on
its behalf. The Parent also allocates certain expenses to the Company. Accounts receivable from Parent and
affiliate represents the net of intercompany transactions between the Company and the Parent and affiliates due to
(i) the above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by the Parent on its behalf and (ii) the recording of expense.
All intercompany receivables/payables are anticipated to be settled in the short-term. Accordingly, accounts
receivable from Parent and affiliate is classified as a current asset.

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent and affiliates sponsor a defined contribution retirement plan (the “Plan”) covering
substantially all employees and provides for a predetermined monthly matching employer contribution and an
annual contribution as determined by the Parent’'s Board of Directors. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the
Company’s share of the annual expense to the Plan totaled $2,838,636. This amount is included in Compensation
and benefits in the Statement of Operations.

Internaly Developed Software

The Parent capitalizes certain costs related to software developed for internal use as long-lived assets, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis (using the half-year convention) over the lesser of three years, or the estimated
useful life. The amortization expense is allocated to each subsidiary of the Parent, including the Company, based
on the subsidiary’s usage of each capitalized software project. Amortization expense alocated during the year
ended December 31, 2011 was $8,712,528, and is included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates in the
Statement of Operations.

Parent Operating Expenses

The Company shares office facilities and personnel with other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related
costs of such arrangements have been alocated among the various subsidiaries in a manner which management
believes is representative of the actual costs incurred. During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company
was allocated $48,691,719 of costs. These charges are included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates in
the Statement of Operations.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Parent elected to revise the methodology by which expenses are allocated from the
Parent to the Company and other of the Parents subsidiaries. While management believes that either expense
allocation methodology provides a reasonable allocation of overhead costs, the methodology that commenced on
January 1, 2011 provides a more simplistic approach that is based on key business drivers such as revenue,
headcount, assets under management, IT project costs, and operating expenses. Had the Parent allocated overhead
costs to the Company under this new methodology during 2010, the Company would have incurred approximately
$40,640,686 of Parent overhead costs, compared to actual incurred costs of $37,327,918 during the year ended
December 31, 2010. The resulting net loss impact would have been $2,013,500.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity Incentive Compensation

Beginning in 2008, the Parent initiated the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP"). Certain
employees of the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are dligible to receive restricted
shares of the Parent’s Class B common shares and Class B stock options.

The Parent recognizes expense for awards granted under this plan in accordance with the applicable accounting
guidance. A portion of these expenses are charged to the Company in a manner consistent with the grant of such
share-based payments.

Effective January 1, 2011, the Company elected to change its method of amortizing its share-based compensation to
the graded vesting method, whereas in al prior years share-based compensation was amortized using the straight-
line method. The Company has adopted this new method of accounting for share-based compensation to maintain
consistency in methodology with the Parent, which was required to utilize the graded vesting method upon adoption
of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Under U.S. GAAP, the Company is allowed to make a
policy election between the graded vesting or straight line method. The Company ultimately chose the graded
vesting method so its accounting treatment for share-based compensation expense would be better aligned with its
Parent. Under graded vesting, specific conditions exist where shares are set to vest in tranches of varying length
over a specified time period. An employee's percentage of rights to their shares as well as the total amortization
expense associated with those shares increases after each period of service until full vesting is realized. As aresullt,
graded vesting accelerates the amortization expense to earlier periods in the overall vesting period. As a result, a
decrease has been recorded to Members Equity for $7,575,248, net of tax at January 1, 2011.

The Company has employees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to the
EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair market value
of the Class B common shares was determined under the valuation methodology outlined in the EIP, which
includes consideration of the range of values determined by a nationally recognized independent valuation firm
chosen by the EIP Committee. Compensation expense for these awards is being amortized over the vesting period
of up to five years. Compensation expense charged and allocated to the Company during the year ended December
31, 2011 was $12,178,632 and $3,474,666, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, there was $22,000,970 of
unrecoghized compensation expense related to the Company’s portion of restricted Class B common shares. The
weighted average period over which that expense is expected to be recognized is 3.29 years.

The Company was aso alocated a portion of the compensation expense related to the Parent’s 2008 grant under
the EIP of Class B stock options to the Parent’s senior management. The grant date fair value of the options was
$8.06 and was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing valuation model with the following assumptions
used: dividend yield 0.00%, expected volatility 27.98%, risk-free interest rate 4.39% and expected life of 6.3 years.
Compensation expense allocated to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2011 related to these Class B
stock options was $793,769. As of December 31, 2011 there was $569,666 of unrecognized compensation expense
related to the Company’s alocated portion of Class B stock options. The period over which the expense is
expected to be recognized is 1.50 years.

Expenses charged directly to the Company related to the EIP is included in Compensation and benefits in the

Statement of Operations. Allocated expenses related to these plans are included in Allocated expenses from Parent
and affiliates in the Statement of Operations.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(6) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Claims, Lawsuits and Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, arising in the normal course of
business. It is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the financial
position of the Company.

In addition, the Company does receive inquiries, including requests for documents and information, in the course of
its business from various state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the Company’s policies and
procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds to
these requests and fully cooperates with al regulatory inquiries.

Indemnified Matters

Putnam’s former parent company, Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc., will indemnify Lifeco with respect to
certain Putnam-related litigation and regulatory matters following the date of the acquisition by Lifeco. This
includes, but is not limited to, regulatory and civil matters and litigation involving excessive short-term trading by
certain former employees of the Parent and shareholders in shares of the Funds and alleged market timing and late
trading activities in the Funds.

(7) PREPAID SIGN-ON BONUSES

At December 31, 2011, there is $3,666,667 of prepaid sign-on bonuses which are included in Prepaid expenses and
other current assets in the Balance Sheet. The expense for these bonuses is being recognized through 2012. These
bonuses are subject to a clawback period if the recipient employees do not remain continuously employed by the
Company through 2012. Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 amounted to $4,000,000 and
isincluded in Compensation and benefits in the Statement of Operations.

(8) RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has policies and procedures relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring, mitigating and
controlling of risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are
liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk (interest rate and equity). The following sections describe how the
Company manages each of these risks.

(a)Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they come

due. The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk:
The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities.
The Company has the financial support of its Parent, which maintains a $500,000,000 revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks.
The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due as of December
31, 2011.
The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal year.
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PUTNAM INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(b)Credit Risk
Credit risk isthe risk of financia loss resulting from the failure of debtors making payments when due. The
Company monitors its credit risk management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness. The
maximum credit exposure is the carrying value of the assets on the Balance Shest.

(c)Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market factors which include two types: interest rate (including related inflation) risk
and equity risk.

(i) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk exists if asset and liability cash flows are not closely matched and interest rates change
causing a difference in value between the asset and liability. The Company’s primary exposure to
interest rate risk arises from fee revenue earned from fixed income investments within the Funds advised
by the Company.

(i) Equity Risk
Equity risk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets arising from changes in equity
markets. The Company’s primary exposure to equity risk arises from fee revenue that is generated from
the Funds advised by the Company.

(9) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occurring after December 31, 2011 through March 21,

2012, the date these financia statements were issued. The Company is not aware of any subsequent events which
would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.
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2013 30

30,305,126 3,117,185
2,604,774 267,927
32,909,900 3,385,112
39,763 4,090
32,949,663 3,389,202
3,604,457 370,754
11,080,969 1,139,788
14,685,426 1,510,543

(143,822,110)

(14,793,542)

162,086,347 16,672,202
18,264,237 1,878,659
32,949,663 3,389,202
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2013 30

172,718,456 17,765,820
78,239,847 8,047,751
12,828,502 1,319,540

6,232,592 641,084
24,447,038 2,514,622

121,747,979 12,522,997
50,970,477 5,242,823
17,593,261 1,809,643
33,377,216 3,433,180
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(107,636,097) (11,071,449) 128,709,131 13,239,021 21,073,034 2,167,572
(36,186,013) (3.,722,093) — — (36,186,013) (3,722,093)

— — 33,377,216 3,433,180 33,377,216 3,433,180

30 (143,822,110) (14,793,542) 162,086,347 16,672,202 18,264,237 1,878,659
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33,377,216 3,433,180
(1,240,174) (127,564)
1,522,598 156,614

46,258 4,758
2,480,115 255,105
36,186,013 3,722,093
(36,186,013) (3,722,093)
(36,186,013) (3,722,093)
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A
(1994 12 2014 )

C )
1994 12 0.039 1994 12 15 6.46
1995 0.041 1995 16 6.48
0.039 1995 15 6.55
0.039 1995 15 6.65
0.039 1995 17 6.70
0.040 1995 15 6.84
0.039 1995 15 6.96
0.039 1995 17 6.95
0.039 1995 15 6.82
0.039 1995 15 6.98
10 0.039 1995 10 16 7.04
11 0.039 1995 11 15 7.03
12 0.038 1995 12 15 7.12
1996 0.038 1996 15 7.14
0.038 1996 16 7.13
0.038 1996 15 6.86
0.038 1996 15 6.84
0.038 1996 15 6.81
0.037 1996 17 6.72
0.036 1996 15 6.73
0.036 1996 15 6.84
0.036 1996 16 6.83
10 0.036 1996 10 15 6.91
11 0.036 1996 11 15 7.06
12 0.071 1996 12 16 6.95
1997 0.035 1997 15 6.93
0.036 1997 18 7.05
0.036 1997 17 6.89
0.036 1997 15 6.80
0.036 1997 15 6.88
0.036 1997 16 6.97
0.036 1997 15 7.02
0.035 1997 15 7.02
0.038 1997 15 7.03
10 0.036 1997 10 15 7.09
11 0.036 1997 11 17 7.07
12 0.060 1997 12 15 7.05
1998 0.036 1998 15 7.11
0.036 1998 17 7.11
0.036 1998 16 7.09
0.036 1998 15 7.08
0.036 1998 15 7.04
0.035 1998 15 7.11
0.035 1998 15 7.07
0.035 1998 17 7.00
0.036 1998 15 6.90
10 0.036 1998 10 15 6.84
11 0.036 1998 11 16 6.77
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C )
1998 12 0.036 1998 12 18 6.89
1999 0.036 1999 15 6.86
0.034 1999 16 6.78
0.034 1999 15 6.74
0.034 1999 15 6.75
0.034 1999 17 6.62
0.034 1999 15 6.47
0.034 1999 15 6.54
0.034 1999 16 6.41
0.034 1999 15 6.40
10 0.034 1999 10 15 6.35
11 0.034 1999 11 15 6.43
12 0.034 1999 12 15 6.35
2000 0.034 2000 18 6.23
0.034 2000 15 6.27
0.034 2000 15 6.29
0.034 2000 17 6.27
0.034 2000 15 6.09
0.034 2000 15 6.19
0.034 2000 17 6.21
0.034 2000 15 6.28
0.034 2000 15 6.26
10 0.034 2000 10 16 6.26
11 0.034 2000 11 15 6.25
12 0.062 2000 12 15 6.31
2001 0.034 2001 16 6.32
0.034 2001 15 6.35
0.034 2001 15 6.44
0.029 2001 16 6.34
0.029 2001 15 6.36
0.029 2001 15 6.42
0.029 2001 16 6.43
0.029 2001 15 6.48
0.029 2001 17 6.53
10 0.029 2001 10 15 6.56
11 0.029 2001 11 15 6.51
12 0.029 2001 12 17 6.36
2002 0.029 2002 15 6.50
0.029 2002 15 6.47
0.029 2002 15 6.36
0.029 2002 15 6.43
0.029 2002 15 6.41
0.029 2002 17 6.49
0.029 2002 15 6.49
0.029 2002 15 6.51
0.024 2002 16 6.59
10 0.024 2002 10 15 6.50
11 0.024 2002 11 15 6.54
12 0.024 2002 12 13 6.56
2003 0.024 2003 15 6.58
0.020 2003 18 6.61
0.020 2003 17 6.63
0.020 2003 15 6.61
0.020 2003 15 6.74
0.018 2003 16 6.82
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C )
2003 0.017 2003 17 6.66
0.018 2003 15 6.49
0.017 2003 17 6.63
10 0.018 2003 10 17 6.59
11 0.018 2003 11 17 6.67
12 0.017 2003 12 18 6.69
2004 0.018 2004 15 6.75
0.018 2004 17 6.76
0.014 2004 17 6.86
0.014 2004 16 6.68
0.014 2004 17 6.56
0.014 2004 17 6.57
0.014 2004 16 6.66
0.014 2004 17 6.72
0.014 2004 17 6.75
10 0.014 2004 10 15 6.78
11 0.013 2004 11 17 6.77
12 0.014 2004 12 16 6.77
2005 0.014 2005 14 6.77
0.014 2005 16 6.80
0.015 2005 17 6.72
0.015 2005 15 6.75
0.015 2005 17 6.78
0.018 2005 17 6.80
0.018 2005 15 6.78
0.017 2005 17 6.75
0.022 2005 16 6.75
10 0.022 2005 10 17 6.67
11 0.022 2005 11 16 6.65
12 0.022 2005 12 16 6.67
2006 0.022 2006 17 6.71
0.021 2006 16 6.64
0.022 2006 17 6.63
0.022 2006 17 6.54
0.023 2006 17 6.50
0.023 2006 16 6.49
0.023 2006 17 6.49
0.023 2006 17 6.57
0.025 2006 15 6.60
10 0.025 2006 10 17 6.60
11 0.025 2006 11 16 6.65
12 0.025 2006 12 15 6.67
2007 0.024 2007 17 6.64
0.026 2007 15 6.66
0.026 2007 16 6.70
0.026 2007 17 6.67
0.026 2007 17 6.64
0.025 2007 19 6.56
0.025 2007 24 6.58
0.026 2007 21 6.63
0.026 2007 19 6.65
10 0.026 2007 10 19 6.70
11 0.026 2007 11 19 6.67
12 0.072 2007 12 19 6.61
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2008 0.028 2008 18 6.69
0.028 2008 19 6.56
0.028 2008 18 6.50
0.038 2008 21 6.41
0.038 2008 20 6.49
0.038 2008 19 6.34
0.038 2008 21 6.24
0.038 2008 19 6.16
0.038 2008 19 6.05
10 0.038 2008 10 21 5.58
11 0.038 2008 11 19 4.94
12 0.038 2008 12 19 4.66
2009 0.038 2009 20 5.08
0.038 2009 19 5.11
0.038 2009 19 5.10
0.038 2009 21 5.17
0.038 2009 19 5.52
0.038 2009 19 5.64
0.038 2009 21 5.94
0.038 2009 19 6.10
0.038 2009 21 6.25
10 0.038 2009 10 20 6.46
11 0.038 2009 11 19 6.53
12 0.038 2009 12 21 6.50
2010 0.038 2010 19 6.59
0.037 2010 19 6.64
0.042 2010 18 6.67
0.042 2010 19 6.72
0.042 2010 18 6.66
0.042 2010 18 6.65
0.042 2010 20 6.73
0.037 2010 19 6.82
0.037 2010 21 6.75
10 0.037 2010 10 19 6.74
11 0.033 2010 11 19 6.66
12 0.033 2010 12 20 6.57
2011 0.033 2011 19 6.64
0.033 2011 18 6.63
0.028 2011 21 6.70
0.028 2011 18 6.71
0.027 2011 19 6.78
0.027 2011 21 6.77
0.028 2011 19 6.74
0.028 2011 19 6.79
0.018 2011 20 6.76
10 0.019 2011 10 19 6.63
11 0.019 2011 11 18 6.63
12 0.019 2011 12 20 6.62
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C )
2012 0.019 2012 19 6.65
0.019 2012 21 6.69
0.019 2012 20 6.66
0.015 2012 19 6.75
0.015 2012 21 6.79
0.015 2012 19 6.84
0.015 2012 19 6.94
0.014 2012 21 6.94
0.015 2012 19 7.03
10 0.015 2012 10 19 7.08
11 0.015 2012 11 19 7.10
12 0.016 2012 12 19 7.09
2013 0.017 2013 18 7.13
0.017 2013 19 7.13
0.017 2013 19 7.20
0.019 2013 19 7.22
0.019 2013 21 7.14
0.020 2013 19 7.00
0.020 2013 19 6.95
0.020 2013 20 6.88
0.020 2013 19 6.92
10 0.020 2013 10 21 7.03
11 0.019 2013 11 19 7.04
12 0.054 2013 12 19 6.98
2014 0.025 2014 21 7.04
0.024 2014 19 7.08
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2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
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2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
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2000
1999
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12
12
12
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12
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31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
31
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.99
.12
.64
.63
.55
.91
.63
.67
.69
.78
.68
.63
.44
.33
.32
.88
.07
.98
.20
.47
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income

Fund (the fund), including the fund's portfolio, as of October 31, 2012, and the related statement of
operations for the year then ended, the statements of changes in net assets for each of the yearsin the two-
year period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the years or periodsin the five-year period
then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund = s
management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements and financia highlights are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. Our procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of
October 31, 2012, by correspondence with the custodian and brokers or by other appropriate auditing
procedures. An audit also includes ng the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financia statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2012, the results of its
operations for the year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year period
then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the years or periodsin the five-year period then ended,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP

Boston, M assachusetts
December 14, 2012

()
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Boston, M assachusetts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To the Board of Directors of Putnam Investments, LLC and Members of
Putnam Investment Management, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”) (a wholly
indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments, LLC) as of December 31, 2011, and the related statements of operations,
changes in members equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financia reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financia statements, assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financia position of the Company at
December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 5 to the financial statements, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its
affiliates. These financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations had

the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company.

As discussed in Note 5 to the financial statements, the Company elected to change its method of accounting for amortizing its
share-based compensation in 2011.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

March 21, 2012
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Trustees and Shareholders
Putnam Income Fund:

We have audited the accompanying statement of assets and liabilities of Putnam Income

Fund (“the fund”), including the fund's portfolio, as of October 31, 2013, and the related statement of
operations for the year then ended, the statements of changes in net assets for each of the years in the two-
year period then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the years or periodsin the five-year period
then ended. These financial statements and financial highlights are the responsibility of the fund = s
management. Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements and financial
highlights based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements and financia highlights are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosuresin the financial statements. Our procedures included confirmation of securities owned as of
October 31, 2013, by correspondence with the custodian and brokers or by other appropriate auditing
procedures. An audit also includes ng the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements and financial highlights referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Putnam Income Fund as of October 31, 2013, the results of its
operations for the year then ended, the changes in its net assets for each of the years in the two-year period
then ended, and the financial highlights for each of the years or periodsin the five-year period then ended,
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMGLLP

Boston, M assachusetts
December 9, 2013
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
Boston, M assachusetts

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Putnam Investments, LLC and Members of Putnam Investment Management, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Investment Management, LLC (the “Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2012, and the related statements of operations, changes in members equity, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

mi sstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. lii making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
aswell as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Putnam Investment Management, LL C as of December 31, 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Asdiscussed in Notes 1, 2 and 5, the Company has significant transactions with its parents and its affiliates. These financial

statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations had the Company been
operated as an unaffiliated company.

Deloitte & Touche LLP
June 4, 2013
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